AGENDA
CITY OF KENTWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION
TUESDAY, JULY 9, 2024
KENTWOOD COMMISSION CHAMBERS
4900 BRETON AVENUE, SE
7:00 P.M.

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance (Sarah Weir)
Roll Call

Declaration of Conflict of Interest

Approval of the Minutes of June 25, 2024 and Findings of Fact for: Case#14-24 —3119 —
521 Street — Rezoning of 15.96 acres of land from R1-A Estate Residential and R1-C
Single family Residential to R1-D Single Family Residential located at 3119 52" Street
SE; Case#16- 24 — Bethel Hispanic 7" Day Adventist Church — Special Land Use and
Site Plan Review for a Place of Worship located at 4430 Potter Ave SE; Case#17-24 —
Zoning Ordinance Text Amendments — Residential Architectural Requirements and Short
Term Rental Fines

Approval of the Agenda for July 9, 2024

Acknowledge visitors and those wishing to speak to non- agenda items.

Old Business

Case#3-24 — Breton Ravines RPUD — Rezoning and Preliminary PUD Approval for a
Residential Planned Unit Development Located at 2720 52" Street, 2854 52" Street and
5491 Wing Avenue SE (Applicant has requested tabling to the August 13, 2024)
Public Hearing

Case#15-24 — Third Coast 4301 60" Street — Site Plan Review and Major Change to a
PUD located at 4175 -60™ Street SE; (Tabled from the July 9, 2024)

Work Session

Case#18-24 — Steelcase 60™ Street Entrance — Site Plan Review and Major Change to a
PUD located at 4301 60™ Street

4900 BRETON AVENUE SE, PO BOX 8848, KENTWOOD, MICHIGAN 49518-8848 « PHONE (616) 698-9610

Equal Opportunity Employer, Drug-Free Workplace www.ci.kentwood.mi.us



Agenda - Planning Commission
July 9, 2024

Page 2

K. New Business

Set public hearing date of , for:

L. Other Business

1. Commissioners’ Comments
2. Staff’s Comments

M. Adjournment

*Public Hearing Format:
1. Staff Presentation — Introduction of project, Staff Report and Recommendation
Introduction of project representative
2. Project Presentation — By project representative
3. Open Public Hearing (please state name, address and speak at podium. Comments are limited to five
minutes per speaker; exceptions may be granted by the chair for representative speakers and
applicants.)

4. Close Public Hearing

5. Commission Discussion — Requests for clarification to project representative, public or staff
6. Commission decision — Options

a. postpone decision — table to date certain

b. reject proposal

c. accept proposal

d.

accept proposal with conditions.



PROPOSED MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING
OF THE KENTWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION
JUNE 25, 2024, 7:00 P.M.
COMMISSION CHAMBERS

Chair Jones called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Commissioner VanderMeer.

Roll Call:

Members Present: Dan Holtrop, Sandra Jones, Ed Kape, Alex Porter, Ray Poyner, Darius
Quinn, Doug VanderMeer, Sarah Weir

Members Absent: None

Others Present: Community Development Director Terry Schweitzer, Economic
Development Planner Lisa Golder, Senior Planner Joe Pung, Planning Assistant Monique
Collier, the applicants and about 15 citizens.

Declaration of Conflict of Interest
There was no conflict of interest statement expressed.
Approval of the Minutes and Findings of Fact
Motion by Commissioner Holtrop, supported by Commissioner Kape, to approve
the Minutes of June 11, 2024 and the Findings of Fact for: Case#13-24 — Weiss
Technik — Rezone 9.8 acres of land from R1-C Single family Residential to IPUD
Industrial Planned unit Development and Preliminary Site Plan Approval located at
4375 and 4401 36 Street SE

- Motion Carried (8-0) —
Approval of the Agenda

Motion by Commissioner Holtrop, supported by Commissioner Poyner, to approve
the agenda for the June 25, 2024, meeting.

- Motion Carried (8-0) —
Acknowledge visitors wishing to speak to non-agenda items.

There was no public comment.



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
June 25, 2024

Page 2
H.

0Old Business

Case#3-24 — Breton Ravines RPUD — Rezoning and Preliminary PUD Approval for a
Residential Planned Unit Development Located at 2720 52 Street, 2854 52" Street and
5491 Wing Avenue SE (Applicant has requested tabling to the August 13, 2024)

Public Hearing

Case#14-24 — 3119 — 52" Street — Rezoning of 15.96 acres of land from R1-A Estate
Residential and R1-C Single family Residential to R1-D Single Family Residential
located at 3119 52 Street SE

Pung stated the request is to rezone 15.96 acres of land from R1-A Estate Residential and
R1-C Single family Residential to R1-D Single Family Residential. Located on the north
side of 527 Street west of the Jefferson Farms subdivision and north of 52" Street.

Pung stated a portion of the site is encumbered by wetlands and floodplain primarily on
the northern portion of the site. It is anticipated that access would be coming off 52°¢
Street and along with the extension of Nature View Drive from the adjacent Jefferson
Farms subdivision.

Pung stated the proposed R1-D zoning allows for smaller lots as small as 5,500 square
feet with a 50-foot width. Pung stated under plats and site condominiums, there is an
averaging requirement. Although they can go down to 5,500 square feet and a 50-foot
width, the overall development has to have an average of 6,500 square feet and average a
width of 60 feet.

Pung stated the Master Plan recommendation is for low density residential development
which is less than 4 units per acre. He stated under an R1-D zoning, there is the potential
to get medium density residential which is 4-8 units per acre. But, when you look at the
averaging requirements, and the environmental constraints along with the Master Plan
recommendation for low density residential, that is going to restrict this development to
less than 4 units per acre.

Pung stated at the work session there were some possible concerns with the ability to
meet some of the new architectural requirements; primarily how the garage orients itself
with the house. He stated based on the discussion, the applicant indicated that he would
be able to meet the architectural standards specifically with the garages for this
development.

Puns stated he is recommending to the City Commission approval of the request to
rezone 15.96 acres from R1-A Estate Residential and R1-C Single family Residential to
R1-D Single Family Residential as described in his memo.

Chris VanderHoff, Bosco Construction was present



|
|
&
1
‘
(

Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
June 25, 2024

Page 3

Jones opened the public hearing.

Bob Green, 3181 Nature View Dr. was present. He stated he doesn’t want Nature View
Drive to be extended. There is enough traffic in the neighborhood and there are a lot of
kids playing; therefore he is concerned about safety.

Jason Sytsma and daughter Taylor Sytsma, 3065 52" Street were present. He stated this
development will be in their backyard. He stated there is enough traffic on 52" Street and
a lot of accidents at Wing Avenue and 527! Street and that is a safety concern. He stated
the developer has already put power lines down. He stated they have also cut down a lot
of trees. He stated he will get all the water runoff because it flows to the east. They are
also concerned about their privacy.

Motion by Kape, supported by Weir to close the public hearing.
- Motion Carried (8-0) —

Porter thanked the residents for coming out and speaking. He questioned the traffic light
at 52™ Street and Wing Avenue, the Nature View Drive connection and the
flooding/drainage. He explained to the residents that there is another step and explained
that this is just the rezoning.

Quinn also thanked the residents for voicing their concerns. He stated he shared his
thoughts and concerns about a traffic light at 52°¢ Street and Wing Avenue we need to
revisit this. He also wants to make sure the flooding concerns are taken into consideration
when it gets to that point.

Holtrop questioned if they can build 4 units per acre, or 60 homes and is it possible. Pung
stated they have the issues with the wetlands and floodplains and have to come in with
the averaging requirements for the lot widths. If they can meet all the City’s requirements
with regards to the roads, the setbacks etc. we have to see what they come in with. Pung
stated it will be based on the gross density. Pung stated the averaging will play some
restrictions. Discussion ensued. Holtrop stated his concern is that the surrounding
neighbors who have lived there looked at it as a 5 acre minimum so with that there would
have been always be some level of privacy, not crowded, traffic etc. He stated it was
zoned R1-A and it didn’t go up for public sale to give anybody the opportunity to buy it.
He stated he is not in favor of the rezoning at this time.

Poyner asked whether the architectural standards apply. Pung stated the architectural
standards will apply to any new home constructed other than outside of a PUD. Poyner
stated he is in favor of the rezoning. Poyner questioned how many homes would be in
this development.

VanderHoff addressed some concerns. He stated regarding the drainage that would be
done with engineering and that is way down the road. He stated he has been working with



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
June 25, 2024

Page 4

Consumers Energy. They have a primary line that runs through the site that has to be
rerouted and reworked. He stated all the utilities in the future development will be
underground. He stated as far as Nature View and the connection to the west, that has
always been the wish of the engineers and the city to have connectivity. He doesn’t have
a lot of say. He stated he believes 52" Street is adequate with the number of homes they
are putting in. He stated 60 homes is not going to happen, it is a challenging site. He
thinks it will be more in the 40 home range, but they have detentions ponds to build and
that will probably be to the south end. He stated it is a really low impact for the
neighbors. To the north are the powetlines and the landfill, to the west the public works
area. About % the frontage on the east side adjacent to Jefferson East is the exposure to
most of the neighbors. He stated his engineer said they will have to do detention ponds
probably to the south part which will buffer the residents pretty well. He stated they
certainly wouldn’t put any more water on any adjacent property owners land that isn’t
there already. He stated the development would probably reduce that. He stated as far as
the tree clearing, the site has not been manicured for quite some time. He stated they had
some time this winter so they started to mow and manicure the property.

VanderMeer thanked the neighbors and let them know that the commissioners are
passionate about protecting everybody. He questioned if power lines are going in now.
VanderHoff stated no power lines are going in at all now. VanderMeer encouraged
VanderHoff to spend some time with the neighbors. VanderHoff stated the neighbors
have a lot of time yet before this development will go in. he stated it takes 2-3 years
trying to move dirt and depending on how things go it could be even longer to build.

Weir thanked the residents that came out.

Kape stated he isn’t in favor of the rezoning at this time he is struggling.

Schweitzer discussed the history of R1-A zoning and the Master Plan in the past.
Motion by Poyner, supported by Porter, to recommend to the City Commission
approval of the request to rezone 15.96 acres from R1-A Estate Residential & R1-C
Single Family Residential to R1-D Single Family Residential. Approval is

conditioned upon basis points 1-7 as described in Pung’s memo dated June 18, 2025.

- Motion Carried (6-2) —
- Holtrop and Kape opposed

Case#15-24 — Third Coast 4301 60™ Street — Site Plan Review and Major Change to a
PUD located at 4175 -60' Street SE; (Staff has requested tabling to July 9, 2024)

Jones opened the public hearing.

There was no public comment.



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
June 25, 2024

Page 5

Golder stated that this is part of the Steelcase plan. There was a 350,000 building that was
approved with a 45,000 square foot office. The applicant has come in with a 600,000
square foot building which is bigger than the original. One of the concerns was that there
should be a driveway that serves the development in the future. She stated right now te
parcel to the north is Steelcase’s property. Steelcase may or may not develop it, but they
wanted to make sure that there will be a secondary way to get to building G to the north.
The applicant has proposed to cut off access to that and to have the driveway serving this
northern piece that is more like a firelane. This is an issue with the Fire Department, and
possibly a clear vision issue. She stated the road as proposed is not appropriate to serve as
an access driveway for the user to the north.

Golder stated Steelcase has a stake in this because they have to approve this site plan as
part of the sale. She stated we are also looking for some traffic information that we did
not get and that is why she tabled the request. Golder stated we will take this up with
Steelcase and Third Coast to figure out the driveway issue. She stated she asked
Steelcase, because they have the existing driveway that is on the other side of the ditch,
whether this driveway could serve the parcel to the north

Golder stated part of why Steelcase requesting a major change for their property because
they are also proposing a new curb cut onto 60" Street. We have a traffic analysis to
review for this project. '

Motion by Holtrop, supported by Quinn to table the public hearing until July 9,
2024.

- Motion Carried (8-0) —

Case#16- 24 — Bethel Hispanic 7 Day Adventist Church — Special Land Use and Site
Plan Review for a Place of Worship located at 4430 Potter Ave SE

Pung stated the request is for an 8,700 square foot building for a place of worship off of
Potter Avenue. He stated the site currently encompasses 3 parcels and would have to be
combined into a single parcel as part of the development

Pung stated the only issue that was bought up at the work session is that we wanted to
make sure that there is compliance with the building elevations, height and landscaping
and that would all be handled through the staff level review, but we wanted to make the
applicant aware of what the requirements were.

He stated he is recommending conditional approval of the special land use and site plan
review as described in his memos dated June 18, 2024,

Robb Lamer, with Exxel Engineering was present.

Jones opened the public hearing.



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
June 25, 2024
Page 6
There was no public comment.

Motion by Kape, supported by Weir to close the public hearing.
- Motion Carried (8-0) —

VanderMeer questioned the pedestrian connection. Pung stated they have to have some
type of pedestrian connection to the public walkway along Potter.

Motion by Holtrop, supported by Kape, to grant conditional approval of the Special
Land Use Place of Worship as described in Case 16-24 Bethel Hispanic 7" Day
Adventist Church. Approval is conditioned on condition 1 and basis points 1 — 5 as
described in Pung’s memo dated June 18, 2024.

- Motion Carried (8-0) —

Motion by Holtrop, supported by Porter, to grant conditional approval of the site
plan dated May 28, 2024, as described in Case 16-24 Bethel Hispanic 7" Day
Adventist Church. Approval is conditioned on conditions 1-10 and basis points 1 -5
as described in Pung’s memo dated June 18, 2024.

- Motion Carried (8-0) —

Case#17-24 — Zoning Ordinance Text Amendments — Residential Architectural
Requirements and Short Term Rental Fines

Golder stated regarding the architectural requirements, she has asked Mike Corby with
Integrated Architecture to give some input because he has done similar review for Grand
Rapids. He stated generally just adding these architectural elements doesn’t make good
designs, but we are trying to do all that we can to make things better.

Corby added some comments to some of the architectural requirements below:

1. At least three (3) windows with a minimum of six (6) square feet each are
required on side walls (those adjoining the front fagade) that face a street.

Corby.: Feels too prescriptive, not sure about requiring 3 windows in addition to the 6
sq. ft. of window area.

a. Side wall transparency for single-story dwellings where it is
determined that the standard cannot be met due to the interior design
of the dwelling. ”

Corby.: asked whether examples be used? For example, windows may not be required
Jor mechanical room.



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
June 25, 2024

Page 7

Golder stated she can add examples this isn’t a bad idea or have it a guide for the
applicants or developers of what we want to see

a. Exterior cladding may consist of brick, stone, vinyl or aluminum siding, glass, fiber
cement siding, wood lap, stucco, or decorative split-faced block.

Corby.: Suggest or require trim (casings around windows/doors, skirt boards, rake trim).
Trim contributes more to the overall look than the type of material.

Commissioners stated maybe we need to spell this out within the architectural standards.
b. EIFS shall only be used for building accents.
Corby. suggest not using at grade level EIFS.
Commissioners stated it makes sense because it deteriorates.
i. Porch columns of 8 inches or more with a substantial base and capital.

Corby. does not like this requirement because for a certain style of home, a narrow porch
column is appropriate

Commissioners are ok with the language as is.
a. Where garages are rear loaded, off an alley or common drive through a
rear yard, the minimum distance from the face of the garage to the edge of
pavement is fifteen (15) feet.

Corby. Suggested 18’ or more to fit a vehicle in driveway off an alley.

Golder stated the requirement may need to be increased in order to park the car allow for
a car to be parked off an alley.

a. For multi-family developments parking areas visible from the public street shall
be sited to be perpendicular to the street to reduce visual impacts on the
streetscape.

- Corby.: understands the intent but not practical to accomplish.

Golder stated we may have to go back and change the ordinance as needed, based on how
effective it is in providing a better product.

Motion by VanderMeer, supported by Holtrop, to recommend to the City
Commission amendment of the Zoning Ordinance to amend Section 1.02 and 3.22 to



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
June 25, 2024
Page 8
require architectural standards and guidelines to residential dwellings within the
City.
- Motion Carried (8-0) —

Schweitzer stated City Commissioner wanted to move forward in terms of penalties for
violations of the provisions pertaining to short term rentals. He stated the fees would be
reflective of the time it takes to enforce upon this if someone decides to go against the
regulations. He stated it is also a matter of giving some assurance of maintaining the
integrity of our existing neighborhoods. Schweitzer discussed nuisance problems we have
been having with Airbnb operations in Kentwood.

Schweitzer stated it was also pointed out that a few other existing provisions should be
reviewed. One is subsection deals with electronic messages centers. The reason why it
was a higher fine is due to regulations that we have in terms of the brightness of the signs
and the movement. We may need a heavier fine to make it clear that it is a priority of the
community and that it is important to the safety of motorists and pedestrians to minimize
the amount of distractions.

Schweitzer stated another section deals with our provisions site design requirements for
self-storage facilities that will have an area set aside for RV parking. That shouldn’t be as
high as it was before. By removing that portion we are basically saying in those
circumstances we will rely upon the ordinances and our standard of 65 dollars for the first
violation 130.00 for the second violation and 250.00 for the third and subsequent
violations. He stated he thinks we can deal with this one without zoning enforcement
more effectively and not having to rely upon a higher fine to bring that in to compliance
with the ordinance.

Jones questioned if someone has already had their first and second violation will they
then go to the $5,000 or does the clock start over. Schweitzer stated if there is a
substantial gap in time between the 1% and 2" violation that is taken into account. He
stated these are the allowable fines that can be imposed by ordinance, but the District
Court Judge has the discretion based on the circumstances of imposing a lesser fine.

Porter stated there was mention about substantial time to reset the clock, he feels that is
really vague and questioned if there should be something to define substantial time.
Schweitzer stated he will get with the City Attorney on that issue.

Porter questioned if we would penalize the both owner of the Airbnb and the renter.
Schweitzer stated the approach we have taken is penalizing the owner because they are
the one in violation.

Motion by Holtrop, supported by VanderMeer, to recommend to the City
Commission amendment of the Zoning Ordinance to amend the violation and
penalties provisions to increase the fine schedule for short-term rental violations
and reduce the fine schedule for violation of special land use outdoor storage of



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
June 25, 2024

Page 9

Recreational Vehicles in the industrial zone districts. As described in Schweitzer’s
memo dated June 14, 2024.

- Motion Carried (8-0) -
Work Session

Three were no work sessions.

New Business

Motion by Porter, supported by Quinn, to set public hearing date of July 23, 2024,
for: Case#18-24 — Steelcase 60™ Street Entrance — Site Plan Review and Major
Change to a PUD located at 4301 60™ Street

_ - Motion Carried (8-0) —
Other Business

1. Commissioners’ Comments

Porter questioned what the commercial development was going up at 44™ and Shaffer.
Golder stated it is zoned residential, but the zoning allows for some commercial and that
was what was approved. She stated we would have to review a site plan. If it is consistent
with what we have approved, then they can come in for final approval.

Holtrop stated we have discussed over the years some vacant property in a section of 44
Street between Roger B Chaffee and Division. He noticed there is a basement going in.
Schweizer stated that was one of the privately held properties. They lost some frontage
but there is still enough depth to it for them to put a house there.

Holtrop questioned the status of Hope Haven he noticed the City Commission has tabled
the request. Pung stated yes, Hope Hazen is working on a traffic analysis to see if a decel
lane would be warranted and site distance.

Holtrop stated someday he won’t be on the commission and encouraged the
commissioners to be vigilant when they drive around town.

Kape reminded everyone of the 4™ of July festivities.
2. Staff’s Comments

Schweitzer stated as of July 2° we should have an appointment for someone to serve on
the Planning Commission.

Adjournment



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
June 25, 2024
Page 10
Motion by Commissioner Weir, supported by Commissioner Kape, to adjourn the
meeting.
- Motion Carried (8-0) —

Meeting adjourned at 8:35pm

Respectfully submitted,

Ed Kape, Secretary



CITY OF KENTWOOD

PLANNING COMMISSION
PROPOSED
FINDINGS OF FACT
JULY 9, 2024
Pung 06/18/2024
PROJECT: 3119 — 52M Street Rezoning
APPLICATION: 14-24
LOCATION: 3119 — 52M Street
HEARING DATE: June 25, 2024
REVIEW TYPE: Rezoning of 15.96 acres from R1-A Estate Residential &
R1-C Single Family Residential to R1-D Single Family
Residential .
MOTION: Motion by Poyner, supported by Porter, to recommend
to the City Commission approval of the request to rezone
15.96 acres from R1-A Estate Residential & R1-C Single
Family Residential to R1-D Single Family Residential.
Approval is conditioned upon basis points 1-7 as
described in Pung’s memo dated June 18, 2025.
- Motion Carried (6-2) —
- Holtrop and Kape opposed
BASIS: L The Master Plan recommends low density residential

development for this site. Residential development under
the R1-D zoning district would be low density.

2 The City’s infrastructure and services are sufficient to
accommodate development of the property under the R1-D
Single Family Residential district.

3. The rezoning is not anticipated to have a substantial and
permanent adverse impact on neighboring property.

4. The rezoning would not tend to create any type of blight
within the area and would allow for reasonable use of the

property.

5. Development under the R1-D district would be compatible
with the surrounding uses

4900 BRETON AVENUE SE, PO BOX 8848, KENTWOOD, MICHIGAN 49518-8848 « PHONE (616) 698-9610

Equal Opportunity Employer, Drug-Free Workplace www.ci.kentwood.mi.us



Findings of Fact
Case 19-22
Page 2
0. Applicant’s presentation at the Planning Commission work
session and public hearing,.

7. Discussion at the Planning Commission work session and
public hearing.



Pung 06/18/2024

PROJECT:
APPLICATION:

LOCATION:

HEARING DATE:

REVIEW TYPE:

MOTION:

CONDITION:

BASIS:

CITY OF KENTWOOD
PLANNING COMMISSION
PROPOSED
FINDINGS OF FACT
JULY 9, 2024

Bethel Hispanic 7™ Day Adventist Church
16-24
4424 & 4448 Potter Avenue & 4435 Eastern Avenue
June 25, 2024
Special Land Use Place of Worship
Motion by Holtrop, supported by Kape, to grant
conditional approval of the Special Land Use Place of
Worship as described in Case 16-24 Bethel Hispanic 7™
Day Adventist Church. Approval is conditioned on
condition 1 and basis points 1 — 5 as described in Pung’s
memo dated June 18, 2024.

- Motion Carried (8-0) —

Installation of a pedestrian connection from the building
entrance to the public sidewalk along Potter Avenue.

The proposed use is consistent with both the Master Plan and
the zoning district in which it is located.

To provide pedestrian access to the building entrance from
the public sidewalk.

The use otherwise meets the special land use standards of
Sections 15.02 and 15.04 of the Kentwood Zoning
Ordinance. ~

Applicant’s representation at the work session and public
hearing.

Discussion at the work session and public hearing.

4900 BRETON AVENUE SE, PO BOX 8848, KENTWOOD, MICHIGAN 49518-8848 - PHONE (616) 698-9610

Equal Opportunity Employer, Drug-Free Workplace www.ci.kentwood.mi.us



Pung 06/18/2024

PROJECT:
APPLICATION:
LOCATION:
HEARING DATE:
REVIEW TYPE:

MOTION:

CONDITION:

CITY OF KENTWOOD
PLANNING COMMISSION
PROPOSED
FINDINGS OF FACT
JULY 9, 2024

Bethel Hispanic 7 Day Adventist Church
16-24
4424 & 4448 Potter Avenue & 4435 Eastern Avenue
June 25, 2024
Site Plan Review for a Special Land Use Place of Worship
Motion by Holtrop, supported by Porter, to grant
conditional approval of the site plan dated May 28, 2024,
as described in Case 16-24 Bethel Hispanic 7" Day
Adventist Church. Approval is conditioned on
conditions 1-10 and basis points 1 — 5 as described in
Pung’s memo dated June 18, 2024.

- Motion Carried (8-0) —

Planning Commission approval of the special land use Place
of Worship.

Planning staff review and approval of an exterior
photometric plan.

Planning staff review and approval of a landscape plan..
Planning staff approval of exterior building elevations.

Install pedestrian connection from the building entrance to
the public sidewalk along Potter Avenue.

The location of any external refuse containers to be reviewed
and approved by planning staff.

Compliance with all applicable standards and requirements
of the Kentwood Engineering Department.

4900 BRETON AVENUE SE, PO BOX 8848, KENTWOOD, MICHIGAN 49518-8848 « PHONE (616) 698-9610

Equal Opportunity Employer, Drug-Free Workplace www.ci.kentwood.mi.us



Case 16-24
Finding of Fact
Page 2

BASIS:

10.

Compliance with all applicable standards and requirements
of the Kentwood Fire Department.

Applicant’s representation at the work session and public
hearing.

Discussion at the work session and public hearing.

To ensure building elevations, landscaping, and exterior
lighting comply with zoning ordinance requirements.

To provide pedestrian access to the building entrance from
the public sidewalk.

The use otherwise meets the requirements of the Kentwood
Zoning Ordinance.

Applicant’s representation at the work session and public
hearing.

Discussion at the work session and public hearing.



CITY OF KENTWOOD
PLANNING COMMISSION
PROPOSED
FINDINGS OF FACT
JULY 9, 2024

Golder 6-17-2024

PROJECT: Zoning Ordinance Amendments-Residential Architectural
Standards

APPLICATION: 17-24

HEARING DATE: June 25, 2024

REVIEW TYPE: Zoning Ordinance Text Amendments

MOTION: Motion by VanderMeer, supported by Holtrop, to recommend to

the City Commission amendment of the Zoning Ordinance to
amend Section 1.02 and 3.22 to require architectural standards
and guidelines to residential dwellings within the City.

- Motion Carried (8-0) —
RECOMMENDED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT LANGUAGE:

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 1.02 PURPOSE AND SECTION 3.22
REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL RESIDENTIAL DWELLINGS

Section 1. Amendment to Section 1.02 Purpose
Section 1.02 is hereby amended to read as follows:

SECTION 1.02 PURPOSE

The fundamental purpose of this ordinance is to promote and safeguard the public health,
safety, prosperity and general welfare of the people of this City. The provisions of this Ordinance
are intended, among other things, to encourage the use of lands, waters, and other natural
resources in the City in accordance with their character and in a reasonable manner; to limit the
improper use of lands and resources; to eliminate nonconforming uses; to reduce hazards to life
and property; to provide for orderly development within the City; to avoid overcrowding of land
with structures or buildings; to provide adequate light, air and health conditions within dwellings
and buildings hereafter erected or altered; to protect the prosperity and economic interests of

4900 BRETON AVENUE SE, PO BOX 8848, KENTWOOP, MICHIGAN 49518-8848 « PHONE (616) 698-9610

Equal Opportunity Employer, Drug-Free Workplace www.ci.kentwood.mi.us



the city, taxpayers, and property owners; to ensure that the built environment in the city is
durable and sustainable; to encourage redevelopment efforts within the city; to manage the
impact on the public roads and streets resulting from development; to protect and conserve
natural recreational areas, residential and other areas naturally suited to particular uses; to
facilitate the establishment of an adequate and economic system of transportation; sewage
disposal, safe water supply, education, recreation and other public requirements; to conserve
the expenditure of funds for public improvements and services to conform with the most
advantageous uses of land, resources and properties.

This Ordinance is enacted under the authority of the City and Village Zoning Act and Section 6.14
(c) of the Charter of the City of Kentwood.

Section 2 Amendment to Section 3.22 Regulations Applicable to all Residential Dwellings.
Section 3.22 is hereby amended to read as follows:

SECTION 3.22 REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL RESIDENTIAL DWELLINGS

The following provisions shall not apply to dwellings located in manufactured home communities
or Form Based Code districts. Provisions specific to a particular housing type shall apply in addition
to the general provisions applicable to all housing types contained in Part B.

A. The purpose and intent of these provisions is:

1. To create neighborhoods that are safe, livable, attainable, and sustainable, and create
a sense of community for Kentwood'’s varied households. Each home will contribute
to a neighborhood’s context. Building placement, design, and parking location are all
components that affect how walkable and safe a neighborhood is for children, the
elderly, and the general community. Front porches, windows, and entries provide
“eyes on the street” that contributes to the safety and security of a neighborhood.

2. Many of the following provisions have been used within residential Planned Unit
Developments but were not formally codified as general provisions. The intent of
codifying these rules is to increase transparency in the development process, provide
greater predictability for the development community, and increase consistency in
decision-making.

3. Itis recognized that not every home and building site is the same. To that end, these
provisions seek to provide flexibility for builders, homeowners, and City staff by
instructing where administrative departures may be granted in lieu of the need for a
zohing variance process.

4. ltisrecognized that the Building Code regulates appropriate construction materials to
be used in residential construction. That Code, however, does not consider how all the



various components contribute to building a neighborhood and a community. It is
expected that materials will be compatible in character and scale with the structure
on which it is being installed, have no visible fasteners, and be uniform in type and
appearance. Building materials shall be durable and installed in simple configurations
with solid craftsmanship, according to the manufacturer’s specifications such that no
warping or buckling, cracking, molding, fading, or oil canning is expected.

B. All housing types. These general provisions are applicable to all housing types.

1. Transparency.

a. Residential dwellings shall have windows on the front walls and side walls of the
structure that face a street. The size and placement of windows on the facade shall
be generally consistent.

For all residential dwellings at least twelve percent (12%) of the area of the
front facade shall consist of clear glass windows and may include the
primary entrance door, which permits a view from the dwelling to the
street. Garage door windows may count towards the percentage.

If the front facade of the residential dwelling has between 10%-12% clear
glass windows, an additional design element must be provided from the list
provided in Section 2.22 B. The design element shall be specific to the
facade of the house and provided in addition to that required in Section
3.22B3.

If the front facade of a residential dwelling has less than 10% clear glass
windows, an additional two design elements must be provided, specific to
the facade of the house, and selected from the list outlined in Section 3.22
B. The 2 design elements shall be specific to the fagade of the house and
provided in addition to the 4 design elements required in Section 3.22 B 3.

At least three (3) windows with a minimum of six (6) square feet each are
required on side walls (those adjoining the front fagade) that face a street.

Lightwell facades shall have twelve percent (12%) minimum clear glass
between the finish floor line of the lightwell and the finish floor line of the
first floor.

Administrative Departures. The following shall be eligible for an
administrative departure request:



a. Side wall transparency for single-story dwellings where it is determined
that the standard cannot be met due to the interior design of the
dwelling.

b. Placement is limited by the presence of a garage. If the garage is facing
the street, a departure cannot be provided to the facade.

c. Building code requirements make adherence to this requirement
infeasible.

2. Exterior Materials.

a. Exterior cladding may consist of brick, stone, vinyl or aluminum siding, glass, fiber
cement siding, wood lap, stucco, or decorative split-faced block. Installation shall
include trim.

b. EIFS shall only be used for building accents and shall not be permitted at grade
level.

c. Where more than one (1) fagade material is proposed, the heavier material in
appearance shall be incorporated below the lighter material (e.g. masonry below
siding).

d. Administrative Departure. Other materials of equivalent or better quality, including
high quality synthetic material, may be approved, if determined appropriate for the
building, site, and area with an approved sample and examples of successful, high
quality local installations.

3. Design Elements. The intent of this Section is to encourage the use of various design
elements on residential lots and structures to create visual interest and support walkable
neighborhoods. The menu of design elements is intended to provide a variety of choices
for potential design compositions. A number of the design elements represent a
standard of quality and durability that can decrease future maintenance responsibilities
for the homeowner or limit deterioration of the exterior of the home(s). ltis also the
intent of this Section to maintain the affordability, livability, and safety of housing in the
City. A minimum of four (4) elements or sub-elements from the menu are required.
Implementation of these design elements should demonstrate thoughtful design;
considering scale, symmetry, balance and compatibility.

A minimum of one (1) design element must be different among adjacent detached
dwelling units, or for each multi-family building. Landscaping and front porches shall be
exempted from this requirement.

a. Llandscaping.



d.

e.

f.

b.

i. Three (3) trees measuring 2.5” caliper or greater on the lot. A minimum of five
hundred (500) cubic feet of soil volume shall be provided per tree. Retained trees
on the property can be credited towards this option.

ii. Planted landscape area/s of a minimum of one hundred fifty (150) square feet in

the front yard.

iii. A sod grass lawn provided in the front, back, and side lawn.

Front Porch.

Front porch, as defined in Chapter 2, not including steps, that is at least five (5) feet
in depth to provide for usable seating and circulation and is at least one-third (1/3)
the width of the front facade of the residential structure {not including the garage)
but in no case is it less than nine (9) feet wide.

Structural Modifications.
i. Dormers, the placement of which is balanced with the dwelling’s fagade.

ii. Room bump-out (e.g. sunroom, bay window, etc.) on the facade of the building
with minimum depth of two (2) feet.

iii. Dwelling is designed and constructed to meet the Type B Unit accessibility
requirement of the ANSI A117.1 standard.

Windows and Window Detailing.

i. Increased percentage of clear glass windows on the front facade of fifteen percent
(15%) or higher on front fagade.

ii. Exterior trim not less than three (3) inches in width.
ii. Shutters that are one-half the width of the window on each side and of a high-

quality material that will not fade or peel.

iv. Other enhancements, such as awnings.

Roof Detailing.
i. Eaves with a minimum of twelve-inch (12”) overhang on all eaves.

ii. Exterior soffit detailing such as brackets, moldings, or changes in materials.
iii. Gable end {rakes) with a minimum eight-inch (8”) overhang on all gable ends.
iv. Eavestroughs with downspouts.

Materials.

i. Brick, stone, or other decorative materials used on the fagade of the building and
wrap the sides of the structure with the same materials for a depth of at least two
(2) feet.

ii. Hardie Plank/fiber cement siding.



iii. Metal siding, roofing, or paneling of 24 gauge or better with no visible fasteners.

Any change in profile is non-corrugated and has a minimum rib depth of 1-inch.

iv. A change in exterior building materials used as an accent on the fagade of the
building.

g. Columns
i. Porch columns of 8 inches or more with a substantial base and capital.
ii.Administrative Departures: The Zoning Administrator may accept alternative
options that meet the intent of this provision to increase the visual diversity of
residential structures within a neighborhood.

Detached single-family. A detached single-family dwelling and any additions or alterations
thereto, shall meet the requirements of this Section in addition to all other regulations of
this Chapter.

. Garages. The following provisions shall apply to provide safe, unobstructed pedestrian
through-movement on sidewalks, encourage the visibility of street activities from dwellings,
ensure sufficient space for the parking of vehicles to avoid front-yard parking and street
congestion, and reduce the visual dominance of garages and parking in neighborhoods.

a. For the purposes of this Section, the garage setback shall be considered
independently from that of the residential dwelling.

b. Garages that are accessed from a public street through the front yard shall be
placed a minimum of thirty-five (35) feet from the front lot line. Garages that are
accessed from a private street through the front yard shall be placed at a minimum
of 25’ from the edge of the right-of-way easement. Administrative departures for
private roads may be approved by the Zoning Administrator.

c. Where garages are rear loaded, off an alley or common drive through a rear yard,
the minimum distance from the face of the garage to the edge of pavement is
twenty (20) feet.

d. The placement and size of attached garages shall be determined by the following:

i.  Attached garages cannot exceed 50% of the total width of the front
facade of a dwelling unit. Attached garages that are set back at least 15
feet behind the front of the dwelling unit are permitted and shall not be
counted against front fagade calculations.

ii. Garages that comprise 50% or less of the front fagade of the dwelling
may align with the front facade.



e.

iii.  Attached garages comprising 35% to 50% of the total width of the front
facade may project up to 8 feet forward of the front of the dwelling unit,
or up to 10 feet forward of the front of the dwelling unit if a front porch
is provided in compliance with Section 3.22.B.3.b. Front yard setbacks
still apply.

iv.  Attached garages that are 33% or less of a dwelling unit’s front facade
may be placed fully forward of the dwelling unit.

Where a third, single garage stall is desired, it shall be located at least two (2) feet
behind the main fagade of a two-stall garage. A third, single garage stall set back
more than 5’ shall not count toward the width of garage for the for the purposes
of determining compliance with Section 3.22 C.1.d.

Administrative Departure. An administrative departure may be granted where
seventy-five percent (75%) of existing dwelling units within three hundred (300)

feet on the same block have a dwelling to garage facade ratio that does not meet
the above requirements.

2. The roof of any dwelling unit shall have a minimum pitch of three (3) inches height to one foot

of run.

3. Dwelling units shall be permanently anchored to wood, masonry, concrete, or other approved
foundation. Access to the basement or crawl space shall be from inside the dwelling unit.

4. Dwelling units shall meet all the requirements and specifications of the currently adopted
Building Code, Housing Code, Electric Code, Plumbing Code, Energy Code, and the One and
Two Family Code.

5. If the dwelling unit was transported to the building site, all wheels, axles, and towing devices

shall be removed from the dwelling unit once placed on the lot.

D. Attached single-family, duplexes, and multi-family. Attached single-family dwellings, duplexes,
and multi-family dwellings (3 or more units) and any additions or alterations thereto, shall
meet the requirements of this Section in addition to all other regulations of this Chapter. -

1. Parking Areas, Garages, and Carports.

a.

Garages for duplexes are not allowed to be placed in the center of the front fagade.
Drive areas shall be separated to allow for a common green. A circular drive may
be permitted for access management purposes.

For multi-family developments unenclosed parking areas and freestanding parking
structures (detached garages or carports) shall not occupy more than thirty percent

(30%) of any public street frontage.

7



C.

For multi-family developments parking areas visible from the public street shall be
sited to be perpendicular to the street to reduce visual impacts on the streetscape.

Administrative Departure. An administrative departure may be granted to allow up
to fifty percent (50%) of unenclosed parking areas or to adjust parking area
orientation along a street frontage when a dense year-round landscape screen is
provided.



CITY OF KENTWOOD

PLANNING COMMISSION
PROPOSED
FINDINGS OF FACT

JULY 9, 2024
PROJECT: Zoning Ordinance Amendments-Violations and Penalties
APPLICATION: 17-24
HEARING DATE: June 25, 2024
REVIEW TYPE: Zoning Ordinance Text Amendments
MOTION: Motion by Holtrop, supported by VanderMeer, to recommend

to the City Commission amendment of the Zoning Ordinance
to amend the violation and penalties provisions to increase the
fine schedule for short-term rental violations and reduce the
fine schedule for violation of special land use outdoor storage
of Recreational Vehicles in the industrial zone districts. As
described in Schweitzer’s memo dated June 14, 2024.

- Motion Carried (8-0) -
RECOMMENDED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT LANGUAGE:
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND APPENDIX A, CHAPTER 22, SECTION

22.07 ENTITLED “VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES” OF THE CODE OF
ORDINANCES FOR THE CITY OF KENTWOOD

Section 1. Amendment to Appendix A, Chapter 22, Section 22.07. Appendix A, Chapter 22,
Section 22.07 of the Code of Ordinances of Kentwood is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 22.07. — Violations and penalties.

A. Unless a section of this ordinance specifically provides otherwise, any person, firm,
corporation, trust, partnership or other legal entity which violates any provision of the
zoning ordinance or violates any provision or condition imposed by the planning
commission, city commission, or zoning board of appeals in pursuance .of any
ordinance provision or assigned condition, shall be responsible for a municipal civil
infraction and shall be subject to fines, costs and orders as provided by law.

B. Each day a violation occurs or continues shall constitute a separate offense, and shall

make the violator liable for the imposition of a fine and other penalties for each day of
violation.

4900 BRETON AVENUE SE, PO BOX 8848, KENTWOOD, MICHIGAN 49518-8848 « PHONE (616) 698-9610

Equal Opportunity Employer, Drug-Free Workplace www.ci.kentwood.mi.us



C. The owner and co-owner of any building, structure or premises which is in violation of
this ordinance shall be responsible for a municipal civil infraction and shall be subject
to the fines, costs and orders as provided by law.

D. Any building or structure which is erected, altered or converted, or any use of any
premises or land which is begun or changed subsequent to the effective date of this
ordinance that is in violation of any of this ordinance is declared to be a public nuisance
per se, and may be abated by order of a court of competent jurisdiction.

E. Any person who violates any provision of Section 16.05.D. is responsible for a civil
infraction and shall be fined not less than $2,500.00 for each violation. Any person
who, after having been determined to be responsible for a violation of this article or the
act, commits and is found responsible for a subsequent violation within a two-year
period, shall be fined double the amount assessed for the immediate preceding
violation.

F. The rights and remedies provided are cumulative and are in addition to any other
remedies provided by law.

G. Nothing herein shall be interpreted to limit the authority of the city to revoke an
approval previously granted for a violation of this ordinance, which right is expressly
reserved.

H. Any person who violates Section 3.32(a) is responsible for a municipal civil infraction
and shall be fined $500.00 for a first violation, $2,500.00 for a second violation, and
$5,000.00 for a third or subsequent violation, as well as such other costs, damages,
expenses, and sanctions as provided by Section 1-7.

Section 2. Conflict.

A. Nothing in this Ordinance is to be construed to conflict with existing City ordinances
except as otherwise stated herein.

B. Nothing in this Ordinance is to be construed to conflict with any other law of the State
of Michigan.
Section 3. Repealer. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance are
repealed.

Section 4. Savings Clause. The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any part of this
Ordinance is declared void or inoperable for any reason, such declaration does not void any or
render inoperable other part or portion of this Ordinance.

Section 5. Effective Date. This Ordinance is effective ten (10) days following its publication in
the manner required by law.

Basis:

1. In November and December of 2022, the City Commission approved amendments to the
Rental Dwelling Inspection Program of the Code of Ordinances and the Zoning Ordinance to
regulate short term residential rentals. The purpose of these amendments was to protect the
general health, safety and welfare of the community, retain existing long term housing stock, and
preserve the unique character of the diverse residential neighborhood within the city.



2. Over the past one and a half years city staff and the City Attorney’s office have pursued
prosecution of several homeowners whose “short term renters” were found to have created
disturbances in the surrounding neighborhoods. While the city has been able to sufficiently
document violations and assess fines, it has come after a great deal of time and effort. Despite

these efforts to date, several of the illegal short-term rentals continue to rent and are willing to
pay the fines.

3. During the June 4 City Commission Committee of the Whole meeting, the City Commission
initiated the process to formally amend the short-term rental violations and penalties provisions
of the Rental Dwelling Inspection Program of the Code of Ordinances. The City Commission

would also like to consider a similar amendment of the short-term rental violations and penalties
provisions of the Zoning Ordinance

4. A review of Section 22.07, subsection E, revealed that a $2500.00 fee would be assessed for
violations of the city’s special land use provisions for outdoor storage of recreational vehicles in
industrial areas. The amount of the fine for these provisions is more appropriately the standard

fines of $65 for a first offense, $130 for a second offense and $250 for a third and subsequent
offense.



PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Golder 7/5/24

PROJECT: Third Coast Development

APPLICATION: 15-24

REQUEST: Major Change to an Approved PUD Site Plan
LOCATION: 4301 60™ Street SE

HEARING DATE: July 9, 2024

RECOMMENDATION: Recommend to the City Commission Conditional Approval of

CONDITIONS:
1.

the site plan dated May 22, 2024 for Third Coast Development
Major Change to an Approved PUD Plan as described in Case
No. 15-24. Approval is conditioned on the following:

Compliance with the PUD Statement dated May 23, 2024, with the
following amendment, to be approved by staff:

o Fire lanes must be provided on all sides of the building

Review and approval by staff and the City Attorney of the Third Coast
PUD Statement and Development Agreement for compliance with
legal and related requirements.

Compliance with the City Engineer’s memo dated June 13, 2024, and
the approval of the site plan by the Kentwood Fire Marshal.

A gated access shall be required east of the passenger car parking lot
to prevent vehicles from accessing the fire lane and will discourage
trucks from exiting the site through the East Paris curb cut.

. Additional traffic information shall be provided for the intersection of

East Paris and 60™ Street.
Applicant shall provide deferred parking information on the site plan.

Approval by the City Engineer of the driveway design for East Paris
Avenue, including the recommended right turn lane.



Planning Staff Recommendation

Case No. 15-24

Third Coast Major Change to a Preliminary Site Plan

Page 2

BASIS

8. Approval by the City Engineer of any proposed improvements to the
existing driveway (Data Drive).

9. The applicant shall maintain the private road connection between the
property and the Steelcase property to the East.

10. Planning and City Commission approval of any building material
walvers.

11. Planning Commission approval of the Final PUD site plan.

12. Final approval of the landscaping plan.

1.

A review of the PUD Development Agreement is required by the Zoning
Ordinance and its review in light of the proposed site plan will ensure that
the development is undertaken in a way consistent with Planning and City
Commission approvals and representations made by the applicant.

The East side of the proposed building has a 30’ paved driveway that is
intended to serve as both a fire lane and an access driveway to Building G
to the north. The Fire Marshal will review to determine whether this
provides acceptable access for the Fire Department and if additional
signage is needed to prohibit parking within the fire lane.

A gated access located east of the East Paris parking lot will prohibit
truck traffic from exiting the site on East Paris Avenue.

A traffic analysis for the adjacent Steelcase project (Case 18-24) indicates
that the queues for southbound right turn movements at the 60™/East Paris
intersection currently exceed provided storage lengths. It is unclear
whether the traffic analysis incorporates the Third Coast Development
traffic into its calculation for the queues at the 60"/East Paris intersection.
The applicant must confirm that the movement and overall approach still
operate at an acceptable level of service.

The Steelcase traffic analysis recommends a west bound right turn lane at
60™ and Data Drive.

Maintaining the driveway connection between Data Drive and the
proposed Steelcase driveway will allow more options for access to 60™
Street for both the Third Coast property and the Steelcase property, as
well as the future Building G.

The zoning ordinance requires 361 parking spaces for the square footage
and the uses proposed for the Third Coast building, and 231 spaces are
provided. The Project Narrative indicated that additional parking would



Planning Staff Recommendation

Case No. 15-24

Third Coast Major Change to a Preliminary Site Plan

Page 3

be provided as necessary. The deferred parking spaces should be shown
on the site plan.

The 2014 PUD major change for the Steelcase PUD allowed buildings N,
M, L, K, D and A to adhere to a lesser standard, which is the facade
standards that apply to all industrial buildings within the city. This
standard requires that the front and sides of buildings facing streets to be
treated with a finished material, which could include various percentages
of brick, glass, decorative masonry, metal composite materials, siding and
finishes.

Discussion and representations during the work session and public
hearings.



PROJECT NARRATIVE

TC 4301 60" Street — New Facility
City of Kentwood, Kent County, Michigan
May 23, 2024

Background:
The site is approximately 56 Acres located in the Southwest corner of: 60™ Street and East Paris.
There is an open |-PUD for this property.

Proposed Use & Site Inprovements:

The proposed development includes a new facility onsite. Project anticipates approximately 130+
employees for this location when this facility is in full production, working a normal shift model of
three (3) shifts, five (5) days a week.

The proposed site improvements include an approximately 599,500+ square foot facility with an
additional 3,500+ square foot two-story office area and will also include adjacent parking, loading
area, traffic circulation, and fire lanes. The staff parking area is proposed to be located off to the
West and south portions, while the loading docks are proposed to be located on the southerly
portion of the site.

Parking:
Based on the City’'s parking requirements, one (1) parking space per 300 square foot of office

space. Manufacturing is (1) parking space per 2000 Gross Square Foot. Warehouse is (1) parking
space per 1500 Gross Square Foot

Should additional spaces be needed, parking could be added south of the parking lot in the future.

Truck Traffic:

Truck Traffic is anticipated to function only on the south side with access off the current 60™ street
truck route.

Driveways:
A new driveway is proposed to be located off East Paris for light duty cars and employee parking.
Truck traffic is designed to flow only on the south side.

Pedestrian Connectivity:
Concrete sidewalks and crosswalks are proposed between the parking areas and the building.

Fire Lane:

Based on our review with the City's Fire Department, fire lanes will be provided along the north,
west, and east sides of the site. The fire lane along the West, North and East side of the site will
be a 30-foot- wide fire lane.

Proposed Sanitary Service:
A sanitary service lateral is proposed to be extended to the new facility on the South Portion at
the middle of the building.

Proposed Watermain & Water Services:
An 12-inch public watermain will be extended along the length of the South side of the site. An 8-



inch public watermain is proposed to be extended from this new watermain along the East, North
and West side of the site. The watermain will be designed in accordance with the City’'s standards

and requirements and will be submitted to the Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes,
and Energy (EGLE) for permitting.

Although a fire service and domestic water service will be needed for the proposed facility, the
proposed connection location(s) and size(s) are not known at this time and will be added to the
design drawings in the future. These service connections will be coordinated with the City and
installed in accordance with their standards and requirements.

Grading & Storm Water Management:
The building finished floor elevation is proposed to be located at 755-feet. The drives adjacent to
the building have been designed to drain away from the building and collected within a storm

sewer system. The parking lot will also be graded to drain to the proposed catch basins and
collected in a storm sewer system.

Landscaping & Buffers:

The proposed landscaping has been designed in accordance with the City’s zoning ordinance
and the

Lighting:
The proposed onsite lighting will be designed in accordance with the City’s zoning ordinance.

Lighting will be directed downward and away from adjacent properties. A lighting plan is included
in this submission packet.

For additional information, please refer to the project drawings.



Date:
Re:

Kentwood Planning Department

Brad Boomstra, P.E.

City Engineer

June 13, 2024

Third Coast Development

4175 60™ Street SE
41-18-36-300-020

We have completed our planning level review of the proposed site plans dated 5-22-2024 for the
above referenced project. Kentwood offers the following comments as the review process

proceeds:

Street / Sidewalk / Parking Lot:

L

Grading:

3.

The pavement within the commercial drive approach between the sidewalk and the
gutter pan must be concrete at least 6 inches thick.

For any curb cut which terminates less than five (5) feet from a construction joint, the
contractor shall remove and replace the existing curb to the next joint.

The sidewalk must be carried across the commercial drive. Where it crosses, it must
be at least 6” thick.

Include the City of Kentwood General Notes on the plan(s). These notes are required
for the work being performed in the East Paris Avenue right-of-way. Highway permit
conditions, specifications and required general plan notes are posted on the City’s
website, and can be accessed at http://www.ci.kentwood.mi.us (hover over “cITY
SERVICES” and “DEPARTMENTS” then click “ENGINEERING”, then click the “RIGHT-OF-
WAY” link near the top of the page).

Please identify at least one (1) benchmark on the plan.

Indicate and label the 1% chance (100-year) flood elevation on the site plan or add a
note that none exists on this site.

Indicate and label the wetland delineation line or add a note that none exist on this site.

Storm Sewer / Drainage:

1.

Provide a tributary area map and calculations to verify the capacity of the proposed and
existing storm pipes to carry a 10-year storm (or a 100-year event if no overland
floodway is provided). Use the Kentwood Storm Sewer Design Standards available on
the City’s website; they contain a Kentwood-specific IDF curve and time of



Third Coast Development
4175 60 Street

Page 2 of 5

concentration (T¢) nomograph. Use a minimum initial T¢ of 10 minutes. Maintain a

minimum cleansing velocity of 2.5 ft/sec in the pipes. Calculations must be sealed by
a registered engineer.

Detention Basin:

1.

On-site stormwater detention will be required for this parcel. Section 78-123 of the
City of Kentwood Ordinance requires that the new detention facility be sized for the
entire parcel in a fully developed condition. We will need to see these calculations. If
existing basins are to be used for stormwater detention, provide calculations verifying
their capacity to handle the runoff.

The amount of detention volume required may be based on an estimate of the
percentage of impervious surface area based on the Kent County Subdivision Drainage
Rules (short method #1), on the basis of 0.1 acre-ft per acre for the entire parcel (short
method #2) or, alternately, a tabulation of actual reservoir routing (long method).
Routing calculations usually result in the lowest required volume. The detention sizing

must be based on a 25-year storm. We will need to see detention sizing and release
calculations.

Kentwood allows a maximum detention release rate of 0.33 cfs/acre, based on the total
parcel size.

The emergency outlet pipe must be capable of carrying a 10-year, fully developed non-
detained storm flow. Please provide calculations to show that the pipe can carry this
flow.

An emergency spillway may also be used instead of an outlet pipe. Section V(E) of
the City of Kentwood Standard Specifications for Design and Construction of Storm
Detention Storage requires that the detention basin spillway “shall be constructed of
hot-rolled plant mix asphalt or concrete and must extend from the top of the berm to
the intersection with the outfall channel. All interfaces with native soil shall be toed
in.” Show details on the plans.

If you are using an existing detention basin that will serve this project, we are requesting

an inspection of the pond and an inspection repofc to verify the basin(s) will operate as
designed.

Soil Erosion and Sediment Control:

1.

Indicate and label the 1% chance (100-year) flood elevation on the SESC plan or add a
note that none exists on this site.

Indicate and label the wetland delineation line or add a note that none exist on this site.

Include a written description of the soil types of the exposed land area contemplated
for an earth change.

Place a note on the soil erosion control plan to indicate that existing and new catch
basins shall be protected with an inlet filter drop (silt sack). Straw bales or fabric placed
under the grate are NOT acceptable, and sediment traps alone are not sufficient to
provide adequate sediment filtration. Such a note might read, “EXISTING AND NEW



Third Coast Development
4175 60 Street

Page 3 of 5

CATCH BASINS SHALL BE PROTECTED WITH AN INLET FABRIC DROP (SILT SACK).” Include a
simple detail of the proposed silt sack on the Soil Erosion and Sediment Control plan.
We can provide you with an acceptable CAD detail upon request.

Place the following notes on the soil erosion control plan:

ALL SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL COMPLY WITH
ARTICLE 2 OF CITY OF KENTWOOD ORDINANCE 78 AND PART 91 OF PUBLIC ACT 451.

ALL SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROLS SHALL BE INSPECTED AND MAINTAINED ON
A DAILY BASIS AND IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING EVERY SIGNIFICANT RAINFALL EVENT.

ALL EXCESS SPOILS ARE TO BE REMOVED FROM THE SITE. OTHERWISE, STOCKPILES
MUST BE PROVIDED WITH TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT STABILIZATION MEASURES.

EXCESS DIRT IS NOT TO BE PLACED ON ANY AREAS ON OR ADJACENT TO THE SITE
WHERE THE PLAN DOES NOT SHOW THE AREA BEING DISTURBED. (This area of
disturbance, or grading limits, must be clearly shown on the site plan.)

SILT FENCING IS REQUIRED ALONG ALL DOWNSTREAM EDGES OF THE GRADING LIMITS
AND MUST REMAIN IN PLACE UNTIL VEGETATION IS UNIFORMLY RE-ESTABLISHED. THE
SILT FENCE MUST BE TOED IN A MINIMUM OF 6 INCHES ALONG ITS BASE. (Remember
that silt fences are intended to intercept sheet flow only and must always be installed
parallel with the ground contours. Silt fences must not cross ravines, overland
floodways, ditches, swales, etc. where concentrated flows occur.)

ALL DISTURBED BANKS EQUAL TO OR GREATER THAN 4:1 AND THE DETENTION BASIN
BANKS AND BOTTOM MUST BE COVERED WITH TOPSOIL, SEED AND NORTH AMERICAN
GREEN S$-150 (OR APPROVED EQUAL) EROSION CONTROL BLANKET. THIS BLANKET,
ALONG WITH THE NECESSARY STAPLES OR WOOD PEGS, SHALL BE PLACED PER
MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS. SEAMS SHALL BE PLACED PARALLEL TO THE
DIRECTION OF SURFACE RUNOFF. (Indicate such areas with shading or hatching on
the plan.)

ALL SOIL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO ANY EARTH
MOVING OPERATIONS AND SHALL BE MAINTAINED UNTIL VEGETATION IS UNIFORMLY RE-
ESTABLISHED AND THE SITE 1S PERMANENTLY STABILIZED. ‘

NO SEDIMENT SHALL BE TRACKED ONTO THE ADJACENT PUBLIC STREET AND IF IT DOES
OCCUR, IT SHALL BE CLEANED DAILY.

THE STORMWATER DETENTION BASIN IS TO BE THE FIRST ITEM OF EARTH MOVING AND
SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE INSTALLATION OF SOIL EROSION
CONTROL MEASURES.

Utilities (Sanitary & Water):

1.

The City of Grand Rapids owns, operates and maintains the sanitary sewer collection
and water distribution systems in this portion of Kentwood. Any alterations, extensions
or new connections to either of these systems will require approval from Grand Rapids.
Construction plans (drafting standards) and specifications for the proposed watermain
and sanitary sewer must conform to Grand Rapids requirements.



Third Coa

st Development

4175 60" Street

Page 4 of 5

Required Permits, Bonds, Fees [and Escrow]:

1.

Because this parcel is adjacent to a public street, over one (1) acre is being disturbed,
or is within 500 feet of a Jake or steam, a Permit for an Earth Change (fee $800) and a
$5,000 soil erosion control performance bond or an irrevocable letter of credit using
the City of Kentwood format will be required through Kentwood Engineering. The
Owner/Developer must sign the Permit for an Earth Change. Both the
Owner/Developer and the Contractor must be named on the bond. Please contact us if
you need a permit and/or a bond template form, or one can be accessed on the City’s
website at http://www.ci.kentwood.mi.us (hover over “CITY SERVICES” and
“DEPARTMENTS” then click “ENGINEERING”, then click the “SOIL EROSION AND STORM

WATER” link near the top of the page). There is a 365-day limit to complete the work
under this permit.

An NPDES Notice of Coverage will also be needed as the proposed area of disturbance
exceeds 5 acres. At the time the Earth Change permit is issued by the Kentwood, your
Notice of Coverage will immediately become effective as a “permit-by- rule” as soon
as the NOC has been properly filed and the appropriate fee is paid.

Your contractor will need a Drive Permit from Kentwood Engineering for the proposed
commercial drive into the East Paris Avenue right-of-way. A $10,000 annual ROW
bond or an irrevocable letter of credit using the City of Kentwood format and a
certificate of insurance (with the City of Kentwood named as additional insured) will
also be required. We will need to see a plan of the proposed commercial driveway at
aplan scale no greater than 1”=50. Contact us if you need a permit and/or bond form, -
or they can be accessed on the City’s website. Highway specifications, general
conditions and required plan notes are also posted on the City’s website.

A $30,000 Site Grading and Stormwater Management Bond or an irrevocable letter of
credit using the City of Kentwood format and an administrative fee of $750 will be
required through Kentwood Engineering. This bond is posted to assure that the plan,
once approved, is constructed in the field according to that plan. Both the
Owner/Developer and the Contractor must be named on the bond. Let us know if you

" need our bond template, or it can be accessed on the City’s website.

Please note that all required bonds and permit applications and fees must be submitted
to, and accepted by, Kentwood Engineering before any permits can be issued! There
will be no “partial” or “conditional” permits issued.

Miscellaneous / Reminders:

1.

Please be advised that at the completion of construction, a civil engineer or surveyor
will need to provide an as-built plan to the City of Kentwood with a certification by a
registered engineer stating that the site grading and the stormwater system were
constructed in accordance with the approved plans. A copy of the certification form is
available upon request or on the City’s website.

Remember that, for a Building Permit to be issued, other City departments (fire,
assessor, treasurer, water, planning) may have comments regarding this plan. Contact



Third Coast Development
4175 60™ Street
Page 5 of 5

Kentwood Inspections (Renee Hargrave, 554-0781) regarding building permit
application procedures, fees, plan requirements and approval status.

3. Once final approval by all departments has been granted, make sure the contractor has
the latest approved set of plans before beginning construction!

Should you have any questions regarding this department’s review, please feel free to contact our
office.

cc:  Kentwood Engineering Permit Staff



Ve ™
O 5852
Z x 380
w  §§3°
1) TE58,
< z §3g3
. 2
4175 60TH ST. SE ZEsfcopeEzsie
KENTWOOD, MI 49512
ZONING
—
I-PUD ( INDUSTRIAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT ) |__ Z _>J §
SETBACKS: Wl HE
. L= 233
FRONT YARD WIPARKNG 74 FEET M TABLE OF CONTENTS oo 5 w $
SIDE YARD WITH PARKING 3 b aan OO0 252
REARVARD 25 FEET MIN, SHEET G-100 COVER SHEET E K %
ek =T
SHEET V-101 EXISTING CONDITIONS & CIVILDEMO || £ > >89
*** BUILDING HEIGHT. THE HEI?HT OF BUILDINGS WITHIN THE_PUD SHATLL F_ VE RALL SITE AYOUT PLAN I]—: LID_I t o §
REQUIREMENTS, 15 USES SHALL BE L e LMITEDTO L1 HEIGHT SHEET C-100 O - <3S
SHEET C-101 SITE LAYOUT PLAN
e SHEET C-102  SITE LAYOUT PLAN
. _ )
\h/AVAAl\IIRLéEI%CUTSUERI:ISE;??S%C)Zé)gicj@FFICE+CORPORATE VEHICLES S tlEET C-ZOO OVERALL GRADING & SESC PLAN é
- I
rEourex somocTmamdospuces oHEET C-201 - DETAILED GRADING PLAN
TRUCK DobK(s): QeCS@ X SHEET C-202 DETAILED GRADING PLAN gt'
VERHEAD DOOR DOCKS: ' '

ADDITIONAL TRAI:\;_ER PARKING: 132 g}’ACES @ 12' X 50' S R EET C-203 STORM SEWER PLAN gé
TOTAL PROVIDED PARKING: 405 SPACES S N EET C'5O1 GENERAL DETAILS ;-;
N SHEET C-502  GENERAL DETAILS CONT. — o8

PROPERTY AR AT NG e e 53,665 ACRES SHEET C-503  KCRC DRIVEWAY DETAIL L B <9

PROPOSED BUILDING: 13.77 ACRES (600,000 SF) SH EET L-1 00 LAN DSCAP E PLANTlNG P LAN ID—: ,‘f 5 % ;

PAVEMENT: 10.36 ACRES (451,131 SF) U) (V)] 8 w E{J

TOTAL IMPERVIOUS AREA: 24.13 ACRES ':l_: S IJ—: n

L 3 E w O

TOTAL OPEN SPACE: 29.53 ACRES (45%) 5 ,,_2 = E h

WETLAND/DRAINS: 19.82 ACRES (863,239 SF) QO :r- % oo

OPEN SPACE EXCLUDING WETLANDS: 9.71 ACRES (32%)

LOCATION MAP NOT TO SCALE

z
o
5
2
7
z 3
g x
3 2
o] 42
il = < g
Q| [E]=]= g < §
S| |5(313]|z Zl®
ANEEEEREEE
0 c| < 313 Olz|O|lw]| 8
LEGEND SlZ|lalalZ|Z|>]|=] 2
8(215)|8]|8]|z| 3|2 =
HEHEAEEHER
DE SCR | PTION SECTION CORNER ¢ 6 UNDERGROUND GAS e o Bl e N S 2 g
SITE BENCHMARK £ E UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC 2(S]121818(2[3] &
THE LAND REFERRED TO HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE CITY OF KENTWOOD, COUNTY OF KENT, STATE OF SIZISISIEILIS] &
' ' SOIL BORING T T NDERGROUND TELEPHONE MEENMENERP
MICHIGAN, AND IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: © UNDERGROUN =PHON NEEEEEEEE
FOUND STEEL BAR —0—o0 CHAIN LINK FENCE : a
SR Project Manager
PARCEL D: FOUND IRON PIPE e "~ MINOR CONTOUR RYAN T. YSSELDYKE, PE
PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 36, TOWN 6 NORTH, RANGE 11 WEST, CITY OF KENTWOOD, KENT SET STEEL BAR ~— _——"""""— INDEX CONTOUR Vertical Datum | Horz. Datum

COUNTY, MICHIGAN, DESCRIBED AS: COMMENCING AT THE SOUTH 1/4 CORNER OF SAID SECTION 36; THENCE SOUTH

e dfce oo x

E .

90 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST 695.42 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4 TO THE “CA::::; ASIN ASPHALT Drawn by

PLACE OF BEGINNING OF THIS DESCRIPTION; THENCE SOUTH 90 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST 1277.51 PETER BULTEN, P.E.
FEET ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 36 TO A POINT WHICH IS SOUTH 90 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 00 HYDRANT » Chedked by Date
SECONDS EAST 660.00 FEET FROM THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION: THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 00 WATER VALVE &, s | CONCRETE Survey | .

MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST 469.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 81 DEGREES 12 MINUTES 15 SECONDS WEST 194.43 FEET; UTILITY POLE - o

THENCE SOUTH 77 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST 61.43 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 61 DEGREES 35 MINUTES e LGHTPOLE CTTTTTT GRAVEL

00 SECONDS WEST 474.19 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE NORTH 02 DEGREES 01 o . ‘ Struc.

MINUTE 30 SECONDS WEST 1065.97 FEET ALONG SAID WEST LINE TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH 1/2 OF SAID ©  CLEANOUT LA |. ,
SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 55 MINUTES 36 SECONDS EAST 2096.37 FEET ALONG SAID NORTH . WETLANDS HET Project Number
LINE; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST 1042.46 FEET: THENCE SOUTH 90 DEGREES 00 Know what's below DECIDUOUS TREE 22-11-027
MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST 112.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST 280.00 FEET .- LIGHT DUTY PAVEMENT :

TO THE PLACE OF BEGINNING. Call before you dig. Sheet Tite

COVER

- HEAVY DUTY PAVEMENT S H E ET

(FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY)
TAX PARCEL ID: 41-18-36-300-020
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 4175 60TH STREET SE, KENTWOOD, MI 49512

Sheet No.




DESCRIPTION

THE LAND REFERRED TO HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE CITY OF KENTWOOD, COUNTY OF KENT, STATE OF
MICHIGAN, AND IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

PARCEL D:

PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 36, TOWN 6 NORTH, RANGE 11 WEST, CITY OF KENTWOOD, KENT
COUNTY, MICHIGAN, DESCRIBED AS: COMMENCING AT THE SOUTH 1/4 CORNER OF SAID SECTION 36; THENCE
SOUTH 90 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST 695.42 FEET ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4
TO THE PLACE OF BEGINNING OF THIS DESCRIPTION; THENCE SOUTH 90 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST
1277.51 FEET ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 36 TO A POINT WHICH IS SOUTH 90 DEGREES 00 MINUTES
00 SECONDS EAST 660.00 FEET FROM THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 00
MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST 469.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 81 DEGREES 12 MINUTES 15 SECONDS WEST 194.43 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 77 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST 61.43 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 61 DEGREES 35 MINUTES
00 SECONDS WEST 474.19 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE NORTH 02 DEGREES 01
MINUTE 30 SECONDS WEST 1065.97 FEET ALONG SAID WEST LINE TO THE NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH 1/2 OF SAID
SOUTHWEST 1/4, THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 55 MINUTES 36 SECONDS EAST 2096.37 FEET ALONG SAID NORTH
LINE; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST 1042.46 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 90 DEGREES 00
MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST 112.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST 280.00 FEET
TO THE PLACE OF BEGINNING.

(FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY)
TAX PARCEL ID: 41-18-36-300-020
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 4175 60TH STREET SE, KENTWOOD, MI 49512

CIVIL DEMOLITION NOTES:

1. THE BOUNDARY AND TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY WAS COMPLETED BY ANOTHER FIRM AND PROVIDED TO HEI BY THE CLIENT. HEi IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ACCURACY
OF THE SURVEY INFORMATION OR ANY DESIGN DISCREPANCIES RESULTING FROM THE PROVIDED SURVEY INFORMATION.

2. SEE BOUNDARY AND TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY SHEET FOR PROPERTY, EASEMENT, BENCHMARK, ETC. INFORMATION.

3. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES HAVE BEEN SHOWN BASED ON SURFACE EVIDENCE AND RECORD INFORMATION AVAILABLE.
RESPONSIBILITY TO VERIFY UTILITY LOCATIONS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

4. DURING CONSTRUCTION, CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT ALL EXISTING AND NEW CONSTRUCTION FROM DAMAGE, SHOULD ANY DAMAGE OCCUR, CONTRACTOR SHALL
MAKE ALL NECESSARY REPAIRS AT NO COST TO THE OWNER. THE PAVED ROADWAY SHALL BE SWEPT CLEAN AS NEEDED, BUT AT LEAST ONCE A WEEK.

5. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE BARRIERS, AS NECESSARY, TO PREVENT PEDESTRIAN AND VEHICULAR TRAFFIC FROM ENTERING THE CONSTRUCTION SITE.
6. CALL MISS DIG AT LEAST THREE (3) WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO STARTING ANY EXCAVATION.

7. REMOVAL {TEMS ARE SHOWN BASED ON BEST AVAILABLE INFORMATION AND ARE SHOWN SCHEMATICALLY. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VISIT THE SITE PRIOR TO VERIFY
THE EXTENT OF WORK REQUIRED.

8. REMOVE ALL STRUCTURES, CONCRETE CURB, CONCRETE PAVING, ASPHALT PAVING, TREES, STUMPS, UTILITIES, AND OTHER EXISTING SITE FEATURES WITHIN THE LIMITS
OF DEMOLITION. ALL DEMOLITION MATERIALS SHALL BE REMOVED FROM THE SITE UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED AND DISPOSED OF IN A MANNER ACCEPTABLE TO THE
LOCAL AUTHORITY HAVING JURISDICTION.

9. ALL UTILITY LINES SHOWN “X" QUT SHALL BE PHYSICALLY REMOVED ALONG WITH STRUCTURES AND APPURTENANCES. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONFIRM UTILITY LINES
REMOVED WILL NOT IMPACT UTILITIES TO REMAIN.

10. ALL REMOVALS OF PAVEMENT, CONCRETE, CURB AND GUTTER, ETC. SHALL BE PERFORMED TO THE NEXT JOINT BEYOND THE LIMITS OF REMOVAL. ALL REMOVALS
SHALL BE PERFORMED BY SAWCUTTING.

11. PROTECT ALL TREES AND SHRUBS NOT SCHEDULED FOR REMOVAL. DO NOT OPERATE EQUIPMENT, STORE, STOCKPILE, OR PARK WITHIN DRIP LINE. HOLD NECESSARY
DISTURBANCE TO A MINIMUM.

12. ALL TREE STUMPS SHALL BE REMOVED TO BELOW GRADE BY EITHER GRINDING OR COMPLETE REMOVAL IN ALL CASES NO WOODCHIPS AND/OR STUMPS SHALL BE
LEFT IN PLACE.

13. IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO COORDINATE ALL UTILITIES REMOVALS WITH PROPERTY OWNER AND UTILITY PROVIDER.

IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S

14. ALL WORK IN ROAD RIGHTS OF WAY SHALL BE COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH MDOT, KENT COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION, AND THE CITY OF KENTWOOD.
15. SEE OTHER SHEETS IN PLAN SET FOR MORE INFORMATION.

DEMO LEGEND

X X X X X UTILITY REMOVAL

FOREST REMOVAL
m CONCRETE / ASPHALT REMOVAL

TREE REMOVAL

50 100 200
e e e —
SCALE 1" =100

T e . H

p 7 Y R 77 4 - ) Y \ N -
%9 +7AIDE EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC & R e ® % R~ N S X g - ®
UTILITIES TO Tgf.cfrlsKDRA‘N j ;o ¥ | | AN R \, % X .
. DIST ; NN 4 BN N g o .
o PER LIBER 2411, PAGE 408 ) “ \ {%‘" N AN N N ~ -, /
To} ) ; ; ' : SR SN r j
0 i L ey RN : QNE. . 1/2, SW 1/4, 'SEC, 36
f i\ A v oy T [
| I S 2 SB9B5'36"E |, 209637’
P ] At oy e g
I ’ _/ - e B ®
| ~ N IR 0SSN T
q’ % 2 ;\‘ -‘; aern, H o b \\M’ S / J:‘ T \w e - e o /i ”
| | PRODT}E C:?é\ - EX. 30'\CQ_VERT ’:\ ; Ls LT j; / {«'5 N i - e )
\\\ ‘ /R (Tpr /\\ \\ ‘ INV.N 241'21 N o o, \} —_— iid i \\ . \\z\ - - T —— —_ . \*ﬂ
>Nk \ TV OSSR ‘ t ~—~_ _ . %eqk
;7 Ne. % PN N i; é ~LAL \/DW ) ?5"\'@\
0?‘ t’ ‘ ,‘,— _ ~ §}5;§ PPN S i Ve ;vw"m o s [ - / c:,\
@0%;‘;2@%?3 "REMQUE EX_ FOREST 0y Nom M =d @;ﬁda -300-020 - o
O T ] g4 S X Ry S { »
e ..\ 417560th STREET.SE .~ _-
, P % 77 CONVAINS 5592 ACRES | |~/ L o -
PROTECT EX. ASPHALT NS loy ~ A (e B P Y / = REMOVEEX.® - R 4 /
TO REMAIN (TYP) REMOVEEX AN VG : ~ S / OVERHEAD e -
TREE (TYR) Lo & . UTILITY POLE PRI D /
_ P for ’j e e . ,\‘(lr}() St e \
Y S TR /
et Alé'}
SAWCUT AND REMOVE EX
CONC. SIDEWALK (TYP)
SAWCUT AND .
REMOVEEXCURBE | | LI 7 L ey s e i, "~ el / N X
GUTTER (TYP) it ) \\ N RN e SOV D \ ®1
N EER H % } 3 . —n, < Y ’:‘ {, ~- —_ .
N PROTECTEX{TREETO 5 ™ o N\ %\\\\, N N hig
A ‘REMAlN“(IYPWES‘S 7 e T VS \\_\ O N -~ RS 1
. QTHERWISENQTED) | { SO ~o N N ‘
: N . ; X Y 7 / N “3 5N REMPVE EX.
7 ; 3 ( i e . — ~ . N / ~ l——
5 8 Sy o s/ > .t ~ * ~ TREE (TYP)
w L ~ul PN A S
o > 2 (73] i . - At
wlod | R Ve — REMOVE, SALVAGE AND
20T EE Wy o e EXISTING STORW 4", JRELOCATE EX. ®.
v © i ,/ | - . s, :
Ba oY 1 IHGE v e i N e E I P T L N e 7 o 7 o Ty h TS e T TN T S T ’ OVERHEAD
— &3 e UTILITY POLE
n =
< 3
L

PROTECTEX{; /, LIS,

SN EL C/TO”“ \z <

remn L0
p

PROTECT EX.
SAN.MH TO
REMAIN (TYP)

o T N RM=740,6 :
A4 " 42 CULVERT N 1B WUEW = Izé - : . -
= \ \g o4 ) - E:' I’y e e ———
: by \ E e e . M MO NS B4y ] NS e Aoe] o< e, ———
% 8 N i% Q -
S Pl . SO o
'\QP\ W o S
P‘% g? \\\\\\ l W
S L 2T o5 ~ PROTECT X,
: 4 N\ I\Y %VATERMAIN o~ _
- T 8 N90'00'W EMAIN ~o
‘ | S = 5 o 112.00° R~ @ S
| | g3 2 o all, . SAWCUT AND ™. N ~o
| | 2% Eg=0 b g RUOEEX U N
l | 8 “““ =Th B | 1EY | o EX. 42" CULVERT ASPHALY (TYP) @ ~
‘ p L | > zf &8 L | Q INV. W. 738.43 ~o L S
| o | k58 Al 42 CULVERT ~o % A
N =28 35 l INV. W. 738.41 ~
@
|l N3 | =k 35 Ll = N %
I | 2= £8 R 8 ~_ ~
F=) i
| | & L& Al S ~
¥ | 5= A N\ |8 RN
] ~
%+ : == = T ) f/ | l —=
- T S L pa B N\ N
| | (N e
L | ! -
N90°00°00"W 1277.51° SAWCUT AND
REMOVE EX
“ \‘\9\55 CENTERLINE OF P.0.B. ASPHALT (TYP)
R0 60TH STREET PARCEL D
5“‘;&’9‘\?& (PUBLIC R.O.W.)
¢\

& S. LINE, SW 1/4, SEC. 36

(U TR EQ
T8
Z 2?5
SM c N
—-— ONC
oy g
(24 e c?
> c Do
W g85w
W SEEsg
Z 823
ko JE =]
L] C .g
-I‘D %§£
=2
Jz -
L |
> | —
52y o  2F6g
STV o OB S woL
>335 28,5205
wEEe2Pc8592%w
%mgg:mmasﬂ.ggg
2o E20~F w550
2g8EsgsisgEed
32T 25855535%
290865598552,
FUG3cn6olEESGS
— v
o
— Z >8
LuLu
N LW HE
ODc’)
L= 223
o)
O ous
z_
OO0 &&=
(%)
0 - EIQEE
LL rrsag
So— '-_D
I LU Ezg
QO &%
<wH O

CITY OF KENTWOOD, KENT COUNTY, MICHIGAN

PT. OF THE SW 1/4 SEC. 36, T6N, R11W

F o
w 3
LLILU§
mCDE
= %a
) O
c 52
£ 3F
OL‘I\)E
O X
<z>'<moou.|u.o

Issued for
Description
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN TO OWNER

10/11/2023| REVISED LAYOUT
10/23/2023] REVISED LAYOUT

Plans are preliminary & incomplete until ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION

11/06/2023| ADDED NORTH LAYOUT
05/22/2024] PUD / SITE PLAN APPROVAL

02/21/2024] SITE PLAN
05/17/2024] REV. LAYOUT

Date
6/23/2023

Project Manager
RYAN T. YSSELDYKE, PE

Vertical Datum Horz. Datum

Drawn by
PETER BULTEN, P.E.

Checked by Date
Survey

Civil

Struc.

L A

HEI Project Number

22-11-027

Sheet Title

EXISTING
CONDITIONS &
DEMO PLAN

Sheet No.

. V-101 )




155.76'

3
(@]
g
o
o
(@]
zZ
O
R
SN
?«\écx\oo\'
L ©
D L}
Z o
5SF8
w<oF
30 %2
Bx 3
=
i @ ,;
o Dz
— 9.'/_—'_
n =
E’:J 3
S
gﬁﬁﬁ*
N

o 50' 100' 200’

SCALE 1" =100

LAYOUT & UTILITY NOTES:

& S. LINE, SW 1/4, SEC. 36

| ® | !
g/} |
o/ SEE SHEET C-102 FOR il i
AN I
|/ DETAIL !
/ . |
/® o | — SEE SHEET C-101 FOR .:
L DETAIL ,I
/@ “
b < | I
|
b 4 |
&~
Lo Ic — oL [ fe
1 R o] e |
| DISTRICT o =11
\ PER LIBER 2411, PAGE 408 ' I 8 | I
|/ L] N. LINE, S. 1/2, SW 14, SEC. 36 P.0.B. S 17 :I
T PARCEL C @
Lo by ——— ———kF209637* —————Fp————— ————— —— T
e.. o.
|
I
===  PARCEL D .
1 | 41-J8-36-300-020 I .
| 4175 60th STREET SE o.
= ol CONTAINS 55.92 ACRES
Tle |
191 |
L | PROROSED
- 5 WAREHOUSE 5
TP . I BUIHDING 2
] “ 600.408.SF . f
3! d FFE 4 755.0 ’
| |
B 2 :
@@@@@ IR . . .
| g S
I 1
e
| 2 ¥ 1090.0
.... el
% I | C
1D 2 =
) ‘
............ |
\\ '
S~ - ::::_"j N /_mumwmmmme
_— ot “oH |
= Ral— S:gMANHOLEa‘ — N AN - - 5\“"4-
RIM =748.70 I
e B L3210 |
CEXOANANHOLE i =t
T NV EW= 729 g =7 :
‘ | | G _
=1
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ |
| NSO'00'W ~ ™~
gb T . = 112,00 r\\ ¥
g 3 g g=F | [=] S
p 8 \\\\\ —._'._J ] —ug.: — q ~ g
g+ sy o ! | g ~
2 1 HE |
58 22 Il |
...... 2k =y 1 I
4 & —v'—gl%— — — | Ll 8 |
] Yo o
—-— 4 HH B
g Z L)\l
_____________________________________________________ A AN U -
1 L | L] ] L L L ] ﬁ | L] _
N90"00'00"W 1277.51°
\‘\9\3‘5 CENTERLINE OF P.0.B.
2o 60TH STREET PARCEL D
<OF ot
%‘“;%Q*?& (PUBLIC R.O.W.)
<

-

N

. SITE DESIGN WAS DEVELOPED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE

GEOTECHNICAL REPORT AND SOIL BORINGS COMPLETED FOR THE PROJECT. CONTRACTOR SHALL
ACQUIRE A COPY OF THE GEOTECHNICAL REPORT AND SOIL BORING INFORMATION. SOIL
CONDITIONS MAY VARY FROM THE GEOTECHNICAL INFORMATION, WHICH MAY AFFECT THE SITE
DESIGN, EARTHWORK QUANTITIES, USABLE SOILS, AND SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION
CONTROL PRACTICES. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY DESIGN ENGINEER AND GEOTECHNICAL
ENGINEER IF SITE CONDITIONS VARY FROM SOILS INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE GEOTECHNICAL
INFORMATION.

1T IS THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO VERIFY THAT ALL NECESSARY PERMITS AND

APPROVALS HAVE BEEN ACQUIRED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

. CALL MISS DIG AT LEAST THREE (3) WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO STARTING ANY EXCAVATION.

4. WETLANDS MAY EXIST WITHIN THE PROPOSED SITE IMPROVEMENTS. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT

DISTURB THE WETLAND AREAS, UNLESS PERMITTED BY THE EGLE. CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLETE
ALL WETLAND DISTURBANCE WORK IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE EGLE / USACE JOINT PERMIT AND
EGLE STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS. IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO ACQUIRE A
COPY OF THE EGLE / USACE JOINT PERMIT.

. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT ENGINEER IF ANY DISCREPANCIES ARE DETERMINED BETWEEN SITE

LAYOUT DIMENSIONS AND ACTUAL SITE CONDITIONS.

. COORDINATE ALL UTILITY CONSTRUCTION WITH UTILITY PROVIDER, AS REQUIRED.
. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THAT THERE ARE NO UTILITY CONFLICTS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.
. ALL SANITARY SEWER WORK SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CURRENT

EDITION OF THE CITY OF KENTWOOD WATER & SEWER STANDARDS & SPECIFICATIONS.

. ALL WATERMAIN, WATER SERVICES, AND FIRE PROTECTION LINES SHALL BE INSTALLED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE CURRENT EDITION OF THE CITY OF KENTWOOD WATER & SEWER
STANDARDS & SPECIFICATIONS.

10. ALL WORK WITHIN THE PUBLIC ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY WILL REQUIRE A PERMIT AND OR APPROVAL

FROM THE CITY OF KENTWOOD AND SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CURRENT
EDITION OF THEIR STANDARDS & SPECIFICATIONS.

11. COORDINATE ALL SIGNAGE REMOVAL AND RELOCATION WITHIN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY WITH CITY OF

KENTWOOD.

12. SITE CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBLE TO CONNECT EXISTING AND PROPOSED BUILDING TO WATER

SERVICE AND SANITARY SEWER LATERAL, REFER TO PLUMBING PLANS FOR CONNECTION LOCATION
AND DETAILS.

13. REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS FOR BUILDING DIMENSIONS. BUILDING SHALL BE STAKED

BASED ON FOUNDATION PLAN. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY ENGINEER IF THERE ARE
DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN THE BUILDING AND SITE DRAWINGS.

14. ONSITE LIGHTING SHALL DIRECTED DOWNWARD AND AWAY FROM ADJACENT PROPERTIES AS

REQUIRED PER THE CITY OF KENTWOOD ZONING ORDINANCE.

15. SITE SIGNAGE SHALL MEET THE STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS OF THE CITY OF KENTWOOD

ZONING ORDINANCE. A SIGN PERMIT SHALL BE ACQUIRED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

16. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO MEETING THE STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS OF

THE LOCAL NOISE ORDINANCE FOR ALL CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES.

17. SEE OTHER SHEETS IN PLAN SET FOR MORE INFORMATION.

FLOOD NOTE:

BY SCALED MAP LOCATION AND GRAPHIC PLOTTING ONLY,
THIS PROPERTY LIES IN

ZONE C (AREAS OF MINIMAL FLOODING)
AND IS NOT IN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA
PER THE FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP
CITY OF KENTWOOD, KENT COUNTY, MICHIGAN

MAP NUMBER: 26010700108
EFFECTIVE DATE: NOVEMBER 18, 1981

DO E©
HE
Z 2524
-— ON T D
oy 0P
zﬂﬁ 5T 2¢
w S5
Ww Z52e
Z SE38
— gL
Jw %%-
230
Z ©
-IUJ =
> B
C o °==C
225055355388
PE L LEE8OSEER
S8ERE- 52 =5l
CorsEsvcg88%328
FESES S E 428 50
PETEPOL583859
2PRS 25028 E @
FUTD®cNWAoacEEQRGS
o
- Z %8
W YE
<= gag
x 38
o) y &
ouws
OO0 25>
0 - aJEEQ
LLI frc_vg
xS =3
— "_D
T W g=2
N kgg
- <D O
Z
<
)
T
O
Eéi
=
X =
)
=z
o O
(=S
N -
8=
. W
|_ 8!
w 5 »g
w ¢ =8
wY T
X os E:E
I._I— . W=z
2= TR
) o X
EO Fuw
J:EBEE w O
T Oi
OKZ _E
O ¥ oo
Z°<m00mu(9

Z
Q

'_

O

>

@

=

»

m 5

w o

g o

3 2

e @] )0
— - <u3.|
Ol |2 - 3l @
Y 3 ) xl|?
ol = o &|E
D ’u—'ll—t—ﬁ <.
S al212 z| e
ol|olx 51’

Al IRl =322
75) 0:<5n: oSlaf E
—f |} Ol=zl0lwl| 8
.QZQQZS>":.E
al=|w]lw]n S| D] s
wl>1>5]|a [a)
glelala|8|elalS] &
ola|x|x|<|o|x|E]| E
£

I M MMM E
SIRISIRISIRIR]
Sl<elaslol=Ic]|&] ®
M N EEBNNE
HEEEEEEEE

Project Manager

RYAN T. YSSELDYKE, PE
Vertical Datum Horz. Datum

Drawn by

PETER BULTEN, P.E.

Checked by
Survey

Date

Civil

Struc.

L. A

HE! Project Number

22-11-027

Sheet Title

OVERALL
LAYOUT
PLAN

Sheet No.

__C-1

00




\ OL1Z-266-919 4 8£65-266-9L9 L "99) 20IMIBS BY) . . . NOLLONYLSNOD ¥O4 a3NSSI 1#un ajejdwooul g Aeuiwijeud aie sue|d )
W00 BULISSUIBUSPUE|IOY MMWM - Mmﬂw%%h“mwrmm £0S6¥ IN 'SAIdVY ANVHO NVOIHOIN ALNNOD LN3X dOOMLN3IY 40 ALID [o IYAOHddY NV1d 31IS/ dnd |veozizeiso| & |€
99/€-£2i6Y uebiyol ‘puelioH lleys suonejuasaidaIsiw 102 3LINS 3N LS NVOIHOIW S¥S ML LY .ZO._. .@m” Omw .w\ } >>m dHL u_o ‘1d d LNOAV A3 |ve0e/LL/50 _m_n._, .w. Wwle N~ — T
PIEASINE 12A00H 02z 10 SaBLE TonPucoShL AT3SOY Qvdeg U ‘NLLY 2 e BIE | %8 Slwaz| O
soopes eursojod 2156¥ I ‘GOOMLNIN o g & E<| EQ S| v
0 LNOAV1 @3SIAY [ez0z/eeiol |« @ ~ —
R INENElRENE e 1 T aza|
ONIYIINIONSI au} 40 no Buisue 43S IS H109G.LY (s LNOAV1 G3SIA3Y |e202/11/01 | § > | § 21 z2 M o C
9soy} 0} payiwy| Jou g v HINMO OL NV1d 3LIS AYVYNIWNINTIYd | €202/€2/9 .Ma - m > ¥ 2 w (qV] 2 o]
Buipnjoul ‘Swie|o jje pue : = Zls 208 @ ; o = z
ANVI1ICH | & 1SVOO Q¥lIHL 133418 W09 = sssbsie PRI T L
( / sJokaning ey ) .hO% Umzww_ S g m..m a |5 a|S| & W._ 5 5 \
=
o
o
o
i
N 5 _..1: (201-0 133HS NO @3LVD0T
i = NOILYNNILNOD 33S) aNIT HOLYW
Mnu _ ' I N D IS I D B s R T D B . _ J \ ]
— ¥
_ | ¥
|
> _ _ _ d _ (ol
_ \ | =
L] 2
_ \ I &=
_ | | , | =
|
1 h g | I
[{°]
. A ts R
> i B e | V !
S < ' o 08828 ijllhi%lll_
Sz > . e B<SES
g & = L > 8 §2844 | / /_/_
a = _ o X CEDSww _ |
> E_ - S 2 EuEY3 ¥ | wez
33 o83 = b w B _ / | 288
= O Z O o _ | WWQ _ / _ 3
e ] = ; _ I 0 Q- ==
(O w I wi O=w Z
56 TIo u _ 254 _ I 35 3
_ 5 z
an ow 5 O = w > .
W< o< _ | T2 Ly |3 =
D= o+ Z amo |
ow ouw | | ! o
5o 54 L] A | gy
TR L |/ | 22
> ©
i y Bt
_ a 3 |/ 5 > 5
Al E 3 I | sis
_ _ G W 5 I £8S
L1 z 2 1 N3 _
4 | g ~ D - _y \“\_
=3 [ & 3 B32 g e
sd | 28 8 o 9Fh B L 5 |
a _ 26 =z eI v e S|
== 2~ a=on B | o |
_ =X O x< x 2 uw
) D+ _ . _ X _
— _ Z o - <o o X nU\uu
< 7 =08 / _ o e |
[ g o R - RS
a wnw s oC <
= _ iy £z Il 9=
(@ m _ _ o w r ! > =z4
a S " | - |
o T _ | Wv E ! & _ w §
L a XS | 2 =
| g/ b Esg
L | B
Fm——————— = L __ N i _ MM o | | &3e
I

o= h
-
8=z b @S 2z
ok Qo t = 77
o & . < o
o 3 %) a 5
o - (@] o
o m o
e O a.
IS =z
(@] —
. S B
o (&}
= |
O d 5;
0 N
Dx<
R285.0' ¢ %uwmm
0 -+
RS & O
3 a vy
= 9
= ®
oo
@ —
Nl =
Mw.u... o <w I
O «~ U_lnbh.U
n O CNM
il KM 17,
ED =W wl
ow =2z
© i WD.F& r—— - ———
m DEE
5" Beps O
3 =S=EL _
o GnnmAD
m B @y T —
= Ll \l
Z i w /
~ =
93
%D
53 |
# | |
/ q
_ W (
_ - (]
o
_ 1 = W .
523 xES \ | 3 N (]
Q=S w8 19 _ o
i W Al a
HG:.I._ I © AN &
2k 32 g
o =5 > <C / | 3
<C
<= - w &
xwo < / 3 | Fd
Sxg S / _ 9
a B o / \ 8
[T a w _ Q.
g o 2 & / \ 2 /
o W & / W M _ &
175}
/ _
| \
/
— ~—
_ =
[-2]
=
.‘4/ n
w
o
5
>
z
o — — — —
3 |
. |
[ I
533 _
HWC |
fop -
usd 53 O
M.Maew W%C
o w o (&) _
<@ ©
> = 5> L
. w
U o
g o L =)
T o > A | ==
& a w _ mm
o w
X O Lo
a =3
S 225
%) Lwim
e i & m & \
PO EdS _ € o AR /
X w0 7:5 /
BaWnn..u | n 3 //
T eN \ //
i e i B\
w = -4 \
aBEL >> \ \
AAS ZzZ // /
AR R \ VA
- = { \ \
5 I _ \ // -
o | W p— A\
o E llllllllllllllll ’;b’
N D

o 3 9¢ '03S ‘#/L MS AN ‘M ®
3 w9
wl ! )
1 2y 89 8 S35
>z X 3} O Y b ©z=a
RS D C Lze I £ aid (‘m0"y onend)
.uw\ Bas S B REG O & BG4 INNIAVY Sivd LSV3
k\ oA < Bux i< oo
aQnQ BEws BE- BF s 9Zuw
%Y ¥0 2354 S5 85 SE3 84 40 INMRALNIO
%0 o@ 4S5 824 490
N\ \“ %BE 30 mV.B_m_
cvmvnb =g S5
Ay
oow oowm




22—

I I
PROPOSED PROP. VALLEY GUTTER
HYDRANT ] SEE DETAIL A6 SHEET Pigggiﬁ?
S S C-501 PROP. 8"
____________ -L_‘_____.________________i__.__________ —— — WATERMAIN e
________ e — — — %
2
I 5
3
w
PROPOSED
I WARBHOUSE
BUILDING
600.900 SF
I FFE ¥ 755.0
% PROPOSED 7' INTEGRATED
= WALK & CURB
g . SEE DET A2 & A3 SHT C-501 PROPOSED 5' WIDE RAMP ——]
Zo SIDEWALK
= S PROPOSED SEE DET A2 SHT C-501
Q 8" THICK COCNRETE PROPOSED 7' INTEGRATED WALK & CURB —
O tH TRUCK DOCK (TYP) DUB DOWN FLUSH WITH PAVEMENT AT
T SEE DETAIL A1 BARRIER FREE SPACES
%) ; SHEET C-501 SEE DET A2 & A3 SHT C-501
L
[®) ]
= 6" SAN LAT
) NV 2 740.0 PROPOSED STAIRS UP TO
T = ' BUILDING FFE
g g SEE DET C2 SHT C-502
<0 PROPOSED PROPOSED
=3 OIL/WATER !
SEPARATOR 8" THICK COCNRETE
TRUCK DOCK (TYP)
SEE DETAIL A1
HYDRANT
1090.0'
PROPOSED 4" D.I. DOMESTIC PROPOSED 6"
WATER SERVICE SAN LATERAL
PROPOSED 6" D.l.
PROPOSED 10" D.I. FIRE HYDRANT LINE
SUPPRESSION PLACE 191' OF 6"
SANITARY LATERAL
@ 2.0% MIN.
PROPOSED SAN N
SAMPLING MH
RIM = 747.66
INV = 745.34
T -
_________ PROP RE-LOCA
8" SAN LAT OPOSED RE-LOCATED POWER LINE §: %
_ INV=73225 | : o =
— O O~ ———0H : ~—on—L— o —— o —— o ——on——5 =
| NN LN E
EX. SAN. MANHOLE N ) AN d\ N
RIM =748.70 I AN N I ~ <
18" INV SE/W = 732,40 |
|
| ~
~ |
—_— :F .y
[

MATCH LINE (SEE CONTINUATION

LOCATED ON THIS SHEET)

PROPOSED 5' WIDE
PAINTED CROSSWALK

PROP. VALLEY GUTTER
SEE DETAIL A6 SHEET
C-501

PROPOSED 5' WIDE
INTEGRAL SIDEWALK
SEE DET A2 & A3 SHT C-501

PROP

CURBR GUTTER

e

|l

&

DSED HEAD

ET A2 & A3
502

PROP. VARIABLE HEIGHT
RETAINING WALL
SEE DETAIL C1 SHEET C-501

MATCH LINE (SEE CONTINUATION
LOCATED ON THIS SHEET)

o 25' 50' 100'
e ey =T —
SCALE 1" = 50"

PROPOSED LIGHT DUTY PAVEMENT
SEE DET A7 SHT C-501

PROPOSED HEAVY DUTY PAVEMENT
SEE DET A5 SHT C-501

——

—
—

| b PROPOSED HEAD
| CURB & GUTTER
| SEE DET A2 & A3
| | SHT C-502

|

i

T © ©
O §8 57
Z B9 5
S 2da
— ON LT O
oy o?
Zﬂﬂ BT 2L
2 C 5o
W 885w
T
L2 i
N =
4 N;o%
g <€y
—_—— :-N
I-I‘D 2§%
s
Z )
Lu | o
> ‘5_
529 o o8&ES
232 88 E,2%¢
~2250528E528
PE L EE8OSEER @
SEE85-g O E= of
PeeE3fsB gEed
BETE 22558858
29D -G552865 20
FUuc3oen6eEELRS
I > O
|_ Z 7 N
LuLLI
o W a)%co
<= 823
N
O gus
z._
OO0 2E=
%)
') — uJEEQ
LLI trng
XS =3
— "_D
T W =2
0 28
<3O
-4
<
O
I
&)
EIE
=
=
x =
z =2
© O
= O
o =
nZ
. W
F_ &3!
N -
m 9 =8
ws =8
XX os =2
l_l— - Nz
(s m] w wl
o IX
EO ko
.C:&;E w O
jad O
oORrz ~E
«— L = =
O Fx 0o
§'<moou.|u.(95
|_
[®]
o}
14
l_
2
& 3
g @
3 Q
[a]
ol B gl
Ol |2 - 3l
S| | (3] | ElE
°© z
D Lll—'ll—l—g <|5
2 (218[l2] | [3(2
| IZI2I12[E] [=|3]2
7)) n:5<n: =3 'Y RS
_—l ] <|0jz|O|w] 8
.930::23>—ts
HEHHENSBRER
slelunju|lalEla]s] 8
olaje|e|<|ojc|a] g
o|RI8121313[3] &
alolelololaelol o
glslelalals|g)] g
ela|=|S|8|S|E|]] @
HEEEEEEEE

Project Manager
RYAN T. YSSELDYKE, PE

Vertical Datum Horz. Datum

Drawn by
PETER BULTEN, P.E.

Checked by Date
Survey

Civil

Struc.

L. A.

HEI Project Number

22-11-027

Sheet Title

SITE
LAYOUT
PLAN

Sheet No.

_ C-102




4 )

GRADING & STORM SEWER NOTES:
P RO P O S E D 1. IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO VERIFY THAT ALL NECESSARY PERMITS AND APPROVALS HAVE

BEEN ACQUIRED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.
CO N ST R U CTI O N S C H E D U L E 2. SITE DESIGN WAS DEVELOPED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE GEOTECHNICAL
REPORT AND SOIL BORINGS COMPLETED FOR THE PROJECT. CONTRACTOR SHALL ACQUIRE A COPY OF THE
GEOTECHNICAL REPORT AND SOIL BORING INFORMATION. SOIL CONDITIONS MAY VARY FROM THE
P 025 GEOTECHNICAL INFORMATION, WHICH MAY AFFECT THE SITE DESIGN, EARTHWORK QUANTITIES, USABLE
A CTIVITY SOILS, AND SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL PRACTICES. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY DESIGN

ER IF SITE CO ONS VARY FROM SOILS MATION CONTAINE
JNE |Jauy |aue |seet. Joct. |nov. | pec. | may |JuNe | oy | aue. | sepr. N T CEOTEC AL O ENCINEER IF SITE CONDITION LS INFOR INED

ING DAY: ING ANY EX .
INSTALL CONTROLS j 3. CALL MISS DIiG AT LEAST THREE (3) WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO STARTING CAVATION

4. WETLANDS MAY EXIST WITHIN THE PROPOSED SITE IMPROVEMENTS. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT DISTURB THE
CLEARING ) WETLAND AREAS, UNLESS PERMITTED BY THE EGLE. CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLETE ALL WETLAND
DISTURBANCE WORK IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE EGLE / USACE JOINT PERMIT AND EGLE STANDARDS AND

220 Hoover Boulevard
Holland, Michigan 49423-3766

www.hollandengineering.com
T 616-392-5938 F 616-392-2116 )

ENGINEERING

REQUIREMENTS. IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO ACQUIRE A COPY OF THE EGLE / USACE
GRADE D JOINT PERMIT.

5. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THAT THERE ARE NO UTILITY CONFLICTS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

BUILDING > 6. ALL WORK WITHIN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY WILL REQUIRE A PERMIT AND OR APPROVAL FROM KENT COUNTY

ROAD COMMISSION AND SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CURRENT EDITION OF THEIR
STANDARDS & SPECIFICATIONS.

UTILITIES >

7. STORM WATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AND GRADING SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE KENT COUNTY
DRAIN COMMISSION AND THE CITY OF KENTWOOD STORM WATER ORDINANCE.

8. SITE CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBLE TO CONNECT STORM / ROOF WATER TO STORM DRAIN AS SHOWN. REFER
TO PLUMBING PLANS FOR CONNECTION TO THE BUILDING AND DETAILS.

HCLLAND'

PAVING |

RESTORE )l 9. SITE SHALL BE GRADED WITH SMOOTH CONTOURS IN ALL AREAS OF DISTURBANCE AND GRADED TO SLOPE

AWAY FROM THE EXISTING AND PROPOSED BUILDINGS AND SIDEWALKS.
*NOTE : CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE MAY VARY BASED ON CONTRACTOR'S SCHEDULE. CONTRACTOR SHALL UPDATE THE CITY OF 10. ALL STORM SEWER PIPING SHALL BE ADS N-12, HANGOR HIQ OR APPROVED EQUIVALENT POLYETHYLENE

KENTWOOD IF CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE VARIES FROM ABOVE. (PE) PLASTIC PIPE AND FITTINGS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. WHERE SPECIFIED IN THE PLANS, CONCRETE
CLASS IV PIPE WITH RUBBER GASKETS IS REQUIRED.

11. SEE OTHER SHEETS IN PLAN SET FOR MORE INFORMATION.

SESC NOTES:
1. CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN ALL STATE AND LOCAL PERMITS AS NECESSARY FOR CONSTRUCTION.

Engineer's liability for any
and all claims, including
but not limited to those

arising out of the
misconduct, warranties or

misrepresentations shall
amount no greater than

be deemed limited to an
the service fee.

The Surveyor's /
Surveyor's / Engineer's
professional services,
negligence, gross

2. SITE DESIGN WAS DEVELOPED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE GEOTECHNICAL
REPORT AND SOIL BORINGS COMPLETED FOR THE PROJECT. CONTRACTOR SHALL ACQUIRE A COPY OF THE
GEOTECHNICAL REPORT AND SOIL BORING INFORMATION. SOIL CONDITIONS MAY VARY FROM THE
GEOTECHNICAL INFORMATION, WHICH MAY AFFECT THE SITE DESIGN, EARTHWORK QUANTITIES, USABLE
SOILS, AND SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL PRACTICES. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY DESIGN
ENGINEER AND GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER IF SITE CONDITIONS VARY FROM SOILS INFORMATION CONTAINED
IN THE GEOTECHNICAL INFORMATION.

3. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO ACQUIRE THE KENT COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION SOIL EROSION AND
SEDIMENTATION CONTROL PERMIT AND THE NPDES NOTICE OF COVERAGE AND COMPLY WITH ALL PERMIT
REQUIREMENTS AND WITH ALL STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS OF THE AGENCIES HAVING JURISDICTION.

4. BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES SHALL BE UTILIZED DURING AND AFTER CONSTRUCTION FOR TEMPORARY
AND PERMANENT SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL MEASURES.

® 5. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE A CERTIFIED STORM WATER OPERATOR FROM CONSTRUCTION
* COMMENCEMENT THROUGH FINAL SITE STABILIZATION.

. 6. THE TEMPORARY SOIL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE INSPECTED AND MAINTAINED WEEKLY AND
AFTER EACH SIGNIFICANT RAIN EVENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE EGLE REQUIREMENTS.

7. CALL MISS DIG AT LEAST THREE (3) WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO STARTING ANY EXCAVATION.

8. ALL WORK SHALL BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CITY OF KENTWOOD AND KENT COUNTY ROAD
COMMISSION STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

9. SOIL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE PLACED PRIOR TO EARTH MOVING OR GROUND DISTURBANCE
AND REMAIN IN PLACE UNTIL FINAL RESTORATION HAS BEEN ESTABLISHED.

10. THE STORM WATER MANAGEMENT BASIN SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED FIRST. CONTRACTOR IS RESFUINSIBLE
® TO REMOVE SEDIMENT FROM BOTTOM OF DETENTION BASIN UNTIL THE SITE IS FULLY STABILIZED.

11. ALL FOREIGN MATERIAL OR DEBRIS FROM JOB SITE WHICH IS DEPOSITED ON PAVED ROADWAY SHALL BE
REMOVED IMMEDIATELY.

12. THE PAVED ROADWAY SHALL BE SWEPT CLEAN AS NEEDED, BUT AT LEAST ONCE A WEEK.

Ve
o

v
s

I i
s
FILZAREA TQMAINTAIN ¢,
o&ﬁi‘\o@/\es PATTHRN
TOWARD D

e

~ $51
PROPOSED3OLFOF < _/ |

N

SHLT FENCE®
v ¢

R

N
P

\

: . Ve “ .
{, N N N ™ N \ AN e \ / . g;“ N b —
)

XD <o ‘)&\ s P RSN - ! R ~ - ™~ N\
0

2 -

~ R NS . D )
) , ‘

F4

. NAGEDITC
y 5 . ~ - '\N /52‘)‘ 5
\.\ kY > 5 o / i & — e N
\ J—EILLAREATOMANTAIN |/ — } - Y Ay
i.\

i
9 -3

o
i RS 3
R 2 % G F

o

) VN

hY
i i |
N - 3§
i

i {
\ f ;ﬁ i\‘,‘f“?\‘ J POSITIVE DRANAGE PATTER ) / .
e TOWARDDRAIAGEDITCH,  ~y 1 3 “_ . NSeAd L
» x’% ii‘ iQ ‘ . A\’x \u% ‘»,\ \ :\\ V"\ :3 ,{'"'\,\ix’t\w /\f/;/f//\:'»‘ ’M } 3 ﬂ,‘;‘ s ‘\ /) S,
S I AN VONCUNN T o sy 1 AN

L » >, \‘ y a ™ S — B — 3 (/ - ’ o

THIRD COAST
DEVELOPMENT

ATTN: MR. BRAD ROSELY
545 MICHIGAN ST NE SUITE 201

GRAND RAPIDS, Mi 49503

13. SOIL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES ARE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR DURING
CONSTRUCTION AND THE OWNER UPON COMPLETION.

»\
. Q}l\\ 14. CONTRACTOR SHALL PHASE THE PLACEMENT OF THE SOIL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES AS NECESSARY
FOR THE SITE IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN THE LIMITATIONS OF THE ACQUIRED SOIL EROSION CONTROL PERMIT.

15. STOCKPILE AREAS SHALL BE STABILIZED WITH TEMPORARY OR PERMANENT SEED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE KENT COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL REQUIREMENTS. ALL
EXCESS SPOILS SHALL BE REMOVED FROM SITE.

16. ALL EXCESS SPOILS SHALL BE HAULED OFFSITE AND LEGALLY PLACED IN AN UPLAND AREA NOT
ENCUMBERED BY WETLANDS OR FLOODPLAIN.

17. THERE SHALL BE NO EARTH MOVEMENT OR DISTURBANCE OUTSIDE THE LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE WITHOUT
PRIOR AUTHORIZATION FROM THE KENT COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION.

18. THE MINIMUM AMOUNT OF SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL MEASURES ARE SHOWN THE
DRAWINGS. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE ADDITIONAL CONTROL MEASURES, MAINTENANCE, AND/OR
STABILIZATION MEASURES AS NECESSARY FOR CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.

19. SEE OTHER SHEETS IN PLAN SET FOR MORE INFORMATION.

.
A
s
!‘“\
}
{
{
:i
A\
[
(4
N
&
~
?——\\\
\\

\/"*’\

N\
!
/
7
<

-

3 e ——
<'\\:‘~'*'-",:./
‘;‘5’/\\__,——\_
o

550.0'

P ad
o
N
£
v
/./
o
c
Yo Wl e
O
=
®
?
3
e

- 75

=P 1155 LF
NCE S51

—~—
~—
~
9

\___/175

hN
—

.

60th STREET
PT. OF THE SW 1/4 SEC. 36, T6N, R11W
CITY OF KENTWOOD, KENT COUNTY, MICHIGAN

4175 60TH ST SE
KENTWOOD, MI 49512

[0)
A
B
C
D
E
F
G

e «

47 CULVERT

Issued for
Description
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN TO OWNER

10/11/2023| REVISED LAYOUT
10/23/2023| REVISED LAYOUT

— e e e W T

11/06/2023] ADDED NORTH LAYOUT
05/22/2024] PUD / SITE PLAN APPROVAL
Plans are preliminary & incomplete until ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION

02/21/2024| SITE PLAN
05/17/2024] REV. LAYOUT

Date
6/23/2023

_________ 42 CULVE

: e Project Manager
N N \\ s,\:\ ™ - ° Ay SISTING STORM BA NV j g

RYAN T. YSSELDYKE, PE
Vertical Datum Horz. Datum

77
&
4

Yo
(/A Ny o
Ve

7

p—

7

e
Wi
S

Ve

O

PROPOSED SILT SACK .__ ™~

o

gty
¥
Ve
¥
3
f
i
H

T\ (TYPOF23) ~ Drawn by
S58 ~ o PETER BULTEN, P.E.
EX. 42" CULVERT ~ Checked by Date
| INV. W. 73843 Survey

- | .

'ENTRANCE SEE SHEET C-502FOR | | | Nfmpial) Civil
I
I

.'E:Ii.?_D'ETA"' ! N Struc.

S53 | L] LA |. .
—rd - | HEI Project Number

[
T T AT N 22-11-027

___________________ Sheet Title

! ] OVERALL
GRADING AND

o oc,vkx\?“ 0 50' 100' 200' SESC PLAN
%\‘4\’\0{1@%“‘\ ==—r—— Sheet No,

k < SCAET=100 || C-200 |

-
G S
//.«f‘“ //
4
e~

& '{Mm\” /
=
% }\:
7)) |

el

o —

5

e .
&

'/} ;:f

o

e
e




TN
==

o s e N LI T

a4 —
9112-26€-919 4 8€65-26€-9L9 L 58} SoIAieS 8L NO
- : uey} Jajessb ou Junowe ¢ ‘ ILONYLSNOD HO4 a3aNss| 1un sjs|dwoou) ' Areunuysid ase sue|d
o3 BUseuBuspUBIoU e e ou uroue £056Y I ‘SQIdVY ONVAD NVOIHOIN ‘ALNNOO IN3Y ‘GOOMLNIY 40 ALID [5 w )
99/€-€2v61 Uebiyoin ‘puejioH lleus suonejussaldaisiw 102 3LINS 3N 1S NVOIHOIN S¥S ¢ ¢ : TAORadY NYd A8/ dNd {reaeieeiso a5
e o s suonesadsis oy s vl s ML LY ‘NOL ‘9€ "03S #/L MS IHL 40 'Ld |2 1noavi 73y [reoazvso] wi|& | | ~| —
ssoub ‘aouebybeu . 3 NV1d 31IS |P2oe/iz/co vD: N olws N N
‘saoInIas [BUOISSB0.d a 2 ; |2 0
- | eaws uossojod LININDOTIAIQ 2156¥ IN ‘GOOMININ [5 S honvasanan Teosweenr], B —1 B 1253 | &
ay3 jo Jno Buis o -
SANION3 050 o”_ww g_wc__ sﬂ_ umm IS IS HL1096G.LYy [= LNOAV Q3SIAIY [£202/14/0} W% E 5 m 0 m o hl_V
Buipnioul ‘swiep e pue m OO v ¥3INMO OL NVd 3LIS AMVNINNIINd | ez0zezo |8 |8 ol £} g5 N | .
ONVITITH |~hamis 1SVOO QdIHL 13341S Y09 [ s 2y PE[TE [ ENEC e
f / sdokening sy .hO.._ Umﬁww_ ) M = m mE m Sl 2| <|2 3 g
* a x| ol G Old| 4 m 5 5 K
=) ‘
<3
o
wH
]
Nl
2 sl
<
o (&)
&fman
o
. 7
_ 3 X AN
vmm \\ \ /. // % w/ ﬁ/ \\ ,,,/
AL\ X 8 RINVE] s LA
/ m» !
W N !
......... < ) 7 T . - | R “MY —— — —
— S o VN P
2/ N S A >
T —— —— /t!.,!:\\lf\\..l.l.iil\,(\ _,\
................................ \ _
T — o e i e e _
I e tesnbai I\ .1 > o
— %t . S / . T * — ——
v (S
) . .;}u. ............ N I..Iml‘ ~
—
_ «\/ —
A\/ \//L\\\l//\\ f/ _\ J 0/
N\ —~———
N y / \ \
A\ )\ , N7
\ / \ \ .-
y | L)
/ /
|\ ~ /
AN \
o \\
¢
N\ .
- food
- / .\ AN
\ _ A\
— TS RN
_ A A .\\ RN R
AN N
~ N
N\ Lol
) N
( 4 -y
N N //\\ ~ 1
i N
N L E \
@) N N g _/
< . e ’ 7 o
W N /7 (
= QO e
= ~/ /
W _nlu \J \
O w )
w w /
w I Ve
=ZO QLoZow - /
a0 S L D. =8 / =
W MO xS o w > 8
o —
23S PAWnBGW\ S~ / T
<C 'S ) \ » 1 —~ . - o
= 1 ) /.\ \ e ’
\ /
y §
/ ; - )
\\ .
— g ST m) ~ g , -
/ T e T / s
N / / { -
™ 7 / u .
d wm P E\ .
. M - N -
_ ] \\ L f -
~ , 7 e .
/ d / / .
- a\» 7 - d e
nx 7 \ - o
/ f 7/ K e
\ \ \ . i X
/ s ’ e .
/ e 7 oot ” / o
\ — ) v\ \ .\ \\
\\ p ~ L o~
,\. 7 \ N .
..... ‘ 4 7 s
e \ , N 5
_ 7 e s -~ N i
s Ve - i
e 7 e 7/ '
Ve ‘ - T
el \ N\ e at? S
J e S ; T
_\ y y S
-~ \&u\ § . .
J ke 'z
s { %
e T y / HB i
— " / r~_ g M
S 7 - Bosg
- s . -~ - © m m.v m
) e ~ N _ / E o B
i - M 4 ~ - -
- ) Vs \_- s ~ Y




———

IR TEE

({ ik

\ P ———— 08} BOIAISS Bl . . . NOILONYLSNOD HO4 A3NSSI un ajeidwooul 3 Aeuiwijeid e sueid J
W00 BuLISaUIBUSPUE|OY MMM %Muwwwmw_w%%h“mmwm €096% IN 'SAIdVY ANVHO NVOIHOIN ‘ALNNOD INIX AOOMLNIN 4O ALIO [ IWAOU4dY Nv1d LIS/ and [reozzaiso| & |€
99.€-62v6v UBBIUDI ‘PUEIIOH eus suoneyussaidassiu 10Z 3LINS 3N 1S NVOIHOIW Sv§ MLLY ‘N9l ‘9€ O3S /I MS 3HL 40 '1d |2 LNOAVT 'A3Y Jreozizliso| |8 wlo ~| O N
pieAsjnog JOAOOH 022 10 S8ljUBLIEM JONPUODSIW AT13SOY avyg HN 'NLLY 3 NV1d LIS }+202/12/20 > I o w N zZ =
, sso0ib ‘aousb)bau ‘ a 1NOAVY1 HLYON a3aayv [€202/90/1} w £ -4 5 0. m O
$90)A18S |euoissajoud N_‘mm.v =>_ QOOEZN¥ 9 1NOAV1 A3SINIY |€202/€C/0L | « _.& _._T._ m - m 2
LNINdOTIAIA ps | 3 50 |
ONIdIINIONST auy 4o Jno Buisue 4S IS H109G.LY |8 LNOAV1 3SIA3Y |e202/L oL | B > [§ >1. 2 o C
8so0y) 0} pajWI| Jou Inq v HINMO OL NY1d 3LIS AMVNINNNd | €20z/€z9 | S - |8 ~cle ™= e N |20 o
Buipnioul ‘SWIED [|& pue . =Zlg [Puld @ . I3 = z
ANVI1ICH | LSVOO QHIHL 13TYLS Yoo =i sl FEETLA<T°  f
f / sJokaming auj .-O“_. Um_.._ww_ Sx|e salsa|o|al4|¢ 5 & k
s )
=4
o
1)
]
i =
Q
L
2 i
olll | Q9
& 5]
=)
) « w (. _
F Y >
. // PR
AN - /\./
(133HS SIHL NO Q31¥201
NOILVNNILNOD 33S) INITHOLYIN
w N ~_/ . o Z | \
) \ 4 . - § ~ E . )
. N N o
| £ 3
/ O - s>
) Pam O E
/ o T
\w ,,,,,,,, S S /
. N ~ =z
e % N L
<N =z ©Q \
N 5 - w ~
o R L = \
* O <
/ = O
. 5 \\M. - A O SN ru
.\\ ~ . \ M | euJ

(133HS SIHL NO @31vo0T
NOILVANILNOD 33S) aNIT HOLYIN




PLACE 72 LF OF 24" CULVERT W/
24" CONC. FES ON BOTH ENDS
SEE DET C5 SHT C501 (TYP)

N. INV = 742.81

S. INV = 742.00

PROP. 2' STMCB
W/ EJIW 7045 M1 GRATE
AND T1 BACK

SEE DET B3 SHT C501 (TYP)
RIM = 749.42

INV = 745.92

50' OF 12" STORM SEWER @ 7.84%
SE INV =742.0

|
|
&5 ‘
\
|
|
|

% \(C ~
et

PLACE (2) PARALLEL 81 LF
OF 30" CULVERT W/ 30"
CONC. FES AND 10 CY RIP

‘ RAP ON BOTH ENDS

PROP. 2' STMCB SEE DET C5 SHT C501 (TYP)

W/ EJIW 7065 N. INV = 742.60

SEE DET B3 SHT C501 (TYP) S. INV =742.50

RIM = 748.67
INV =746.17

166 LF OF 12" STORM
SEWER @ 1.49%
b
T
| PROP. 4' STM CB
‘ W/ EJIW 7065

~ -~

T
PROP. 4' STM MH

W/ EJIW 7065

SEE DET B1 SHT C501 (TYP)
RIM = XXX

INV =743.27

i |
e/

1 PROP. 2' STM CB
111 W/ EJIW 7065
Wi see pET B3 SHT C501 (TYR)
s RIM = 746.20
INV = 743.70

e
V4 ¥ RIM = 747.69
~
- .

SEE DET B2 SHT C501 (TYP)

SEE DET B2 SHT C501 (TYP)

INV =743.69

STORM SEWER
@ 0.5%

300 LF OF 24"

¢
| S1O%

-\ \|Nv.3174 ¥
a O

/' . —l/
92 LF OF 12" STORM |

/ 8
/ (( SEWER @ 3.32% |

N

INV. SE. 738.49

PROP. 4' STM CB & - 9 O
W/ EJIW 7065 S& g PROP. 12" CONC. FES
I R I O
S S f(, SEEDETCSSHTCSN (TYP)  ~ g
RIM = 746.79 YAV 5CY RIP RAP
INV=74279 - — — 2y L0 INV = 740,64 :
| a @
| A R A ! LMY
— —% %—0- | | | # ® S
. | | + S&
R ] L=
( | [ s & ®
2 0
P— PROP. 12" CONC. FES | | Z
EX. 24" STORM (FES) SEE DET C5 SHT C501 (TYP) | ) g

EXISTING STORM
BASIN - WET POND
ELEV:738.78

INV = 741.0 'T)
TT TS | 2

—
————
—

SEE DET C5 SHT C501 (TYP)
10 CY RIPRAP -

%
5 | SEE DET B2 SHT

PROP. 4 STM CB

W/ EJIW 7065 ,
PROP. 4 STM CB PROP. 2 STMCB :
S O BT 01 1) wemes
o SEE DET B2 SHT C501 (TYP) SEE DET B3 SHT C501 (TYP)
SE IN\{ =748.22 RIM = 751.69 RIM = 751,56 SEE DET B2 SHT C5(31 (TYP)
E INV = 745.66 . W INV = 749.06 RIM = 751.56
S INV = 745.66 EIWINV=747.16 S INV = 747.31
SE INV = 747.31
300 LF OF 12" 300 LF OF 12" 200 LF OF 12"
STORM SEWER STORM SEWER STORM SEWER
@ 0.5% @0.3% @ 0.5%

PROP. 51 LF OF 15
@ 3.5% MIN
SE INV =750.0

PROP.4'STM CB
W/ EJIW 7065

RIM=753.14
N/S INV =744.16

RDL

C501 (TYP)

PROP. 4' STM CB

W/ EJIW 7065

SEE DET B2 SHT C501 (TYP)

RIM = 748.53
E INV =743.67

@ 3.5% MIN
EINV=7450

N/SW INV = 742.66
PROP. 38 LF OF 15" RDL

fmea el S 8

| 350LF OF 12 S
STORM SEWER &
@1.09% &

NV = 737. T
INV=737.89

N

4 eS¢

42" CULVERT —-
INV.737.32
WATER EL. 738.15

)

PROP. 6' STM CB
. W/ EJIW 7065
SEE DET B2 SHT C501 (TYP) |
B RIM=744.36

B E/Wis INV =

PROP. 4' STM CB
W/ EJIW 7065 PROP. 35 LF OF 15" RDL @
SEE DET B2 SHT C501 (TYP) 3.5% MIN
RIM = 751.69 SINV =750.0
E/W INV = 748.06
PROP. 4' STM CB
W/ EJIW 7065
SEE DET B2 SHT C501 (TYP)
RIM = 751.69
NW/S INV = 745.42 )
S
&
PROROSED t
WAREHOUSE 3
BUIUDING PROP. 4 STM CB
600.00 SF S 28 v¥/cE Jéﬁv(ﬁif;
EE DET B2 SHT C5
FFE 3 755.0 RIM = 751.69
N/S INV = 743.92
PROP. 5' STM CB PROP. 126 LF OF 15" RDL @
W/ EJIW 7065 3.5% MIN.
SEE DET B2 SHT C501 (TYP) NWINV =746.19
PROP. 5' STM MH E/wmﬁ/ - ;‘;3;; PROP. 4' STM CB
W/ SOLID COVER W/ EJIW 7065
SEE DET B1 SHT C501 (TYP) 75 LF OF 36" SEE DET B2 SHT C501 (TYP)
RIM = 745.65 STORM SEWER RIM = 746.47
E/W INV = 739.52 @ 03% NW/N/SW INV = 741.78

350 LF OF 36"
STORM SEWER
@0.30%

PROP. 2' STM CB

W/ EJIW 7065

SEE DET B2 SHT C501 (TYP)
RIM = 745.86

E INV =742.30

42 CULVERT

> INV. 737.58

42" CULVERT
INV. 737.59

PROP. 36" CONC. FES
SEE DET C5 SHT C501 (TYP)
INV =738.0

EXISTING STORM BASIN
- WET POND
ELEV: 738.56

EX. 42" CULVERT
INV. W.738.15

42" CULVERT
INV. W.738.18

Am*mgégig : | PROP.4'STMCB 3

PROP. 15" CONC. FES .
o SEE DET C5 SHT C501 (TYP) ~M—F~, STORM SEWER §
(INV=73856

‘BES i W/ EJIW 7065 S5
e SEE DET B2 SHT C501 (TYP) &l
RIM = 745.24 & §

NE/W INV = 741.16 |

282LF OF 30 §

@ 0.50%

BY ¢ =

STORM SEWER

@ 0.5%

300 LF OF 24"
- STORM SEWER
@0.71%

| 1 ‘
A

, 2 PROP. 4 STM CB
< __| WIEJIW 7045 M1 GRATE

|

|

I

I

I

|

|

| ,

I .

|

|

| g

: PROP. 4' STM CB
W/ EJIW 7065

| SEE DET B2 SHT C501 (TYP)

: / RIM = 743.77

INV = 739.49

| L

| L By

|

T

|

|

________ A4 ANDT1BACK

SEE DET B2 SHT C501 (TYP)
RIM=743.14

INV = 740.04

EX. 42° CULVERT
INV. W.73843

42" CULVERT
INV. W. 738.41

PROP. 2 STMCB

W/ EJIW 7045 M1 GRATE
AND T1 BACK

SEE DET B2 SHT C501 (TYP)

T T T RIM=744.64 -

INV = 742.14

TOEO®
O ea®Po=
2598

Z 2|°)|
3NES
- mgq“w?
Zn: 520
> C T
w o gggw

I 0o
W SE8s

pd NZ=23Q

ke =3

—— C .g
-I(D %%ﬁ
(o]

I:Z T %

w -

> f .

§2g o 2365
832 88 Ea2s
\EE"Sm%'gﬁgsﬁﬁ
L8 sl 88SEELSY
SEg3sU_O>E2=52
PN GE=® ® 0 0T o
zyoEsfsgggEed
PETE2TLS558858
2995855208802 o
FOUecocnBGEEELRS
I o

— Z %8

u_||.Ll

) L mgm
o8

O ous
OO0 252
)

0 — aJEEE
LLl 0195

i d > =25
n— --_Q
T W g=32
Eeod

QO <36

CITY OF KENTWOOD, KENT COUNTY, MICHIGAN

PT. OF THE SW 1/4 SEC. 36, T6N, R11W

Koo
u 9
Lle
X os
= %a
) o
c 52
S 38
O“N’E
O ¥
g<moomu.o

Issued for:
Description
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN TO OWNER

10/11/2023| REVISED LAYOUT
10/23/2023} REVISED LAYOUT

Plans are preliminary & incomplete until ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION

11/06/2023] ADDED NORTH LAYOUT
05/22/2024| PUD / SITE PLAN APPROVAL

02/21/2024| SITE PLAN
05/17/2024] REV. LAYOUT

Date
6/23/2023

Project Manager
RYAN T. YSSELDYKE, PE

Vertical Datum Horz. Datum

Drawn by

PETER BULTEN, P.E.
Checked by Date
Survey
Civil
N Struc.
L. A . .
HEI Project Number
22-11-027
Sheet Title
STORM SEWER
PLAN
) 50' 100 200'
% Sheet No.
SCALE 1" =100'

__C-203




1 2 3 4 \ ( \
VO E©
NOTES: V) slaox
1. INSTALL ADDITIONAL FITTINGS, BENDS & SPIGOT PIPE AS NECESSARY BETWEEN 25 Sy
WATER MAIN & VALVE BOX TO ADJUST FOR PROPER LOCATION AND GRADE OF Z 2394
HYDRANT. oA = @
FLARED END SECTION - o3 o ©
2. VERTICAL ANCHORAGE'S WILL BE REQUIRED ON ALL VERTICAL HYDRANT BENDS. 12" DIAMETER PIPE (0 4 - Q¢
—
3. WHERE HYDRANTS ARE INSTALLED ON EXISTING MAINS THAT ARE TO BE PLACED w 3§90
BACK INTO SERVICE IMMEDIATELY, PLACE CONCRETE BRICK OR BLOCK TO Soguw
UNDISTURBED EARTH AND ENCASE WITH CONCRETE OR USE RESTRAINING GLANDS. o) ’ w 238 .
o 9
. G ™
ot ——— z 8333
& SIZE OF PIPE_| HEIGHT ] 4 - —_— T LG
[3 6 q —
| — © 222
NS TTN 7 o 3 & TONGUE END FOR INLET J S8
6" CAP BLOCK NENESAL A NN SRR > 7 2 > T ¢
24* DEEP SOLID MIDDLE g g T - —\—+———T1 E Z ©
SECURE CAP BLOCK TO FREESTANDING BLOCK WITH o & OOVE END FOR OUTLET
POLYURETHANE SEALANT. N\ FREESTANDING BLOGK (TYP) BARRIER FREE PARKING SIGN SHALL BE VALVE 80X = SEaE | w C
DESIGNED AND SIZED IN ACCORDANCE 2 GRADE . T ——
o -
HEIGHT VARIES GRADE TO DRAIN SURFACE Bl WITH CURRENT ADA STANDARDS = z T — )
) (36" MINIMUM) WATER AWAY FROM THE WALL S
SETBACK =0* FOR . a
FREESTANDING BLOCKS r 6 VALVE 5 . PLAN VIEW INSTALLATION DETAIL
r & — 2
77777 A & — ot
N\ — = — | D.L. TEE Wi6* BELL SIDE OUTLET OR — E$
] - PAVEMENT SECTION fo‘ CONC. PIPE W/6" D.1. BELL SIDE QUTLET % 3 PIECE VALVE BOX SCREW z
TR TYPE SHAFT, TYLER SERIES
SETBACK =15 o S 6860 OR EQUAL C B ¢
N . — e o
i i @ ] \ > s
EXPOSED WALL (HEIGHT RETAINED SOIL ‘ < \ c O =
i | B I - <« e ) e g s 1 2" SQUARE STEEL TUBE. WELD CAP PLATE 6" DUCTILE IRON PIPE 6'D.I. PIPE g = ¥ —— r —z—3 SLOPE N ® 2 g » 88 &5
MAx) = Lo TO TOP. PRIME WITH ONE COAT PRIMER - = —l 232 38§ Ea25
R 19} O c 2 eV s
N BURY 1]  cooimerane AND TWO COATS DARK BRONZE ENAMEL 2 . \ -ZB5.5: 88588
DEPTH w - - - 1 PR ;055883 RE0 9
\ DRAINSTONE (AASHTO # 57 OR EQUAL) 4 / cE8gf3sW2a2225e
I z TOEXTEND AT LEAST 12° BEHIND BLOCKS ) A | SoEES® S §883cg
. " ELTJ=OB-QCUQE:"‘
b 11 41* DEEP SOLID MIDDLE = . N < | ] 532 @ © €c
t = BLOCK (TYP) = < VARIABLE , 30 /\ NETS 2T 2O § 885¢
‘ = — 8 D | Peein 250 82828552 ¢
T | | | * 41" DEEP SOLID N < — FOGG3snAalEESRS
o~ BOTTOM BLOCK - [
il *‘;‘ TESTTE MBARS 10417 VALVES 5 SECTION VIEW AT CENTERLINE END VIEW
s § s o » £ DRAINTIE BARS 14" & 16" VAL T
(OUTLET TO DAYLIGHT) FINISH GRADE &' D.J. PIPE 3 TRENCH BOTTOM -
S TO ey O EQUAL - E , 3500 P.S.\. CONC POUR AGAINST el NOTES:
(AASHTO#57 OR EQUAL) UNDISTURBED EARTH 1. PRODUCED TO MEET ASTM SPECIFICATIONS,
WIDTH OF LE:‘/?I\',‘EOF PIPE WALL A B c D E SLOPE 2 CONTACT A CONCRETE PIPE DIVISION
TRENCH THICKNESS REPRESENTATIVE FOR DETAILS NOT LISTED.
30" MINIMUM EMBEDMENT LENGTH e DmEF:rRER C
(INCHES) (NCHES) | (NCHES) | (NCHES) | (NcHES) | (NCHES) | (NCHES)
12 2 4 % 4878 278 30 3|,
|— —
N 15 214 6 27 46 73 30 31 E 8
wTn |._ Z
<3)_RED!I ROCK RETAINING WALL @ BARRIER FREE PARKING SIG FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY "T" TYPE <2)_VALVE BLOCK AND BOX e T [ s [ 7 | « [ = [+ [+ »w e
C3 2 3 911 a1 30 7312 @ 31 < E @) (:’)) 8
% a3 12 54 194 733 60 3 o 8
O gu¥s
CONCRETE STORM FLARED END SECTION OO0 252
CS A ] o ZQ9
CASTING AS SPECIFIED :
W xo%
PECIFIED m = I
CASTINGAS § 21, PRECAST CONGRETE CASTING AS SPECIFIED — Z On
ADJUSTING RINGS AS REQD I I I l =sZ
24°1.0. PRECAST CONCRETE 1 MIN. - 5 MAX. ' ': = é
gmesee AT TS — oo e O <88
o o 7 PRECAST CONCRETE e {1 MIN.- 5 MAX) : e
SN o ECCENTRIC CONE a ‘ o0 s TOP OF CASTING = TIC
i SECTION W/ TONGUE AND L. " S NN
PRECAST CONCRETE ECCENTRIC GROOVE JOINT 4 ‘ BT £J 10404 CASTING OR APPROVED EQUAL )
CONE SECTION W/ TONGUE AND : N : MATERIAL SET IN MORTAR WITH 270 6
GROOVE JOINT 5 ‘ o : GRADE RINGS AND 1/2° THICK MORTAR
APPROVED MANHOLE rf \ : . PLASTARED INSIDE AND OUT. z
STEPS 15" 0.C. : = - I & o -
. : Y ._\- Va O Z
. o APPROVED MANHOLE ) f ) z
* 4 : STEPS 15" 0.C. ' “y . e | S
APPROVED MANHOLE STEPS 15" O.C. : ‘ “ - ? =
4 . 4
z ' P N ¥ < - \ - :
2 NOTE: CATCH BASINS & YARD / PLAN \~_ « FOR COMPACTED BACKFILL FOR PIPES UNDERNEATH -
C & « DRAINS WITH DEPTH LESS : o y PAVEMENT OR WITHIN 10 OF PAVEMENT, USE MDOT >
NOTE: CATCH BASINS & YARD . & 5 THAN 4' FROM TOP OF CASTING = ‘ : PER =] ; ' CLASS Il SAND BACKFILL, ALL OTHER AREAS USE ;
, . : TOINVERT OF STORM PIPE . : OlL. -
E:gm?gv;gmd-g?ngg;T e \ MAY BE CONSTRUCTED WITH S e PERPLAN & :\. PLAN _/- PRECAST MANHOLE SECTIONS IN — cmman— POLYMER COATED CLEAN SITE SUBS! -—
OF STORM PIPE MAY BE f PER PLAN "-\_ CONCENTRIC CONE SECTIONS R b4 L NOTE: CATCH BASINS & YARD DRAINS WITH k - -« ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM C478, GASKETS IN STEEL STEPS (TYP) N =
CONSTRUCTED WITH CONCENTRIC e~ T W/OUT STEPS ' DEPTH LESS THAN 4' FROM TOP OF | L ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM C923 WITH ~ v o 2
TONS WIOUT STERS . : . CASTING TO INVERT OF STORM PIPE MAY _ 2 . BITUMINOUS SEAL COATED EXTERIOR. 14 7/ (& DEPTH OF BEDDING MATERIAL B -
CONE SECTIONS WIOUT STEPS. » ' ! STORM SEWE = BE CONSTRUCTED WITH CONCENTRIC Y ' DRYCAST MANHOLES ARE NOT ALLOWED. (rve) b $ N BELOW PIPE = 2
= o , CONE SECTIONS WIOUT STEPS /\, o O
P R PRECAST CONCRETE  / [ o] : ’ K PPELD. A O
a - MANHOLE SECTIONS ASTM 4 - dA ) STORM SEWER = FLEXIBLE CORE & SEAL BOOT AS MANUFACTURED . /\ 2" OR SMALLER 7 -
) A C478WITONGUE AND L -\- BY KOR-N-SEAL OR EQUIVALENT FORMED U ‘ i X . - o =
< -‘\- SROOVE JOINT - AL 0 INTEGRAL WITH MANHOLE SECTIONS (STANDARD) - 4 . /\ 106y 4 nZ
PRECAST CONCRETE MANHOLE ) 5 - 7 SUMP . PRECAST CONCRETE MANHOLE . — [ ORNON-SHRINK GROUT FOR PLACEMENT OVER . - é A | Y/ b 66" OR LARGER 6" .
SECTIONS ASTM C-478 W/ TONGUE S [ b COMPACTED SAND SECTIONS ASTM C-478 W/ - . EXISTINGPIPE 8 - OY
AND GROOVE JOINT o . i BACKFILL UNDER TONGUE AND GROOVE JOINT 4 . f— = & E N 12 |-_ wl
B ‘ ‘ QAP ‘o e MDOT CLASS QL :maum ISOLATION DISTANCE N 7)) d
| . . S —
. STORM SEWER P PRECAST CONGRETE | — _ - 2 SUMP ) COMPACTED SAND ( II SAND BACKFILL D> 9 N DT ANCE, Ry LL' VS o)
MANHOLE BASE ¢ T N - BACKFILL UNDER 3] ] K \/, SEWER SHALL BE 10" HORIZONTAL & 18" » X
PRECAST CONCRETE ST e QUTLET PIPE g o — 7 BENCH & FLOW CHANNELS N VERTICAL. < = O
MANHOLE BASE g%nmggmﬂ%g oussil PRECAST CONCRETE \ S / ? . 2 m % = g ;
‘ MANHOLE BASE : ,
G NF LEVELING BASE 6* TO 8" THICK CLASS I 5 f — = 7) -
& & 4" COMPACTED MDOT OR Ill SAND, OR "PEASTONE". 54 PN - pd
N
COMPACTED SAND COMPACTED AT AT CLASS Il SAND = »Aa L W
BACKFILL UNDER SUBGRADE R //f;\/\f;{\f O
OUTLET PIPE NOENENN NN I I X
COMPACTED SUBGRADE COMPACTED PRECAST MANHOLE BASE (STANDARD) OR = O —
SUBGRADE CAST-IN-PLACE SLAB #4 BARS @ 12" EW., 8" THICK. _C (] T ®)
©
B @)
LASS B PIPE BEDDING O(Q 2% LE
' - -
VARIABLE DIA. STORM MANHOLE - VARIABLE DIA. CATCH BASIN 0 2' DIA. CATCH BASIN @ SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE STRUCTURES » CLASS B PIPE Y KEG
Sl<|a]o]ojulu]|o]|F
25" 4EML =
BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT 0
2
—_ 7
25 4EML 14 5
BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT i 9
4
: :
o) 412
.. a
1 MDOT 224 6 = g =
AGGREGATE BASE (CIP) = (o]
et B = x|2
alz
Ol |> 9 o =
w 3
D [=l=]l=ls <.
MIN 12" APPROVED COMPACTED SUBBASE - olo|x Il 2
CLASS !l SAND OR NATIVE MATERIAL IF SUITABLE 8 > g g E =l3 8
— < (o) e} 9
c z i)
! HERRHEEREE
STANDARD LIGHT BROOM sl=|wlwlnld]|S]|P] =
FINISH TO MATCH ] =|S|o|olm <
a aglul>|S|lalwlslal §
EXISTING (TYP) : T EE ITH 646 W1 41 SlElRy 2 lt/:J 2121 £
 Hill £2 E
NOTES: ; -ﬁ 2 =
o WWF. SHALL BE CHAIRED UP (OR OTHER APPROVED METHOD) TO ENSURE CONTROL JOINT TYPICAL L HEAVY DUTY BITUM'NOUS PAVEMENT SECTION _— ol2I2I2IsIZIZ] &
W.WF. IS AT APPROPRIATE DEPTH WITHIN THE CONCRETE SECTION. ,. 1 A5 BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT N g glglgls|s] @
o LOCATE CONTROL JOINTS AT 20" MAX SPACING & INTERSECTIONS - SIEISIZIL1218] &
o SPACE EXPANSION JOINTS AT 100" MAXIMUM HHE slalc|alslals|g] 2
*  BROOM SWEPT FINISH o SEE PLAN slNIS|S|<ld]|B]|s]| &
TOOLED - 7 4EML e Ad Bl At Bl K51 15 53
CONTROL JOINT = € 1" RADIUS —— BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT Project Manager
CONC SIDEWALK (PLAN VIEW) & RYAN T. YSSELDYKE. PE
EXPANSION AND CONSTRUCTION 4000 PSI CONC WITH 6x6 PREMOLDED EXPANSION/ ISOLATION . l
JOINTS INSTALL SEALANT AND W29XW2.9 WWF. STRIP WITH REMOVABLE TOP CAP. FILL 4 & Vertical Datum | Horz. Datum
BACKER ROD INTO JOINT W/ TRAFFIC SEALANT ? EXTEND GRAVEL SUBBASE & & MDOT 224 A
6 ¥ AGGREGATE BASE (CIP) . -
4000 PS| CONC WITH 6x6 ) ELEVATI ON\WT“ BOTTOM OF CONCRETE BEYOND EDGE OF PAVEMENT . S
TOPSOIL WIHWIAWWF, ? d 6 NOTE: 12° MIN. BELOW FINISH GRADE y
- SEE GRADING PLAN FOR SPOT GRADES PETER BULTEN, P.E.
RE-TOOLED CONTROL JOINT @ 5 AT RAMPS. 24° WOE DETECTABLE WARNING 3
NOTES: BITUMINOUS HEAVY BROOM l-'NSHmﬂ STRIP. SEE DETECTABLE BITUMNOUS PAVENENT MIN 12* APPROVED COMPACTED SUBBASE - i Checked by Date
PERPENDICULAR . -
LOCATE CONTROL JOINTS AT 8 MAX PAVENENT T CLASS Il SAND OR NATIVE MATERIAL IF SUITABLE ; Survey
SPACING \ -
N N ..
S SPACE EXPANSION JOINTS 24' COMPACTED oy ,X\,{//s Civil
APPROVED COMPACTED MAXIMUM . KA A
SUBBASE - CLASS Il SAND OR BROOM SWEPT FINISH : # § COMPACTED GRAVEL Struc.
NATIVE MATERIAL IF SUITABLE WIWF @ 2" BELOWTOP X COMPACTED
SUBGRADE
APPROVED COMPACTED SUBBASE ! | (1 |G MM | (] AN 12 MDOT CLASS I LIGHT DUTY BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT SECTION L. A
CLASS II SAND OR NATIVE TOOLED I"CURB AND WALK | CONC WALK | CURB AND 6" HIGH GRANULAR MATERIAL A7
COMPACTED SUBGRADE MATERIAL  SUITABLE JONT SLOPE UP TO 6” F'l’.lkjsu WTH VIALKG_SLWE wp CuRB HEI Project Number
ABOVE VEMENT TO 6" ABOVE
COMPACTED SUBGRADE PAVEMENT PLAN PAVEMENT 22'1 1 ‘027
" " " ENGINEERED FILL AS REQUIRED. Sheet Title
8" CONCRETE PAVEMENT 4" CONCRETE PAVEMENT SIDEWALK 4" INTEGRAL WALK AND CURB TYPE 2 BARRIER FREE SIDEWALK RAMP ENGNEERED L ASFEQURED G
A1 A2 A3 A4 APPROVED ON-SITE MATERIAL ONLY. EN E R A L
. Sheet No.
| . C-501
4 J
1 2 3




13'-63% "

4"

4

o
o

6”
. ~
. & = ]
SYMMETRICAL Oﬁ -'H
ABOUT & 'R'N'
14 N1 N
- fo)
!
©
~
|
"
3 i" 3 1% 1'16” i
TOLERANCE
-0+1/8"
SECTION REVIEW OF BEAM ELEMENT

12'~6" EFFECTIVE
BEAM ELEMENT LENGTH
6'—3" TYR
POST SPACING

28"

ELEVATION SHOWING POST SPACING

WHEN THE FACE OF GUARDRAIL IS PLACED FLUSH
WITH FACE OF CURB, THE RAIL HEIGHT SHOULD
BE MEASURED FROM THE FRONT EDGE OF THE
GUTTER PAN, WHICH IS THE POINT ON THE
GUTTER PAN THAT IS CLOSEST TO THE EDGE OF
THE TRAVELED LANE. WHEN THE FACE OF THE
GUARDRAIL PANEL IS LOCATED BEHIND THE CURB
THE RAIL HEIGHT SHOULD BE MEASURED FROM
THE GROUND JUST IN FRONT OF THE GUARDRAIL.

C1

S.E.S.C. LEGEND
MICHIGAN UNIFIED KEYING SYSTEM

To reduce steep si and ive velociti
E1 I—— % o0p siopes and eroslve velociles

Stobilization method utllized on sites where earth change
E8 PERMANENT SEEDING has been completed (final grading attained).

On exposed siopes, newly seeded areas, new ditch bottoms,
E9 MULCH BLANKETS or oreas subject to erosion.

Use along shorelines, waterways, or where concentrated flows
E12 RIPRAP occur. Slows velocity, reduces sediment load, and reduces

erosion.

b [ e (] Use adjacent to critical t t sediment iaden
X < se adjacent to critical areas, to preven men

S$51 SILT FENCE k2 | S en| X sheet flow from entering these areas.

Used at every point where construction traffic enters or
S53 |STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ACCESS leaves a construction site.
358 INLET PROTECTION FABRIC DROP w Use at stormwater inlets, especially at construction sites.

EXISTING GRADE
(UNSTABLE)

GRASS SWALE OR
DIVERSION DITC!
(OR D|KE) COULD (1.2 OR
BE USED 10O DIRECT FLA.TIER)
SURFACE FLOW TO
STABILZED FLOW
CHANNEL
PROPQSED GRADE
(VARIES BY SITE
CONDITIONS)

NOTE: PROPOSED GRADE DEPENDENT ON SITE SPECIFIC CHARACTERISTICS SUCH AS
SOIL TYPE, VEGETATIVE COVER, AND WATER MOVEMENT ABOVE AND BELOW GRADE.

SELECTIVE GRADING AND SHAPING

11/2" 1.D. ANODIZED
ALUMINUM PIPE RAIL

1'-5 5/8"

210"
L
|

CORE DRILL AND GROUT PACK OR
TAPERED SLEEVE AND GROUT PACK

1'- 4 3/8"

L

4000 PSI CONC WITH
6x6 W2.9xW2.9 W.W.F.

6 , 6"

COMPACTED
SAND

COMPACTED
SUBGRADE

NON SHRINK-NON METALIC
GROUT AROUND POST

HANDRAI
@

O STEEL POST GUARD RAIL

OVERLAP BLANKETS SIDE BY
SIDE USING A 4° OVERLAP

AV
OVERLAP END OF UPSLOPE
BLANKET 12° OVER
DOWNSLOPE BLANKET.
SECURE WITH STAPLES

BURY TOE OF BLANKET IN TRENCH
6" WDE BY 6" DEEP

NOTES: @ PLACE MULCH BLANKET PARALLEL TO FLOW AND ANCHOR SECURELY.

WHEN BLANKETS ARE USED IN FLOWING DITCH, BLANKETS SHOULD NOT OQVERLAP IN
DITCH CENTER PARALLEL TO FLOW.

(3) STAPLES INSTALLED/SECURED ACCORDING TO MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS.
@ WHERE POSSIBLE, CONSTRUCT WITH BIODEGRADABLE MATERIAL

MULCH BLANKETS

EQUAL SPACING (6' MAX)

12"

4"

LANDING WIDTH
PER PLAN

2% (TYP)

TREAD DEPTH
(SEE NOTES)

¥/

< " CONCWALK -

——

#4BAR

GEOTEXTILE
(NON~WOVEN)

#4BAR

SECTION B-B

1220.C.

11/2° DIA. STEEL PIPE (TYP)

INFILL W/ 1/4" STEEL PICKETS @ 4°0.C. (TYP)

12"

82

BAR@ 12 O.C. (TYP|

0

OPEN

CONC. STAIR WITH
CAST-IN-PLACE
NOSING (TYP)

SEE JOINT DETAIL

| CONCWALK -, <

(NIW) 9 €

@ CONCRETE STAIR WITH HANDRAIL

STABILIZE WTH SEED &
MULCH, VEGETATIVE
PLANTINGS, OR SOD

RIPRAP DEPTH=1.5 X MAXIMUM
STONE DIAMETER OR 12°
(WHICHEVER IS GREATER)

STREAM BANK APPIICATION

EXCAVATE AND SHAPE
TO DESIGN GRADIENT

ORDINARY HIGH
WATER MARK

STABLE BED

L L 4
{WITH SUITABLE MATERIAL) I I 3 1.5 X MAXIMUM

STONE DIAMETER

U by,

(WHICHEVER IS GREATER)

T
Seoie

x
QAT&:»!
282510

RIPRAP

PROVIDE CONTROL JOINTS EVERY 10' AND
EXPANSION JOINTS EVERY 50' (TYP.)

20"

<2

18

ASPHALT
PAVEMENT

TOPSOIL

3,500 PSI CONC.

4" MIN. COMPACTED
SAND CUSHION

K

COMPACTED SUBGRADE

A2

EMBED POST IN

CONCRETE

SPACING 6~10" MAX.

JOINT

e

INSTALLATION DETALL =~ [SOMETRIC VIEW

INLET PROTECTION — FABRIC DROP

PROVIDE CONTROL JOINTS EVERY 10' AND

ASPHALT
PAVEMENT

&

[ 138°

KD

9

5112
EXPANSION JOINTS EVERY 50 (TYP)) =
TOPSOIL —

3,500 PSI CONC.

4" MIN. COMPACTED

SAND CUSHION

COMPACTED SUBGRADE

* 50' MINIMUM LENGTH

LENGTH OF STABILIZED ROAD

50'

2°-3" CRUSHED ROCK (8" DEPTH)

MINIMUM LENGTH
LENGTH OF STABILIZED ROAD

be taken to prevent material movement into adjocent wetlands/waterbodies.
be taken to maintain existing roadside drainage via culvert instaliation, with sediment
placed downflow of cuivert.

STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ACCESS

VARIES (PER PLAN)

l
I_

£4 CURB & GUTTER

SAWCUT EXISTING
CURB & GUTTER

ol
_I

}

RADIUS PER PLAN

1* EXPANSION
JOINT (TYP)

3

A

VARIES (PER PLAN)

)

BITUMINOUS
SURFACE

BITUMINOUS
SURFACE

9 TYP
5
| 1 TYP

3,500 PSI CONC

N )
G QLA
NP VW),\\f SECTION A-A N

4

4

O MDOT F-4 CONC. CURB/GUTTER (PITCH IN) W/OUT REBAR @ MDOT F-4 CONC. CURB/GUTTER (PITCH OUT) W/OUT REBAR Q CONC. DRIVE APPROACH & GUTTER PAN

T O ©
O 58 5T
Z D 5N
3NES
s ag oo
ZO! 5T C L
> C oo
W 885u
L <52
S5%
Z Jd=233
-— %'é
o $i7
Z T %
(1T} -
> [ .
§2g » gEh§
6T S8 ©Y SBOoL
T2 28 _Sest
~Z8co0v5z 8502
w5 T CLECcC o000 TEN
+RsoluUingsBEDY
S ELSTa5a3 08
Qo ¢ 1 c
cgocgtefigess
"nETE 202088858
DB B855905°0 2
FUG3coNDGeEESGS
o
— IZ >3
uJI..IJ
) L mgm
xS
O gu¥
OO0 2=
n
0 — m<2(9
LLI frsag
— "_D
T W g==
QO Eeg
<3O

CITY OF KENTWOOD, KENT COUNTY, MICHIGAN

PT. OF THE SW 1/4 SEC. 36, T6N, R11W

60th STREET

4175 60TH ST SE
KENTWOOD, MI 49512

[o}
A
B
C
D
E
F
G

Issued for
Description
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN TO OWNER

10/11/2023] REVISED LAYOUT
10/23/2023| REVISED LAYOUT

Plans are preliminary & incomplete until ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION

11/06/20231 ADDED NORTH LAYOUT
05/22/2024| PUD / SITE PLAN APPROVAL

02/21/2024| SITE PLAN
05/17/2024] REV. LAYOUT

Date
6/23/2023

Project Manager
RYAN T. YSSELDYKE, PE

Vertical Datum Horz. Datum

Drawn by
PETER BULTEN, P.E.

Checked by Date
Survey

Civil

Struc.

L. A

HEI Project Number

22-11-027

Sheet Title

GENERAL
DETAILS CONT.

Sheet No.

. C-502 |




4 9l12-26€-919 4 8€6G-26€-919 L 98) Soles 8y
105 BULISBUIBUBPUBIOU uew; Jo1ealB ou Junowe €05 ‘ . . NOILONYLSNOD ¥O4 Q3NSSI 13un sjeidwooul  Aieuwiaid ale sueiq
GoL5-ccvaw BN P e et psp o [0Z3LINS. 3N 1S NYOHOW st NVOIHOIN "ALNNOD LN ‘GOOMLNIN 40 ALID [5 rbvady i 315 rons [eres| | )
pJeAs|nog JeAoOH 022 10 SBUELIEM ‘JONPUODSI AT3SON . - ML NIL ‘9¢ "03S v/l MS 3HL 40 '1d |2 LNOAVT 'A3Y |¥202/4L/S0 |  uf m.ua. . >-
sso1b ‘soueBBoL avydg "N NLLY 3 NV1d 3L [reoenzizo] X [n ole nﬂ < 4|
'S80IAI3S jeuaissajoud ‘ a LNOAVT HL¥ON a3dav [szozieont| 3|2 = ol OC=Z| O
sJaeulbug / s 0honing ¢ls6v IN JOOMIN3INM 3 m = il g ! oz <
ONIY 841 10 0 Buisye |_|2m_>_ n_OI_ LNOAVY1 a3SIA3Y [ezozezior |« o {u L - W w
n JANIONI ~ 950U 0} Py 10U I |—|w< m>m0 dS IS H109G.LY [ LNOAVT Q3SIA3Y |€202/1 10t m,m E 5 m <1 m > LW 1
Buipnjous ‘swie)d je pue OO D \4 H3INMO OL NV1d LIS AYVYNIWININd | €202/€29 | & — | 8 ol ) 5 N o D|n. (]
Aue 10} Aynqe) s esuibug m — —l._l—l 0 = o Fx|o > ] 9 CN B o C
g OH [“Fimmn: 13341S Y09 = — s H R A
[s) { >3 = = —-—
: a |2 A GRZ KS 1 K2 o 5 £ \
a4 2
o
R = z
© & g 8 S =
- - = i £ 2 =
= =8 £ 308 g5y o @)
Q MM W —
. 3 2 m - I T
N 2 i U] -mlv P |4 e L
- - 0 2 3 Z 7p)
< © .6 2 < g
2 .m.lll : 2 Hls
io il & 3" =<
20 — z w|=
o Ced 3 w
M RSN 2| = w o
Q/ Ym m.,w.h . ﬁl = %
: ot < 3|2 g |z
A S / ale o = g g alS
I e W m M mN Ed Q
o) o W % |3 m - B
,,,,,,,,, I | TEE s O[3
mn SRR |z
w m é Dm m it g2 m " m O _W
AN K 2 |2
g Qzls =, 5° B 3
-2 =g s 2
ol & ol TN
: o S
2 =N
2 N
N
\ N "
[ \ m
g N 3
z N 2
2 \ 2
/ w|
A
4
o
x o
e )
- I
w =
T .
pge] L1
@x —
Irw
S IBs
o o _ < 3
» < _ > 2
— l _.v._N_
IIIIIII &
®
‘
4 2y
w @ [ m
& 3 <
zze S ¥ gE 3
US2% 2 g £= 2| 2
b3t & & 28 3l 3

SS 4
RT @ 1.13%

— - -
-9
AN B~ 5
. & & © W o
— o 5 i o
RN R w >3 ¢ P> m
2 S | L1
Y M (e] 3 " i B! P
\ - =
\ 5% % Z o % &
o0 M N N © >
i oo Q d 2o
§ TT4 o ; ()] oo
5 % W & o =
x/;. O - o \\, o m
M o m o P .
e oo — E;R
. iR MW / [T TT]
.G e [@ Jpu}
58
- o O
o e &
- e s
o T e
Y
ALY
//
e // *
N AN
~ AN
/; /
AN
S gaapen T
N ——,
N ﬁ
o

EX. ROW LINE

<3 .

_
_
_
_
|




; b A N ; s T \\\/,// AT \ ( e )
) N o e { S b . N n z gggg
: /s N o o\ : N - D o
\ - S o7 - - ) A A N = 8383
/ = Co2 e AN AT RU Z o gIEL
, e ™ ~ = . ~ { ' . ,: — o ©
[ - ‘ i ™y ~ o2 i y u SSEw
/ N ‘ / ™ /- Loyt o \ w IO
' ¢ - - J N T - ~ NP ES AN - o O
\\ (. \ AN — / - ,‘i {’/ /\ e _ {,, } — T g // \ [ x } Z g E g 8
S IO TN = e
S UNE 'S 1/2, SW 174, sec 36 R PN T SRR -l 0 538
> ; N e S L / Jopitr /2 RCE 2%é
N AN . { 3 o, . , /i ! ~—
- anes e (gt ———— P _L_7__““/4__1__4__/_“1__,;_i. o 50° 100" 200' I ﬁ &
SCALE 1" = 100" C)
........ i ; \ _ ’ - O
T/ e~ /g s @ r VoL e
’ ‘h\l \\\\\ ) . ; ‘ //‘ \ N A e / /,f . a frm m e e - /f y ._A\ \\\ ™ e “. L
® \ o - ‘W -~ N e {3 “\\ - !
X - : i 1 \* \\\\\ L < ~ - s — ~ o — !_/ ;'f \i =N . ~ i (
» o T Ot T AT ~ ) \ NN ‘;Aﬁ@ \ N e ~ ; i A | / o K -
Ry AN s, X 7 A { S \ _~ & > 5
“, TDPE}.O 4 8 ol i (\ R RESRAR ~ = :t v D\' Mo // \ \_// | A § ‘§§ g @ é g § E
L e W 41=g8736-300-020 N, L o | BRI
‘\/”‘“'// '-0 | N o R pIARNIE. e I \ \ AN T / {E"_‘-’Ecmgm‘:"égm‘
/ : : s \4773\6017%, SZTREE/Z,SE/,// - Y S %%E%"‘S%gﬁ'%i?,’f
- o { . + 9 = 3 e @ o Q
, = CONTAIN$“55.92 ACRES -~ e o~ FECEI IS
7 7 7 / ) ) Tl e Ve RclPOPgoo38
-~ / 7 . { , e . VDT BEF5ODRBO2 g
5 Lo« { N ~ FGG25388EE8EE
= RN N T U ‘.~  PROHOSED )
2-MAPLE N N . \ O el Drteey .
)i SN ‘ L . NN v _ -WAREHOUSE - — - 5
-TUPELOY | 1y PROP. 2-FT WIDE STONE  \ \ \ \ - N S
5)‘1 1 I MAINTENANCE STRPE N \ v/ BUIUDING 5
g e ; | | AROUND BUILDING (TYP) ‘\0 { \ / 600.008 SF 4 \ ¢
- - o - . . CN . « VD - ' ‘
g % 3 N ) \ \ y {
52 7 : : N S A W Ty . FFE37550
1) K - N \ N N N ~ N ~ = '
s o 1 N TN N N S A] (R | .
2 : . L { 5’ —— - . N ~ 4 >- =
| e Y ~ | - { < - \ ™~ ~ N\ LLl w
. K . TN ‘ . . \ ~ 3 i N . ) Q \\\ m (D =
{ {8 " /_/,"‘ A __’._‘ oo l g ¢ ‘ ‘ H \\ ‘ ) oDm
3 I o Dl l A N N \ AN N X N . < E trm%
i ;‘ ‘. ¥ ! Y RN N N\ N ~N { AN — i \ N (o))
] | A ! i o - N\ N \ \ \\\\ N, v O & D le-I :
416 / ; P /\ Xz. S . N \\ N \“ — v \\ O O é — E
N ’ k ; gil ~ { i \\“_ 4 \ N mef
| T } { y 7 Y a Ny \ \ D — -<Z(9
o 1 [ 2 . L ‘; ' 1090.0 W xo%
2 o | {2 xS =58
o ! i o . L] 2 el
seg® |G (77 L W 2z
A it ) F QO <36
E wn o= Hl SR s N 1-REDBUD 1-REDBUD
('l i il ‘B N
uz_.<o:nlm~ t H LA ELEV MAPLE
) EW
o 2 z X1 I 1-TUPELO
b— ~ . H . R h\
(Q ; e 13 ‘\ ' Y
wo ® b A "% WNEE) -
" ( B NN A AR g e e — T M = - <C
TR e N I s R S SRS — == =
] Y LN O It A Rl Sy S VIR e SRR T NG RN R S SO T = " e P N/—-'—‘—’"'F": g AN T el ™
: B Y e . N e e o ‘P\\ N M= A= P~y O
1. (IS = 7 ‘ T e 47 S | . 1-TUPELO | < E_
; 1, ] s PSP E LN T SN L Yo I P I O 5 I B N N L N e N T b e T et T vl [~ ., § >~
: AV / Ry - R R R N . T T T R T R T T T T e T : -
NN A ' 1-TUPELO < P e
- y /5 ) : ©
) UL i/ e w? /. O
il AR A A < TR 2T \ A =< »Z
f (‘k P~ o5y \{; g X N N \ N : > Z
Iy T ALY S ,&"j‘" oy U \\E\\\\\\\ RS \ : O
N"\%@(\ IS A9 Rt ) R R B | / < SOTPPN PN D o~ W
%\Q %QP‘ 3 88N i I / »\\: » \\\ NN \ <\ ~ - m — U) Q
%FP:\“?\ ‘ : ....... ii I | / /\:_\«:\\\\\\_‘ N ~ /// ‘ \ 8 v O
e I RETREA AN N Y < P Z L S mm—m— S g > =) N ; > = E
I R | TR RRANE 2y — e =5 = 112,00 Sl E =
N RSN AN -z e -
3 N | =R RN A 2 o5 I = o~ L wu
I o ASNAS weTE=S Q ~ U) Q I X
P 1 o NN B . ~ I
| | o< IN S8 LN | o FO Fu
| | (@) N < 3 00 -C o ™ o
I | 2 g3 %% i Wk L35 &
| R =8 3% i . Oz F
0 l = W o ll‘\; ‘ p- -~ —
1 T - - —— B ©s% oo
- = b
8 | L_ 8_%1\%__—— . LIS Sl<|o]olofu|u]o]|3
2 / 7] =
I! | 5 0 _I} { g
| S ” - &
I : S e B A = )L\Eﬂ __________________ ) :
| w o
1 | | - - S 5
N90°00°00"W 1277.51 8 | i
— - <1y
oV CENTERLINE OF P.0.B. S| |z . 3|2
o ¥ PARCEL D 3 3 £l
RS 60TH STREET B [ElelE] | [EIE
) . El=lE
Nee® (PUBLIC R.OW. PLANTING NOTES: S| 55515 | [z]3
B\ & S. LINE, SW 1/4, SEC. 36 A % g g ,g % 3 g
1. LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS: g HFRREHERE E
11, GREENBELT ALONG FRONTAGE: 10' WIDE WITH 1 CANOPY TREE + 7 SHRUBS PER 40'. 3' PLANTING BERM REQUIRED ALONG MAJOR ARTERIAL STREET glzl2l2|glz|2]5]
PC MAY APPROVE SUBSTITUTION OF EVERGREEN TREES FOR UP TO 50%. 8| g g ESIHHEIE
1.1.1. REQUIRED ON 60th: 1,277' /40 = 31.9 =32 TREES + 224 SHRUBS £
1.1.1.1. PROVIDED ON 60th: EXISTING VEGETATION TO REMAIN (210' BETWEEN ROW AND PROPOSED TRAILER PARKING), «|RIR[R]%[3I3] &
[\ 1 E=1 k=1 k=1 k=1 k=1 k=] @
11.2. REQUIRED ON EAST PARIS:1066' / 40 = 26.6 = 27 TREES + 189 SHRUBS HENNHEHENE
ANT LIST 1.1.2.1. PROVIDED ON EAST PARIS: EXISTING VEGETATION TO REMAIN (407' BETWEEN ROW AND PROPOSED PARKING) 21215(81815[5[]) 2
PL 2. BUFFER ZONES: NOT REQUIRED ADJACENT TO INDUSTRIAL M EEEEEEE
s QTY. KEY SIZE COMMON NAME BOTANICAL NAME MATURE SIZE/COMMENTS 3. PARKING (OVER 101-200 SPACES): 1 CANOPY TREE + 100 SF LANDSCAPED AREAS PER 12 SPACES. 1/3 SHALL BE WITHIN INTERIOR OF PARKING AREA Project Manager
REINFORCED RUBBER HOSE FOR SHADE TREES (WITHIN 18' SURROUNDING PARKING). DISPERSED THROUGHOUT PARKING LOT. 3' WALL OR 2 EVERGREEN HEDGE REQUIRED IN FRONT YARD. RYAN T. YSSELDYKE, PE
A FACH STRAND OF WIRE REMOVE ALL BURLAP, ™ N9 MAPLE 2-1/2BB  CELEBRATION MAPLE ACER X FREEMANII 'CELZAM' 45Hx25'S; SEEDLESS; COMPACT; RED & GOLD FALL COLOR 31.  REQUIRED WEST PARKING LOT: 116 SPACES/ 12 = 9.6 = 10 TREES IN 1,000 SF LANDSCAPED AREA Veries et Fios Do
NN WREs! SPAGED EvENIY AROUNS R WIRE AND TWINE FROM dN2 REDBUD  24/2'BB  REDBUD CERCIS CANADENSIS 30HX25'S; HEART-SHAPED LEAVES; GOLDEN-YELLOW FALL COLOR 311.  PROPOSED WEST PARKING LOT: 10 TREES IN 2,400 SF LANDSCAPED AREA
o TOP PART OF BALL N7 TUPELO  24/2BB  TUPELO/BLACK GUM NYSSA SYLVATICA 50'HX30'S; PYRAMIDAL; ORANGE, RED & GOLD FALL COLOR 32, REQUIRED SOUTH PARKING LOT: 64 SPACES / 12 = 5.33 = 6 TREES IN 600 SF LANDSCAPED AREAS : '
: 5 o R L R " 321 PROPOSED SOUTH PARKING LOT: 6 TREES IN 1,450 SF LANDSCAPE AREA Drawn by
SURVEYOR'S » 50% OVERLAP. TIE AT 2° INTERVALS. 4" SHREDDED BARK P 2.1, : .
e p EXTEND ABOVE FIRST BRANCHES. MULCH EXCEPT AS 4. STORM BASIN: NATURAL APPEARANCE WITH 1 CANOPY OR EVERGREEN TREE + 9 SHRUBS PER 50' PERIMETER OF POND, PLANTED IN RANDOM PATTERN BRUCE ZEINSTRA, LLA
P \ REMOVE ALL BURLAP. WIRE AND NOTED ON THE PLANS NOT LIMITED TO TOP OF BANK. Checked by Date
6"x12" SAUCER AROUND 41.  PROPOSED: NONE - EXISTING STORM BASINS Surve
70 BE SAME g 47 SHREDDED BARK MULCH SROUND. LINE SHREDDED BARK. OMIT LAWN- SPARTAN GRADE A MIX 5. DUMPSTER: ENCLOSURE REQUIRED, LOCATED IN THE REAR YARD OR NON-REQUIRED SIDE YARD. SEE SEC F. ON PAGE 19:5. — y
';\foRAsTf-:RTw';I . L~ 6"x12" SAUCER AROUND SHREDDED AS AT THE IN SHRUB BEDS. SPARTAN GRADE A MIXTURE by Earth Carpet 51. NO EXTERIOR DUMPSTER PROPOSED Civil
APPROVED - BARK. QUIT IN SHRUB BEDS. NURSERY 10% Cannon Kentucky Biuegrass 6. ALL TREES AND SHRUBS SHALL BE PLANTED AMINIMUM OF 4' AWAY FROM PAVEMENT. PLANTS SHALL BE PLANTED OUTSIDE FRONT UTILTIY EASEMENT Struc
PLANT FOO — g 10% Gold Rush Kentucky Bluegrass AND AS CLOSE TO EDGE OF DRAINAGE EASEMENTS AS POSSIBLE. :
L/ { N oy S";g;’ggg;‘:ﬁ:gﬁ'::gﬁ 7. ALL LAWN AND PLANTING AREAS SHALL BE IRRIGATED WITH UNDERGROUND IRRIGATION IN SUCH WAY TO MAINTAIN VEGETATION IN A HEALTHY AND LA |. .
i GROWING MANNER. .
= = 25% SR5210 C Red F HEI Project Numb
—— 25 SRE210 Croeping o Fsce 8. ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY OWNER. TREES AND OTHER VEGETATION THAT DIE SHALL BE PROMPTLY REPLACED WITH IN KIND r°’22 u,i" 1e' 027
d ,1 43 15%0%01':/3% ' |_PEAT § 10% Manhatian 4 Perennial Ryegrass VEGETATION. = -
3 /2 8ol ; PLANTING SOIL 5 LBS. PER 1000 SQUARE FEET 9. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE SPECIFIED TREES, SHRUBS, GROUND COVERS AND OTHER PLANT MATERIAL THAT COMPLY WITH ALL RECOMMENDATIONS | |smesreae
o Dio. Min BT Wons: S X BACKFILL MIXTURE HYDROSEED ALL AREAS WITH A SLURRY OF SEED AND REQUIREMENTS OF ANSI Z60.1 "AMERICAN STANDARD FOR NURSERY STOCK." PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE HEALTHY, VIGOROUS STOCK GROWN WITH LANDS
. TREATED WOOD STAKE b PULVERIZED MULCH, FERTILIZER AND WATER. GOOD HORTICULTURAL PRACTICE AND INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH METHODS ESTABLISHED BY THE AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF NURSERYMEN. CAPE
B 67 COARSE AGGREGATE i i L - UNDISTURBED PLACE IN ALL DISTURBED AREAS NOT LABELED AS 10 SEED SHALL BE PLACED OVER 6" TOPSOIL IN ALL PROPOSED LAWN AREAS AND ALL AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION EXCEPT AS NOTED ON THE PLANTING
oSlg : \ ON BASIN SEED MIX "
¥ PLATTIG oLz SR e S LANTING SOl CONGISTNG OF 1 A%)QRE?LS ?/g ggg}N SoostT;fﬁ?ﬁiﬁg EE:LLT (B)ESS&CED IN ALL GROUND COVER AND FLOWER BEDS. DEPTH SHALL
glog'éo%osRTAc')NR erggw ![-_‘__III_‘;TER SOCK 4” ADS UNDERDRAIN WITH FILTER 11. EIEA[\T(;‘:'NLC};E g(s)l#HCj\ONNSS“ISTING OF 1/3 SOIL, . PLAN
SOCK SLOPE TO STORM SEWER )
(IF REQUIRED FOR DRANAGE) (IF REQUIRED FOR DRAINAGE) 6. FOLLOWING CONSTRUCTION, RESTORE ALL DISTURBED AREAS WITH EARTH CARPET SPARTAN GRADE "A" SEED MIX, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. Sheet No.
UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE 7. PLANT MATERIAL SUBSTITUTIONS SHALL BE APPROVED BY OWNER & LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT. L 1 O O
TREE PLANTING DETAIL SHRUB PLANTING DETAIL \ - )

\_ J




STAFF REPORT:

July 1,2024

PREPARED FOR: Kentwood Planning Commission

PREPARED BY: Lisa Golder

CASE NO.: 18-24 4301 — 60™ Street (Steelcase PUD) Major Change

GENERAL INFORMATION

APPLICANT: Eric Calcatera Elizabeth Girgen
Steelcase Inc. Project Manager, Facilities
901 44" Street SE Steelcase Inc.
Grand Rapids MI 4950

STATUS OF

APPLICANT: Steelcase facilities representatives

REQUESTED ACTION: Applicant is requesting a major change an approved site plan for the
Steelcase PUD

EXISTING ZONING OF

SUBJECT PARCEL: IPUD — Industrial Planned Unit Development

GENERAL LOCATION: 4301 60™ Street SE

PARCEL SIZE: 62.5 Acres

EXISTING LAND USE Vacant

ON THE PARCEL:

ADJACENT AREA N: Vacant; future facility (200,000 sq ft)

LAND USE S: 60" Street; Gaines Township

. LAND USE E: Vacant, future phases of the Steelcase PUD

W: Future Third Coast Development site (Case 15-24)

ZONING: ON ADJOINING

PARCELS: N, W& E: IPUD Industrial Planned Unit Development

S: I-1 Industrial (Gaines Township)

Compatibility With Master Plan

The Master Plan recommends industrial use for the site.




Staff Report

Case No. 18-24 4301 — 60™ Street PUD Major Change

Page 2

Relevant Zoning Ordinance Sections

General standards for Planned Unit Developments are found in Section 12.01 and 12.02 of the
Zoning Ordinance. Permitted uses, development requirements, and other development guidelines
for Industrial PUDs are found in Section 12.08 of the Kentwood Zoning Ordinance. Standards for
PUD approval can be found in Section 12.10 and 12.12 of the Zoning Ordinance. Site plan
standards are found in Chapter 14 of the Zoning Ordinance.

Zoning History

The property was zoned for agriculture and low density residential prior to 1980. In 1980, 358.9
acres of land was rezoned from Agricultural and R1-B Low Density Residential to I-1 Light
Industrial. At the same time, Steelcase sought an extension of the Grand Rapids Sewer Service
District to serve this section. In 1982 the Light Industrial zoning was amended to an Industrial
Planned Unit Development (IPUD) of 408 acres, and a development plan was adopted at that
time. In 1987 four parcels totaling 99 acres were added to the IPUD to create the 507-acre
development. At that time, it was envisioned that Steelcase would someday build and occupy
approximately 6 million square feet of manufacturing, shipping, distribution and other operations
within the campus.

In 2014 a Major Change to the approved Steelcase site plan was approved through the Planning
and City Commissions. A new development agreement was approved and signed by all the
property owners—Steelcase, Franklin Partners, Roskam Baking, as well as the city.

In 2017 another amendment to the Steelcase PUD was approved to allow the construction of a
credit union and to allow for the increase of square footage of several of the buildings in the
southeast corner of the PUD. The PUD Agreement/Plan that incorporates these changes is
attached.

In 2023 the city approved a major change to the approved PUD plan that would allow the sale of
27 acres of land along 52™ Street to Transport Properties Inc. for use as truck parking, storage
and maintenance.

Case 15-24 Third Coast Development involves the proposed development of 600,000 square feet
of industrial property to the west. This area was formerly proposed to allow 350,000 square feet
of manufacturing area and 45,000 square feet of office. The increase in square footage and a
proposed driveway to East Paris constitute a major change to the Steelcase PUD.

Project Overview

Steelcase is the current owner of 4301 60™ Street, located to the east of the proposed Third Coast
Development Inc project (Case 15-24). Steelcase still owns and would potentially develop the
property (Building G) to the north of the Third Coast property. The Kentwood West Plant
(Building K4) is north of Building G and requires a secure entry/exit due to customs
requirements. Up until now, Building K4 has been accessed through the gated entry off 527
Street. Steelcase would like to have the ability to move all truck traffic to a new, secure 600
Street access. The request is to allow the new access that is 1,200 feet east of the existing
boulevard entrance off 60% Street and 1,000 feet from the existing eastern driveway that serves
ETO Magnetic and Roskam.




Staff Report

Case No. 18-24 4301 — 60™ Street PUD Major Change

Page 3

Any amendment to the PUD Plan is reviewed to determine whether it is a major or a minor
change. A minor change can proceed directly to final PUD approval, while a major change
requires re-approval of the preliminary plan by both the Planning and City Commissions. The
proposed additional curb cut is considered a major change to the approved site plan.

TECHNICAL INFORMATION

Streets and Traffic:

The approved Steelcase PUD Plan currently has two driveways to 60™ Street. Since the original
development was intended for Steelcase facilities only, access within the PUD was through an
internal loop road. Now that multiple businesses occupy the Steelcase PUD, more consideration
has been given to allow new curb cuts to support the traffic and security requirements of the
users. At the same time, shared internal driveways are still encouraged and required in order to
reduce the number of curb cuts on the public streets.

The applicant has contracted with Fishbeck Inc to analyze the traffic on 60" Street and at nearby
intersections, as per the PUD Development Agreement. The conclusions of the analysis are
attached. Since 60™ Street is a county road, the traffic study has been forwarded to the Kent
County Road Commission for review.

The study indicates that in future conditions (2025), southbound traffic for the existing Steelcase
driveway (Data Drive) will degrade from a LoS B to LoS E in the AM peak and from LoS B to
LoS F in the PM peak hour. The only recommendation for mitigation study is for a west bound
right turn lane at the existing Steelcase driveway and offsetting the shifts at the manufacturing
buildings. In addition, the study only considered the development of a 350,000 square foot
facility for the Third Coast property, rather than the 600,000 square foot facility that is being
proposed. The traffic study does not appear to take into account the impact of Third Coast
Development’s East Paris access. This may impact the function of the southbound right turn at
East Paris and 60™ Street; the traffic study indicates that the queue for the southbound right turn
at 60™ Street will exceed the provided storage length by one vehicle in the AM peak hour, and
five vehicles in the PM peak hour.

If the proposed Steelcase 60™ Street driveway is approved, the traffic analysis recommends a
deceleration lane only. The new proposed Steelcase driveway is anticipated to have a LoS of A-
B in both the AM and PM peaks.

Internal Circulation: :

The Steelcase PUD was developed with the concept of an internal roadway system for truck and
employee circulation. Steelcase currently has an existing north-south driveway (North-South
Drive) that extends between proposed buildings K and G and the Physical Distribution Center.
Since the boulevard driveway (Data Drive) is projected to have a LoS E and F after the
construction of these buildings, it would be reasonable to have some of the traffic from these
locations diverted to the Steelcase proposed 60™ Street access. In addition, the North-South
Drive could serve as the north-south access to Building G, as depicted in the overall Master Plan
for the Steelcase site. If customs requirements dictate a more secure location, the Steelcase




Staff Report
Case No. 18-24 4301 — 60™ Street PUD Major Change

Page 4

guard shack can be relocated to an area near Building G, or, near the substation on the Steelcase
property.

Site Characteristics:

The 62.5 acre site is undeveloped. Detention Pond 4 exists on the site. The proposed driveway
to 60™ Street would have to cross between Ponds 3 and 4. Information on wetlands within this
area should be provided.

Staff Review

1.

Steelcase is the current owner of 4301 60™ Street, located to the east of the proposed
Third Coast Development Inc project (Case 15-24). Steelcase still owns and would
potentially develop the property (Building G) to the north of the Third Coast property.
The Kentwood West Plant (Building K4) is north of Building G and requires a secure
entry/exit due to customs requirements. Up until now, Building K4 has been accessed
through the gated entry off 52 Street. Steelcase would like to have the ability to move
all truck traffic to a new, secure 60™ Street access. The request is to allow the new access
that is 1,200 feet east of the existing boulevard entrance off 60 Street and 1,000 feet
from the existing eastern driveway that serves ETO Magnetic and Roskam.

The applicant needs to show through the traffic analysis the intended circulation for the
Kentwood West Plant (Building K4).

. Third Coast and Steelcase should consider shared access to both the boulevard driveway

and the new proposed driveway in order to disperse traffic. In no event will truck traffic
be allowed to circulate to East Paris Avenue.

Steelcase should indicate why their North-South driveway is not adequate for access to
Building G, especially if Building G becomes a Steelcase building.

The proposed new driveway for Steelcase is located between Ponds 3 and 4. The
applicant should indicate whether wetlands exist in this area.

Attributes:

Curb cut may be needed for customs security for Building K4

Traffic analysis indicates deteriorating level of service for existing boulevard entrance;
another driveway would disperse traffic

Curb cut is located 1200 feet from the existing Steelcase driveway (Data Drive)

Issues:

Wetlands information for proposed curb cut

Cooperation needed between Steelcase and Third Coast Development to disperse traffic
Maintenance provisions for shared driveways

Guard shack maybe required to be relocated in order to satisfy customs requirements
Accessibility to 60™ Street between the two detention ponds



Traffic study did not take into account the proposed 600,000 square foot building proposed

for third Coast Development

Case No. 18-24 4301 — 60™ Street PUD Major Change
[

Staff Report
Page 5

O I R T POt
Ty WA

gy [V Jee e |

Y e

Bp ﬂy///#////////%/////m AN
LS g NN
AN N
; ,:mm Rl o 1
3 N e
SNE e

e -
1
umw THI ] U . i
| UEARE S | e or e il

o - S e

e !
=S o

Traffic study does not show impact of proposed Third Coast driveway at intersection of

East Paris and 60 Street

Steelcase PUD



June 21, 2024

Lisa Golder

City of Kentwood
4900 Breton Rd SE
Kentwood, MI 49508

RE: PUD Statement
Dear Ms. Golder:

Steelcase is requesting approval for an additional curb cut along 60th Street. In support of the sale of 4175 60th
Street SE, we are working to separate our property from this new parcel by creating a new entry point to our
campus. As your aware, CTPAT requires the need to have a secure and controlled property to maintain this
certification. As part of the property sale, we have outlined a plant to create a new entrance to meet our
requirements and address internal circulation within our remaining properties. During the early evaluation
process, we believe that a secure entrance off 60th Street would support an entrance for our truck traffic

patterns more efficiently. Therefore, we are requesting the City of Kentwood to approve a new curb cut along
60th street.

Our initial vision of a new entrance along 60th Street would be utilized to support truck traffic with a new secure
access point and the 52nd Street entrance would transition to an employee only entrance. This will alleviate
safety concerns with the existing traffic pattern at 52nd Street. Per the draft site plan, you will see that the
proposed new curb cut would tie into the previous forecasted PUD interior ring road design to the north and
west,

Please reach out if you have any questions. We appreciate the City of Kentwood’s ongoing support.

Sincerely,

/‘ e
%MO @W Pe
{
Elizabeth Girgen, PE

Project Manager, Facilities
Steelcase

Steelcase Global Facilities & Real Estate Steelcase.com
P.O. Box 1967

Grand Rapids, M 49501-1967
United States



Steelcase
Traffic Impact Study

Steelcase, Inc.

Project No. 231538
November 27, 2023

s

ishbeck

rs | Architects | Scientists | Con:




Tab!e Q»f Contents | Fishbeck | Page

EXQCUEIVE SUMMAIY ottt oo El
1.0 IMEOQUCTION ..ottt bttt oo 1
1.1 PTOJECE OVRIVIEW .. vttt oo 1
1.2 SUUAY MEtNOOIORY vttt 1
1.3 INEErSECtION CRAFACIEMISHCS ..ottt oo 2
1.4 ROBAWRY CRRIACKEIISHES .ot 2
1.5 EXISHNg Traffic VOIUMES ... 2
1.6 MUIGMOGal CHAFACIERISHICS ..ot 5
2.0 2023 EXISUNG CONTILIONS ANBIVSIS .ottt 5
2.1 Traffic Operations Analysis MELROOIOBY ......ccvvvresevrvcvcescsesssioeooce e 5
2.2 2023 Existing Conditions Traffic ANBIYSIS ottt 5
2.3 CIASN ANBIYSIS ..ottt oo 7
3.0 2025 Background Conditions ANBIYSIS vttt 8
31 2025 Background Conditions Traffic ANBIYSIS ..o 10
4.0 SIEE TFAFFC CRAACTENISHICS. ottt oo 11
4.1 TID GENEIALION .ottt ettt 11
5.0 2025 Future Conditions Analysis .............. s ettt 16
5.1 UM LANE WAITANES sttt oo 16
5.2 2025 Future Conditions Traffic ANAIVSIS oo 16
6.0 Findings and Recommendations................ccoooooooemmmvmmvoo e st e, 18
List of Figures
Figure 1 - Project Location and STUGY NEIWOTK oo 1
Figure 2 — 2023 Existing Lane CONIBUIAIONS oo 3
Flgure 3 =2023 Exsting Trffic VOIUMES ..ot 4
Flgure 4 ~2025 Background Traffic VOIUMES ..ot 9
Figure 5 — Conceptual Site e 11
Figure 6 —Steelcase REIOCAtION VOIUMES wovv.v.vvesctnrosoessos oo 13
FIgUTe 7= Trp GENETALION VOIUMES ..t 14
Figure 8 = 2025 FULUE Traffic VOIUMES ..ot 15
List of Tables
Table 1~ PrODOSEd IMPIOVEMENLS ...ttt oo E1
Table 2 = ROAWAY ChATBCHENISHES vt 2
Table 3= SIgNal CharaCteriStics ....vo.v.vorviercnseess oot oo e —— 2
Table 4 = LOS CrILeria ......covvverseseoiorooooeeceseeseseecesooooooooo et bbb ettt e s eeee e es 5
Table 5 —LOS Analysis for 2023 EXISHING CONAILIONS.....covvsvosvvensneccrecceencssesoee oo oo 6
Table 6—Crash Summary by LOCtON ..vvovvvveoereeo et 7
Table 7 — Crash Summary by TYPE cotcrcee e ettt 7
Table 8 — LOS Analysis for 2025 Background Conditions...........cc.cocccceeucvesenoneeocesesooooooo 10
Table S —Trip Generation for Proposed DVEIOPMENt w......coocvvvvceeesersssinnseses oo 11
TBI 10 = THD DISUIOUHON ..ttt 12
TAI& 11 = TUM LANE WAITANS ottt 16
Table 12 - LOS ANalysis for 2025 FUUTE CONAIIONS ...ccvvvvcinsors o 16
Table 13 = PropoSed IMPrOVEMENES ..ot 18

\\CORP.FTCH.COM\ALLPROJECT S\2023\231538\WORK\REPT\TIS\RPT_STEELCASE__TIS_2023__1127.DOCX



November 27, 2023 Fishbeck | Page E1

Executive Summary

Fishbeck has conducted a traffic impact study (TIS) related to a proposed development on the Steelcase property
located between 52nd Street, 60th Street, E Paris Avenue, and M-37 (Broadmoor Avenue) in the City of Kentwood
(City), Kent County, Michigan. The development will be built on a vacant parcel within the Steelcase property and
will consist of two manufacturing buildings with estimated sizes of 650,000 square feet (sft) and 350,000 sft. The
development will be completed in one phase, assumed to be open and fully operational in 2025.

Currently, all Steelcase traffic that enters or exits onto 60th Street utilizes a single driveway that is aligned with
Data Drive. With the addition of this new development, all Steelcase traffic that enters or exit onto 60th Street
will utilize a new driveway that will be approximately 1,200 feet east of the existing driveway/Data Drive. All
traffic generated by the new development will utilize the existing Steelcase Driveway.

This study was conducted according to the methodologies and guidance published by Institute of Transportation
Engineers (ITE), American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO), Michigan
Department of Transportation (MDOT), Kent County Road Commission (KCRC), and the City.

Vehicular Turning Movement Counts (TMCs) were collected at the study intersections on Thursday, September
21, 2023, during the weekday a.m. (7 to 9 a.m.) and p.m. (4 to 6 p.m.) peak periods for the roadway network.
There is ongoing construction at the Switch facility in the southeast quadrant of 60th Street and E Paris Avenue,
however KCRC indicated there was no traffic study performed for that expansion. There are no other known
projects in the site vicinity that would add additional traffic volumes or alter traffic patterns within the study
network. It is assumed that any additional traffic within the study network would be accounted for with the
growth factor that was applied to the existing volumes.

Site-generated traffic was forecast using the information and methodologies specified in the ITE Trip Generation
Manual. Existing traffic volumes, site layout, and engineering judgement were used to develop a trip distribution model
for the a.m. and p.m. peak hours for the new traffic that would be generated by the proposed development.
Additionally, directions of origin, surrounding residential densities, and commuting patterns were considered.

Capacity analyses were conducted for existing, background, and total future conditions based on the Highway
Capacity Manual (HCM) 6th Edition methodologies using Synchro traffic analysis software. Synchro network
models were also simulated using SimTraffic to evaluate network operations including intersection queueing.

Based on the findings of the HCM operational analyses, crash data, and site traffic generation, Table 1 — Proposed
Improvements has the recommended existing, background, and future improvements to the study intersections
to mitigate traffic impacts.

Table 1 —Proposed Improvements

Intersection 2.02-.5 92 2025 Future
Existing | Background

60th Street and Existing Steelcase Driveway - e Construct a WB right turn lane.

The opinions, findings, and conclusions expressed in this TIS are those of Fishbeck and not necessarily those of the
Owner/Applicant, MDOT, KCRC, or the City.

Prepared By: W ZM -
AlyssaVambold, PE, PTOE — Fishbeck Kyle Veidsma: PE, PTOE — Fishbeck

Project Manager

\\CORP.FTCH.COM\ALLPROJECTS\2023\231538\WORK\REPT\TIS\RPT_STEELCASE_TIS_2023_1127.00CX



November 27, 2023 o .o_.. _Fishbeck | Page 2

1.3 Intersection Characteristics

Based on the type and size of the proposed development and the likely area of influence for the site trips, traffic
operations were analyzed for the following intersections: ,

60th Street and E Paris Avenue (signalized).

60th Street and Existing Steelcase Driveway/Data Drive {minor-street stop-controlled).

60th Street and Alliance Beverage Driveway {minor-street stop-controlled).

60th Street and Roskam Baking Driveway/Arlo Plastics Driveway (minor-street stop-controlled).

60th Street and Patterson Avenue (signalized).

60th Street and Proposed Steelcase Driveway (proposed unsignalized driveway 1,200 feet east of Existing
Steelcase Driveway/Data Drive).

S e o

The existing intersection lane configurations, traffic controls, and posted speed limits are displayed in Figure 2 — 2023 Existing
Lane Configurations.

1.4 Roadway Characteristics

The characteristics of the study area roadways and signalized intersections are described in Table 2 — Roadway Characteristics
and Table 3 - Signal Characteristics. The data points referenced were from the Grand Valley Metropolitan Council (GVMCQ)
Traffic Count Database System (TCDS) and the MDOT Transportation Data Management System (TDMS) online maps.

Table 2 —Roadway Characteristics

Roadway durisdiction | Speed Limit (mph) | No. of Lanes Roadway Classification| Direction | AADT (vpd)
60th Street KCRC 552 5 | Minor Arterial \f/% ;’33; 88;3
E Paris Avenue City 50 2-3 Minor Arterial l;js gjgg ggg;
Patterson Avenue KCRC 55t 2-3 Minor Arterial SBB g:i;i gg;g;

'No posted speed limit. 55 MPH Prima Facie,
AADT Average Annual Daily Traffic
mph miles per hour

vpd vehicles per day

Table 3 - Signal Characteristics

Intersection Jurisdiction Left Turn Phasing
"~ NB SB EB WB

60th Street and E Paris Avenue KCRC Permitted | Permitted | Permitted and Protected | Permitted
60th Street and Patterson Avenue KCRC Permitted. | Permitted Permitted Permitted
EB eastbound
NB northbound
SB southbound
waB westbotind
1.5 Existing Traffic Volumes

Vehicular turning movement counts (TMCs) were collected at the following study intersection during the weekday
am.(7to9am)andpm. (4to6 p.m.) peak periods of the road network on Thursday September 21, 2023:

60th Street and E Paris Avenue.
60th Street and Existing Steelcase Driveway/Data Drive.

60th Street and Roskam Baking Driveway/Arlo Plastics Driveway.
60th Street and Patterson Avenue.,

Traffic volume information can be found in Appendix 1 — Traffic Volume Data, which includes heavy vehicle data.
The existing traffic volumes used in this study are provided in Figure 3 ~ 2023 Existing Traffic Volumes.

\\CORP.FTCH.COM\ALLPROJECTS\2023\231538\WORK\REPT\TIS\RPT_STEELCASE_TIS_2023_1127ADOCX



PLOT INFO: MACUSTOMAUTODESK PRODUCTSIACADISYMBOLS\B-85X11.0WG  LAYOUT: MODEL DATE: — TIME: — USER: DMEADE

NORTH

=

—
A
ow
o
2
(7]
e
acs
oT+ | N
SN 82 (97)
—= PATTERSON /) t k\ giﬂ,‘,;f?’
| AVENUE "/ P
55 . (14)—/ 5 PATTERSON

125 (258)—|

60 (109)—\

17 (7)

———290 (306)

ROSKAM /)

AVENUE

=) BAKING 2 (5) .
DRIVEWAY o E
b ARLO
s (19— \ l r/ PLASTICS
0 (O)—— DRIVEWAY
37 (14)—\ @E:@
OGLD
- w0
—~ 2]
n M
o
M~
~0,
Ll
38
‘ \ Ny (33)
0 (9 —
0O
ALLIANCE
r/ BEVERAGE
DRIVEWAY
¥e
Lo
(2]
<
L2}
I
(2]
—~ o~
(SO
she | S
NN —
XSG ) ‘ - A

~——203 (139)

STEELCASE
DRIVEWAY o m
: 6 (12— "
0 (O——|N
10 (6 o~
B | B8
3
)
—~ 1)
[e) Lp]
o
(o))
jT N3t (24)

— E PARIS
AVENUE
54 (72)—/

111 (306)—

14 (310)~

0 17)

294 (220)—

13 (40) —
E PARIS E

AVENUE

304 (171)—/
44 (21)\

60TH
STREET

&

2023 EXISTING TRAFFIC
VOLUMES

NO SCALE
LEGEND

——= LANE ASSIGNMENT
ﬁ SIGNALIZED INTERSECTION
a  STOP CONTROL

XX o.m. PEAK HOUR

(XX) p.m. PEAK HOUR

ists | Constructors

ﬁshggck

Hard copy is
Intended to be
8.5"x11" when

plotted. Scale(s)

Indicated and

graphic quality may
not be accurate for
any ather size.

STEELCASE
Kentwood, Michigan 49512
Traffic Impact Study

PROJECT NO.
231538

FIGURE NO.

3

©Copyright 2022 All Rights Reserved




November 27, 2023 Fishbeck | Page 6

The resulting LOS and delay for the existing conditions are provided in Table 5 —LOS Analysis for 2023 Existing Conditions.
Table 5 —LOS Analysis for 2023 Existing Conditions

LOS/Delay(s)
Approach a.m. Peak Hour I p.m. Peak Hour
60th Street and E Paris Avenue (Signalized)
EB 60th Street B 16.3 B 15.0
WB 60th Street C 22.6 C 23.7
NB E Paris Avenue C 21.3 C 20.3
SB E Paris Avenue C 20.1 C 21.7
Overall B 19.1 C 20.3
60th Street and Existing Steelcase Driveway/ Data Drive {Minor-Street Stop-Controlled)
EB 60th Street ' A 0.4 A 0.2
WB 60th Street A 0.5 A 0.0
NB Data Drive B 12.8 B 10.3
SB Existing Steelcase Driveway B 119 B 14.2
Overall A 1.1 A 1.1
60th Street and Alliance Beverage Driveway (Minor-Street Stop-Controlled
EB 60th Street A 0.0 A 0.0
WB 60th Street A 0.9 A 0.0
NB Alliance Beverage Driveway A 9.5 B 10.3
Qverall A 0.5 A 0.5
60th Street and Roskam Baking Driveway/Arlo Plastics Driveway (Minor-Street Stop-Controlled)
EB 60th Street A 0.2 A 0.1
WB 60th Street A 0.5 A 0.2
NB Arlo Piastics Driveway B 14.0 B 11.4
SB Roskam Baking Driveway B 11.0 B 13.9
Overall A 1.5 A 1.2
60th Street and Patterson Avenue (Signalized)
EB 60th Street B 16.5 B 16.8
W8 60th Street B 15.3 B 15.5
NB Patterson Avenue C 20.0 B 16.9
SB Patterson Avenue B 17.1 C 20.1
Overall B 17.7 B 17.5

Further analysis of the LOS results for existing conditions revealed that al| movements, approaches, and
intersections are expected to operate at an acceptable LOS C or better during both the a.m. and p.m. peak hours.

SimTraffic simulations were also reviewed to observe network operations and vehicle queues. For existing conditions,
study network operations are acceptable, with no significant vehicle queues or spill-back from available storage lanes.
The 95th percentile queue length for the SB right turn lane at the intersection of 60th Street and E Paris Avenue
exceeded the provided storage length by 8 feet (less than one vehicle) in the a.m. peak hour and 103 feet (four
vehicles) in the p.m. peak hour. This right turn movement operates at a LOS B in the a.m. peak hour and ata LOS Cin
the p.m. peak hour. Due to acceptable LOS results, no mitigation is recommended. See Appendix 2 — Existing LOS
Output Reports for the existing conditions LOS reports and queueing analysis reports.

\\CORP.FTCH.COM\ALLPROJECTS\ZOZ3\231538\WORK\REPT\TIS\RPT__STEELCASE_T]S_ZOZ3_1127.DOCX



November 27, 2023 Fishbeck | Page 8

Of the 15 crashes that occurred along 60th Street outside the influence area of the signalized intersections, four
crashes involved a deer, four crashes involved a vehicle attempting to change lanes without assured clear
distance, three crashes involved a vehicle turning into or out of a private driveway without assured clear distance,
two crashes involved a truck striking another vehicle while attempting to turn into or out of a private driveway,
one crash involved a vehicle failing to stop for a stopped vehicle in the roadway due to snowy road conditions,
and one crash involved a vehicle failing to slow down and move over for a bicyclist in the roadway and striking the
bicyclist with their sideview mirror. No crash patterns were identified on this segment of 60th Street.

Further review of the Level-A crashes revealed that the first Level-A crash involved an EB vehicle turning left onto
NB E Paris Avenue without assured clear distance and striking a WB on 60th Street. As mentioned previously, EB
left turn permitted/protected phasing was installed in September 2023 to address this EB left turn crash pattern.
The second Level-A crash involved a vehicle that exited a private driveway at a high rate of speed without assured
clear distance, struck an EB vehicle on 60th Street, and then struck a fire hydrant. The UD-10 crash reports for the
Level-A crashes are provided in Appendix 3 — Crash Data.

Based on the results of the existing conditions analysis, no additional operational or safety improvements are
recommended to mitigate any unacceptable traffic conditions absent of the proposed development. Appendix 3
summarizes this information.

3.0 2025 Background Conditions Analysis

US Census data for the City was reviewed to determine related to the growth rate for the existing traffic volumes
to the project build-out year in 2025. The population of the City grew on average 1.1% per year between 2010
and 2020. Additionally, GYMC was contacted to determine a growth rate based on their travel demand model.
The GVMC model indicated the 60th Street corridor will see a 2.06% per year growth rate between 2023 and
2026. Based on this review, a background growth rate of 2.06% was utilized. The Switch facility in the southeast
quadrant of 60th Street and E Paris Avenue is currently undergoing additional development however KCRC
indicated that no traffic study was performed for that development. No other background developments were
identified for inclusion in this study. It is assumed that all background traffic within the study area network is
accounted for with the growth rate provided by GVMC'’s travel demand model. The total background traffic
volumes are presented in Figure 4 — 2025 Background Traffic Volumes.

\\CORP.FTCH.COM\ALLPROJECTS\2023\231538\WORK\REPT\TIS\RPT_STEELCASE_TIS_2023_1127.D0CX



November 27, 2023

Fishbeck | Page 10

3.1 2025 Background Conditions Traffic Analysis

The resulting LOS and delay for the background conditions are provided in Table 8 — LOS Analysis for 2025

Background Conditions.

Table 8 — LOS Analysis for 2025 Background Conditions

LOS/Delay(s)

Approach

a.m. Peak Hour I p.m. Peak Hour

60th Street and E Paris Avenue (Signalized)

EB 60th Street B 16.9 B 15.1
WB 60th Street C 22.8 C 23.9
NB E Paris Avenue C 21.6 C 20.7
SB E Paris Avenue C 20.3 C 22.2
Overall B 19.5 C 20.6
60th Street and Existing Steelcase Driveway/Data Drive (Minor-Street Stop-Controlled)
EB 60th Street A 0.4 A 0.2
WB 60th Street A 0.5 A 0.0
NB Data Drive B 3 B 10.3
SB Existing Steelcase Driveway B 12.1 B 14.6
Overall] A 1.0 A 1.1
60th Street and Alliance Beverage Driveway (Minor-Street Stop-Controlled)
EB 60th Street A 0.0 A 0.0
WB 60th Street A 0.9 A 0.0
NB Alliance Beverage Driveway A 9.6 B 10.3
Overall A 0.5 A 0.5
60th Street and Roskam Baking Driveway/Arlo Plastics Driveway (Minor-Street Stop-Controlled)
EB 60th Street . A 0.2 A 0.1
WB 60th Street A 0.5 A 0.2
NB Arlo Plastics Driveway B 14.4 B 11.5
SB Roskam Baking Driveway B 11.0 B 14.3
Overall A 1.5 A 1.3
60th Street and Patterson Avenue (Signalized)
EB 60th Street B 16.7 B 16.9
WB 60th Street B 15.4 B 15.6
NB Patterson Avenue C 20.4 B 17.1
SB Patterson Avenue B 17.3 C 20.5
Overall B 17.9 B 17.8

Further analysis of the LOS results for background conditions revealed that all movements, approaches, and intersections
are expected to continue to operate at an acceptable LOS C or better during both the a.m. and p.m. peak hours.

SimTraffic simulations were also reviewed to observe network operations and vehicle queues. For background conditions,
study network operations would continue to be acceptable, with no significant vehicle queues or spill-back from available
storage lanes. The 95th percentile queue length for the SB right turn lane at the intersection of 60th Street and E Paris
Avenue would continue to exceed the provided storage length. These 95th percentile queues would exceed the provided
storage length by 15 feet (one vehicle) in the a.m. peak hour and 108 feet (four vehicles) in the p.m. peak hour. This right
turn movement would continue to operate at a LOS B in the a.m. peak hour and at a LOS Cin the p.m. peak hour. Due to
acceptable LOS results, no mitigation is recommended. See Appendix 4 —Background LOS Output Reports for the

background conditions LOS reports and queueing analysis reports.

\\CORP.FTCH.COM\ALLPROIECTS\2023\231538\WORK\REPT\TIS\RPT_STEELCASE_TIS_2023_1127.00CX



November 27, 2023

Fishbeck | Page 12

Table 10— Trip Distribution

New Trips

Direction Via a.m, Peak Hour | p.m.Peak Hour
To From To From

North E Paris Avenue 28% 13% 15% 32%
Patterson Avenue 23% 9% 9% 17%

South E Paris Avenue 9% 12% 15% 9%
Patterson Avenue 8% 24% 15% 13%

East 60th Street 16% 11% 18% 10%
West 60th Street 16% 31% 28% 19%

Currently, all Steelcase traffic that enters or exits onto 60th Street utilizes a single driveway that is aligned with
Data Drive. With the addition of this new development, all Steelcase traffic that enters or exit onto 60th Street
will utilize a new driveway that is approximately 1,200 feet east of the existing driveway/Data Drive. Al traffic

generated by the new development will utilize the existing Steelcase Driveway. The relocation of the Steelcase
traffic is indicated in Figure 6 — Steelcase Relocation Volumes.

The trip distribution for the site is indicated in Figure 7 — Trip Generation Volumes, which includes the
reassignment of existing Steelcase traffic and the addition of the new development traffic. These trips were
added to the background volumes (Figure 4) to result in the future conditions volumes in Figure 8 — 2025 Future

Traffic Volumes.

\\CORP.FTCH COM\ALLPROIECTS\2023\231538\WORK\REPT\TIS\RPT_STEELCASE_TIS_2023_1127.00CX




PLOT INFO: MACUSTOMAUTODESK PRODUCTS\ACADISYMBOLS\B-85X11.DWG  LAYOUT: MODEL  DATE: —- TIME: ~ USER: DMEADE

NORTH

TRIP GENERATION
] _—
oL NO SCALE

&

“ LEGEND
aga ——= LANE ASSIGNMENT
odo | o g SIGNALIZED INTERSECTION

—~——0 (0 2 STOP CONTROL
) PATTERSON /) ; \ 113 (33)
@ AVENUE %/ E XX a.m. PEAK HOUR
gggg—/ ”\ t (/ PATLSEﬁS'g (XX)  p.m. PEAK HOUR
NG o)
o0
" -
/‘n\ o~
S
8.8
odo \—Q (0)
ROSKAM \\ o ()
— BAKING o
DRIVEWAY va E
; ARLO
0 @ \ 1 r/ PLASTICS
M DRIVEWAY
0O~ | 8ge
OSO
o
—~ =
)
=3
9§
N O
K\ N0 (0)
0 () e
ALLANCE
(/ BEVERAGE
DRIVEWAY

ey

a2c

So

~| R
)
o
8o
o~
PROPOSED
— STEELCASE
DRIVEWAY
o @—"
0 B~ N

oo

=0

ol

o
o~ ~
¥
Q
588
Noo \__0 (o)
EXISTING o (0}
— STEELCASE 0 (0) -
DRIVEWAY 'va E
70 @3y~ " g
s @—N | (7
80 (337)—\ gfo\g

oo

()]

[7e]

— o~
RS
A
YT | Ns7 24
meons |70
E AVENUE ]
AP
0 (0)y—m
0O~ | ege
OVO
?

| Constructors

Hard capy Is
intended to be
8.5"x11" when

plottad. Scale(s)
indlcated and
graphic quality may
not be accurale for
any other siza.

STEELCASE
Kentwood, Michigan 49512
Traffic Impact Study

PROJECT NO.
231538

FIGURE NO.

14

©Copyright 2022 All Rights Reserved




November 27, 2023 Fishbeck | Page 16

5.0 2025 Future Conditions Analysis

5.1 Turn Lane Warrants

An evaluation was performed in accordance with MDOT requirements to determine if right turn deceleration
lanes are required at the site driveways. Turn lane warrants are based on the volume of traffic turning and the
total approach volume. There is an existing TWLTL along 60th Street; therefore, left turn lane warrants were not
completed. The results of the analysis indicated that a right turn lane is warranted at the Existing Steelcase
Driveway (to be used by new development traffic). No right turn treatment is warranted at the Proposed
Steelcase Driveway. A right turn lane at the Existing Steelcase Driveway was added to the future analysis models.
All turn lane warrant charts are provided in Appendix 6 — Turn Lane Warrants. The results of the analysis are
presented in Table 11 —Turn Lane Warrants.

Table 11 —Turn Lane Warrants

Intersection Movement Result
60th Street and Existing Steelcase Driveway/Data Drive | WB Right Turn | Turn Lane Warranted
60th Street and Proposed Steelcase Driveway WB Right Turn Not Warranted
5.2 2025 Future Conditions Traffic Analysis

The resulting LOS and delay for the future conditions are presented in Table 12 — LOS Analysis for 2025 Future Conditions.
Table 12 — LOS Analysis for 2025 Future Conditions

hopronth LOS/Delay(s)
a.m. Peak Hour | p.m. Peak Hour
60th Street and E Paris Avenue (Signalized)
EB 60th Street B 17.7 B 163
WB 60th Street C 23.9 C 29.4
NB E Paris Avenue C 24.0 C 21.1
SB E Paris Avenue C 25.5 G 23.7
Overall C 21.5 C 23.6
60th Street and Existing Steelcase Driveway/ Data Drive (Minor-Street Stop-Controlled)
EB 60th Street ‘ A 4.2 A 3.0
WB 60th Street A 0.3 A 0.0
NB Data Drive D 31.4 B 14.6
SB Existing Steelcase Driveway E 49.2 B 158.3
- Overalll A 7.8 F 55.9
60th Street and Alliance Beverage Driveway (Minor-Street Stop-Controlled)
EB 60th Street A 0.0 A 0.0
WB 60th Street A 0.6 A 0.0
NB Alliance Beverage Driveway A 9.8 B 12.1
Overall A 04 A 0.4
60th Street and Roskam Baking Driveway/Arlo Plastics Driveway (Minor-Street Stop-Controlled)
EB 60th Street A 0.2 A 0.0
WB 60th Street A 0.3 A 0.1
NB Arlo Plastics Driveway C 17.9 B 14.7
SB Roskam Baking Driveway B 13.2 C 19.9
Overalll A 1.3 A 1.1

\\CORP.FTCH.COM\ALLPROJECTS\2023\231538\WORK\REPT\TIS\RPT_STEELCASE_TIS_2023_1127.D0CX



November 27, 2023 Fishbeck | Page 18

6.0 Findings and Recommendations

The analyses conducted for this TIS indicate the proposed development will not result in any significant
operational impact to the adjacent road network. The proposed site access configuration is appropriate and will
acceptably facilitate site ingress and egress. These conclusions are supported by the following key findings:

1.

Existing storage lengths on public roadways are adequate for all movements in existing and future conditions,

except for the SB right turn at the intersection of 60th Street and E Paris Avenue.

a. The queues for the SB right turn movement exceed the provided storage length during existing,
background, and future conditions. However, the movement and overall approach operate at acceptable
levels, therefore, no mitigation is recommended.

Lane configurations and physical capacity are appropriate within the study area, assuming the proposed turn

lane improvement documented below.

Existing nor planned transit or non-motorized facilities in the site vicinity would not be impacted by the project.

While egress queues on the proposed site are long in the p.m. peak hour, they do not impact traffic on the

public roadway. Traffic volumes, delays, and queues could be reduced if shifts were offset at the two

proposed manufacturing buildings. This would result in improved operations at the site driveway.

Based on the findings of the HCM operational analyses, crash data, and site traffic generation, Table 13 — Proposed
Improvements includes the recommended existing, background, and future improvements to the study intersections to
mitigate traffic impacts.

Table 13 — Proposed Improvements

Intersection 2025 Existing | 2025 Background 2025 Future

60th Street and Existing Steelcase Driveway - e Construct a WB right turn lane.

\\CORP.FTCH.COM\ALLPROJECTS\2023\231538\WORK\REPT\TIS\RPT_STEELCASE_TIS_2023_1127.DOCX



Intersection Time period | Vear Movement sl | eor | R | wal | war | wen | neu | ner | nen | seu [ s [ sen [ esnn ['warr [ neRr [ ssrr
2.m. Peak Hour PHF 091 088 083 078
#1- 60th Street and E Paris Avenue 0321/23 % Heavy 3% 6% 5% 1%
7:15-8:15a.m. [ 2023 Existing] 304 | 254 | 44 | 27 [ w0 [ 42 | 13 J203 [ a3t | s4 fann] s 7 | 13| 331 39
2023 Existing Ad].
2025 Background| 317 | 307 | 46 | 30 | 197 | 49 | 14 | 211 | 32 | s6 | 16 | 119
Bckgrd. Dev. A
Bekgrd. Dev. B
Bckgrd. Dev. C
Total Background
Relocate Steelcase Traffic
Site Generated 148 u | 1 | & s7 | 64 |
Total Site Gen g 7 ¥ [ y
Total Future
Intersection Time period | Year Movement E8L | eor | een | weL | war | wen | net | nar | nea | seu [ ser | sem
72 60th Street and Existing Steclcase "’;;;k/;‘:‘” m H::; 0":: 03‘:: ‘;:: :::
Driveway/0ata Drive
7:00-800a.m. | 2023 Exsung| 16 | 320 | 23 | 18 [ 251 | 24 | 5 (o [ ¢ [ o[ 10
2023 Existing Ad].
2025 Background| 18 | 352 | 25 | 19 [ 261 [ 25 | 5 ) s 6 o | 10
Bekgrd. Dev. A
Bekgrd. Dev. B
Bckgrd, Dev. C
Tatal Background
Relocate Steelcase Traffic | -18 | 18 10 | 25 6 -10
Site Generated 269 210 70 80
Total Site Gen i [
Total Future
Intersection Time period | Year Movement | 8L | €ar | £en | wat | st | wer | NaL | ner [ nea | saL | ser | ser
2.m. Peak Hour PHE| 0.86 0.88 092
#3- 60th Street and Alliance Beverage Driveway|  09/21/23 % Hea 7% 6% 2%
2023 Existing 309 [ o | 36 | 203 [ 3
2023 Existing Ad].
2025 Background| 363 0 37 | 305 ) 3
Bckard. Dev. A
Bekgrd. Dev. B
Bekgrd. Dev. C g
Total Background
Relocate Steelcase Traffic
Site Generated 70 210
Total Site Gen :
Total Future
Intersection Time period | Year Movement EoL | Eer | eon | weL | wer-| weR | met | et | Nea | sat [ ser [ ser
AN st and TR B a.m. Peak Hour PH| 082 091 0.60 0.60
Ditvevisy/Arlo Plattics Oeveway 013 % Hea 10% 9% 56% 16%
700-8002.m. | 2023 Evisting] 10 | 336 | 6 | 21 [ 290 ] 17| 2 1 6 [ o [ 27
2023 Existing Ad].
2025 Background| 10 | 350 [ 6 | 22 | 301 | 18 | 2 1 6 | 8 o | 39
Bckgrd, Dev. A
Bckgrd. Dev. B
Bckgrd. Dev. C
Total Background
Relocate Steelcase Trafflc
Site Generated 70 210
Total Site Gen 2
Total Future
Intersection Time period | Year Movement oL | esr | eer | woL | war | wer | neu | ner [ mea [ st [ sor | ser | 8RR | werR [ neRR [ sarR
2.m. Peak Hour PHF| 084 085 078 068
#5- 60th Street and Patterson Avenue 03/21/23 % Hea 1% 10% 3% 10%
7:15-8:15a.m. | 2023 Euisting] 99 | 220 | 28 | 14 [ 213 | 10 | s4 [ 337 [ s2 | 7 | s25] 60 | 12 | 4 | 57 | 29
203 Existing Adj.|
2025 Background| 104 | 231 | 29 | 15 | 223 | 10 | s6 | 3st | a5 | 7 | 130] 62
Bckgrd. Dev. A
Bckgrd. Dev. B |
Bekgrd. Dev, C
Total Background
Relocate Steelcase Traffic
Site Generated 35 | 24 | 11 54 113 43 |
Total Site Gen ¢
Total Future
Time period Movement | EBL |
#6- 60th Street and Proposed Steelcase "";:;;1';;“'
riveway
Total Future

Count Date: __9/21/2023
Count Year: 2023
Existing Ad]. Year: 2023
Existing Adjustment Rate: 1.00
Growth Rate: 2.06%
Buildout Year: 2025

Scenarlo: _a.m. Peak Hour

Bekgrd. Dev. A:
Bckgrd. Dev. B:
Bekged. Dev. C:



s e 'ﬂ . M GEWALT HAMILTON
Full Length (7 AM-9 AM, 4 PM-6 PM) A l mVASSOCIATES, INC.

All Classes (Lights, Articulated Trucks, Buses and Single-Unit Trucks) Provided by: Gewalt Hamilton Associates Inc

félz %%‘gilrgg?isocationz 40,65 AAB), <65 5EEEE 625 Forest Edge Drive, Vernon Hills, IL, 60061, US
Leg 60th 60th

Direction Eastbound Westbound

Time L T R U RR App L T R U RR App

2023-09-21 7:00AM 44 53 7 0 1 105 9 51 4 0 6 70

7:15AM 48 68 20 0 3 139 10 48 0 3 64

7:30AM 83 89 2 0 0 174 6 47 i 0 4 68

7:45AM 99 66 0 2 176 2 39 12 0 2 55

Hourly Total 274 276 38 0 6 594 27 185 30 0 15 257

8:00AM 74 71 0 2 153 s 36 3 0 4 52

8:15AM 60 59 0 5 133 6 24 10 0 5 45

8:30AM 67 51 0 3 127 4 22 8 0 5 39

8:45AM 72 51 5 0 1 129 10 34 4 0 3 51

Hourly Total 273 232 26 0 11 542 29 116 25 0 17 187

4:00PM 21 36 3 0 1 61 6 64 4 0 1 75

4:15PM 37 41 2 0 3 83 8 63 8 0 1 80

4:30PM 36 40 0 1 81 ) 55 0 3 64

4:45PM 34 52 2 0 1 89 9 68 3 0 5 85

Hourly Total 128 169 11 0 6 314 28 250 16 0 10 304

5:00PM 37 49 0 2 90 5 70 0 4 83

5:15PM 55 50 0 3 111 3 86 0 2 96

5:30PM 45 58 0 2 111 0 66 0 79

5:45PM 33 52 12 0 1 98 6 41 0 2 54

Hourly Total 170 209 23 0 8 410 14 263 23 0 12 312

Total 845 886 98 0 31 1860 98 814 94 0 54 1060

% Approach 454%  47.6% 53% 0% 1.7% - 9.2% 76.8% 8.9% 0% 5.1% “

% Total 15.2% 15.9% 1.8% 0% 0.6%  334% 1.8% 14.6% 1.7% 0% 1.0% 19.1%

Lights 829 867 95 0 29 1820 73 793 93 0 52 1011

% Lights 981% 97.9% 969% 0% 93.5% 97.8% 74.5% 97.4% 98.9% 0% 96.3% 95.4%

Articulated Trucks 2 7 0 0 1 10 11 7 0 0 0 18

% Articulated Trucks 0.2% 0.8% 0% 0% 3.2% 0.5% 11.2% 0.9% 0% 0% 0% 1.7%

Buses and Single-Unit Trucks 14 12 3 0 1 30 14 14 1 0 2 31

% Buses and Single-Unit Trucks 1.7% 1.4% 3.1% 0% 3.2% 1.6% 14.3% 1.7% 1.1% 0% 3.7% 2.9%

*L: Left, R: Right, RR: Right on red, T: Thru, U: U-Turn

10f9



e 'ﬁ ! 'A‘ GEWALT HAMILTON
Full Length (7 AM-9 AM; 4 PM-6 PM) A l m ASSOCIATES, INC.

All Classes (Lights, Articulated Trucks, Buses and Single-Unit Trucks) Provided by: Gewalt Hamilton Associates Inc

All Movements . i
ID: 1106493, Location: 42.854482, -85.565558 625 Forest Edge Drive, Vernon Hills, IL, 60061, US

[N] Paris
Total: 3416
In: 1820 Out: 1596

S 148

'\ =

= 814 —
S8° ‘ s ; et ENS
S . 98 &9
3 7 > g
— @© © r—
=5 > 1 AT

o i o

O —

a 5

= o

3

v

(@]
[@)]

603
128

Out: 975 In: 821
Total: 1796

[S] Paris

30f9




60th/East Paris - RTOR x4 - TMC
Thu Sep 21, 2023
AM Peak (7:15 AM - 8:15 AM)

All Classes (Lights, Articulated Trucks, Buses and Single-Unit Trucks)

All Movements

ID: 1106493, Location: 42.854482, -85.565558

GHA

GEWALT HAMILTON

ASSOCIATES, INC.

Provided by: Gewalt Hamilton Associates Inc.
625 Forest Edge Drive, Vernon Hills, IL, 60061, US

Leg Paris Paris
Direction Northbound Southbound
Time L T R U RR App L T R U RR App |Int
2023-09-21 7:15AM 4 37 8 0 2 51 20 33 20 0 16 89 343
7:30AM 3 56 2 0 4 65 12 30 18 0 68 375
7:45AM 5 60 5 0 74 10 33 20 0 5 68 373
8:00AM 1 50 3 0 3 57 12 15 17 0 10 54 316
Total 13 203 18 0 13 247 54 111 75 0 39 279 1407
% Approach 53% 822% 7.3% 0% 5.3% -l 194% 39.8% 269% 0% 14.0% - -
% Total 09% 14.4% 1.3% 0% 0.9% 17.6% 3.8% 7.9% 53% 0% 28% 19.8% -
PHF 0.650  0.846 0.563 - 0813 0834 0.675 0.841 0.938 - 0.609 0.784 0.938
Lights 11 201 13 0 11 236 53 111 75 0 37 276 1362
% Lights| 84.6% 99.0% 72.2% 0% 84.6% 95.5%| 98.1% 100% 100% 0% 94.9% 98.9%| 96.8%
Articulated Trucks 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 13
% Articulated Trucks 0% 0% 56% 0% 0% 0.4% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0.9%
Buses and Single-Unit Trucks 2 2 4 0 2 10 1 0 0 0 2 3 32
% Buses and Single-Unit Trucks 15.4% 1.0% 222% 0% 15.4% 4.0% 1.9% 0% 0% 0% 5.1% 1.1% 2.3%

*L: Left, R: Right, RR: Right on red, T: Thru, U: U-Turn

50f9



60th/East Paris - RTOR x4 - TMC
Thu Sep 21, 2023

PM Peak (4:45 PM - 5:45 PM) - Overall Peak Hour
All Classes (Lights, Articulated Trucks, Buses and Single-Unit Trucks)

All Movements

ID: 1106493, Location: 42.854482, -85.565558

GHA

GEWALT HAMILTON

ASSOCIATES, INC.

Provided by: Gewalt Hamilton Associates Inc.
625 Forest Edge Drive, Vernon Hills, IL, 60061, US

Leg 60th 60th
Direction Eastbound Westbound
Time L T R U RR App L T R U RR App
2023-09-21 4:45PM 34 52 2 0 1 89 9 68 3 0 5 85
5:00PM 37 49 2 0 2 90 5 70 4 0 4 83
5:15PM 55 50 3 0 3 111 a 86 5 0 2 96
5:30PM 45 58 6 0 2 111 0 66 9 0 4 79
Total 17 209 13 0 8 401 17 290 21 0 15 343
% Approach 42.6% 52.1% 3.2% 0% 2.0% - 5.0% 84.5% 6.1% 0% 4.4% -
% Total 10.5% 12.8% 0.8% 0% 0.5% 24.6% 1.0% 17.8% 1.3% 0% 0.9% 21.0%
PHF 0.777 0.901 0.542 - 0.667 0.903 0.472 0.843 0.583 - 0.750 0.893
Lights 169 207 13 0 7 396 14 284 21 0 15 334
% Lights 98.8% 99.0%  100% 0% 87.5% 98.8% 82.4% 97.9% 100% 0% 100% 97.4%
Articulated Trucks 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 2 0 0 0 3
% Articulated Trucks 0.6% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0.2% 5.9% 0.7% 0% 0% 0% 0.9%
Buses and Single-Unit Trucks 1 2 0 0 1 4 2 4 0 0 0 6
% Buses and Single-Unit Trucks 0.6% 1.0% 0% 0% 12.5% 1.0% 11.8% 1.4% 0% 0% 0% 1.7%

*L: Left, R: Right, RR: Right on red, T: Thru, U: U-Turn

7 0of 9



60th/East Paris - RTOR x4 - TMC

Thu Sep 21, 2023

PM Peak (4:45 PM - 5:45 PM) - Overall Peak Hour

All Classes (Lights, Articulated Trucks, Buses and Single-Unit Trucks)
All Movements

ID: 1106493, Location: 42.854482, -85.565558

[ﬂ : M GEWALT HAMILTON

ASSOCIATES, INC.

Provided by: Gewalt Hamilton Associates Inc.
625 Forest Edge Drive, Vernon Hills, IL, 60061, US

9of 9




meop - 631 ) GEVAL HAMILTON
B

Full Length (7 AM-9 AM, 4 PM-6 PM) ASSOCIATES, |NC.

All Classes (Lights, Articulated Trucks, Buses and Single-Unit Trucks) Provided by: Gewalt Hamilton Associates Inc
All Movements v :

ID: 1106494, Location: 42.854529, -85.55674 625 Forest Edge Drive, Vernon Hills, IL, 60061, US

[N] Steelcase

Total: 156
In: 82 Out: 74

m o
m <

38

N &

= 1025 A

g g
= 25 o o
S I 46 e

o o

e g ==

N : 3

o o

N 1197 5

= 5

- (@)

% ﬁ

v

[e) e}
—m

Out: 64 In: 57
Total: 121

[S] Data

20f6



Cothsteccase Data Drve-THC 'ej . M GEWALT HAMILTON
\9illm

AM Peak (7 AM - 8 AM) ASSOCIATES, INC.

All Classes (Lights, Articulated Trucks, Buses and Single-Unit Trucks) el Gl Hamilan Assrises e
All Movements ¥: .

ID: 1106494, Location: 42.854529, -85.55874 625 Forest Edge Drive, Vernon Hills, IL, 60061, US

[N] Steelcase

Total: 56
In: 16 Out: 40

24

S 2

p 251 o™

= =
- 5 ~in .C
_,_,go =
S © 18 © o
O .. = O
— 16 80—
;0 O L
= F o 2 e

o "

m 321 S

= 3

23

Out: 41 In: 10
Total: 51

[S] Data

4 of 6




60th/Steelcase/Data Drive - TMC Frad B GEWAI]' H AMIL‘I’ON
Thu Sep 21, 2023 l A
PM Peak (4:45 PM - 5:45 PM) - Overall Peak Hour

All Classes (Lights, Articulated Trucks, Buses and Single-Unit Trucks) L Provi?e a b)é gexsﬂa?t IEa!nﬁt;rn E&sssc:cia!eyhg:.

All Movements : ;
ID: 1106494, Location: 42.854529, -85.55874 625 Forest Edge Drive, Vernon Hills, IL, 60061, US

[N] Steelcase

Total: 26
In: 18 Out: 8

1

o

it —

m

p 330 @

S £
548 e
o 8 =
E = O
— @© ©
= 0 8
= P

o 3

= ™

E £

o

Out: 2 In: 29
Total: 31

[S] Data

6 0of 6




632 ) GEVALT HAVALTON

Full Length (7 AM-9 AM, 4 PM-6 PM) ASSOCIATES, INC.

All Classes (Lights, Articulated Trucks, Buses and Single-Unit Trucks) Provided by: Gewalt Hamilton Associates Inc.
All Movements

ID: 1106495, Location: 42.854482, -85.55013 625 Forest Edge Drive, Vernon Hills, IL, 60061, US

[N] Roskam Baking

Total: 175
In: 112 Out: 63

~ <
o<

— PP 35
S
0
—
= 1083 E
e o
o N R T 40 o
—i 1 D % ;_:;S.
; = 26 > B W
- ﬂl_l_.
o o
m —
— ..
1319 i
.. ]
£ o
13

it
|

. 4

MmO
— n

Out: 54 In: 71
Total: 125

[S] Alro Plastics

20f6




'ej . M GEWALT HAMILTON
\o 0 Im

AM Peak (7 AM - 8 AM) ASSOCIATES, INC.

ﬁﬁ ﬁgis;fl éril.tlfhts, Articulated Trucks, Buses and Single-Unit Trucks) Provided by: Gewalt Hamilton Associates Inc.
ID: 1106495, Location: 42.854482, -85.55013 625 Forest Edge Drive, Vernon Hills, IL, 60061, US
[N] Roskam Baking

Total: 73
In: 45 Out: 28

17
o
o N
i 290 ™M
a IS
.EH o C
o3 21 %5
O .. 23 O
sg 8w
= | -
N 2
m
g 336 =
c 3
= ©)

Out: 27 In: 9
Total: 36

[S] Alro Plastics

40f6




'tﬂ : M GEWALT HAMILTON
\9 0=

PM Peak (4:30 PM - 5:30 PM) - Overall Peak Hour A SSOCIAT ES. INC
' L

All Classes (Lights, Articulated Trucks, Buses and Single-Unit Trucks) Provided by: Gewalt Hamilton Associates Inc
All Movements y: :

ID: 1106495, Location: 42.854482, -85.55013 625 Forest Edge Drive, Vernon Hills, IL, 60061, US

[N] Roskam Baking

Total: 39
In: 28 Out: 11

< <
—

P N

7

= ©

m —

= 306 ™M

S5 c
f,r-lO s
o m
8!\ 6 ~N O
5 ELR(e]
;o O Ll
= -

~ m

3 g

o372 o

< =1

O

Out: 8 In: 33
Total: 41

[S] Alro Plastics

6 of 6




4 - 60th/Patterson - RTOR x4 - ReUpload - TMC

Thu Sep 21, 2023

Full Length (7 AM-9 AM, 4 PM-6 PM)

All Classes (Lights, Articulated Trucks, Buses and Single-Unit Trucks)

All Movements

ID: 1118438, Location: 42.854414, -85.545848

GHA

GEWALT HAMILTON

ASSOCIATES, INC.

Provided by: Gewalt Hamilton Associates Inc.
625 Forest Edge Drive, Vernon Hills, IL, 60061, US

Leg Patterson Patterson
Direction Northbound Southbound
Time L T R U RR  App L T R U RR  App|mt
2023-09-21 7:00AM 6 57 5 0 11 79 1 33 9 0 9 52 247
7:15AM 14 79 7 0 12 112 1 50 11 0 9 71 338
7:30AM 18 111 5 0 17 151 3 28 5 0 7 43 354
7:45AM 16 90 8 0 17 131 2 14 6 0 4 26 310
Hourly Total 54 337 25 0 57 473 7 125 31 0 29 192 1249
8:00AM 9 66 5 0 15 95 3 14 7 0 11 35 244
8:15AM 29 3 0 10 51 1 20 8 0 4 34 201
8:30AM 12 53 7 0 10 82 2 10 13 0 1 26 207
8:45AM 9 45 0 12 68 2 14 12 0 8 36 218
Hourly Total 39 193 17 0 47 296 8 58 41 0 24 131 870
4:00PM 10 26 9 0 10 55 4 56 9 0 3 72 266
4:15PM 8 37 15 0 11 i 2 54 18 0 12 86 291
4:30PM 6 36 17 0 14 73 3 55 8 0 74 287
4:45PM 9 29 21 0 7 66 6 64 18 0 96 294
Hourly Total | 33 128 62 0 42 265 15 229 53 0 31 328 1138
5:00PM 13 25 15 0 13 66 2 63 12 0 8 85 323
5:15PM 12 26 4 0 10 52 3 70 28 0 16 117 319
5:30PM 9 42 14 0 13 78 3 61 10 0 9 83 293
5:45PM 6 38 11 0 18 73 0 64 9 0 4 77 263
Hourly Total 40 131 4 0 54 269 8 258 59 0 37 362 1198
Total 166 789 148 0 200 1303 38 670 184 0 121 1013 4455
% Approach| 12.7% 60.6% 11.4% 0% 153% - 38% 66.1% 182% 0% 11.9% - -
% Total 3.7% 17.7% 3.3% 0% 45% 29.2% 09% 15.0% 41% 0% 27% 22.7% -
Lights 157 756 127 0 195 1235 35 643 167 0 113 958 4162
% Lights 946% 95.8% 85.8% 0% 97.5% 94.8%| 92.1% 96.0% 90.8% 0% 934% 94.6% 93.4%
Articulated Trucks 6 12 15 0 i 34 1 7 6 0 2 16 140
% Articulated Trucks 3.6% 1.5% 101% 0% 0.5% 2.6% 2.6% 1.0% 3.3% 0% 1.7% 1.6% 3.1%
Buses and Single-Unit Trucks 3 21 6 0 4 34 2 20 11 0 6 39 153
% Buses and Single-Unit Trucks 1.8% 2.7% 41% 0% 2.0% 2.6% 5.3% 3.0% 6.0% 0% 5.0% 3.8% 3.4%
*“L: Left, R: Right, RR: Right on red, T: Thru, U: U-Turn
20f9



4 - 60th/Patterson - RTOR x4 - ReUpload - TMC

Thu Sep 21, 2023

AM Peak (7 AM - 8 AM) - Overall Peak Hour

All Classes (Lights, Articulated Trucks, Buses and Single-Unit Trucks)

All Movements

ID: 1118438, Location: 42.854414, -85.545848

el

GEWALT HAMILTON

ASSOCIATES, INC.

Provided by: Gewalt Hamilton Associates Inc.
625 Forest Edge Drive, Vernon Hills, IL, 60061, US

Leg 60th 60th
Direction Eastbound ' Westbound
Time L T R U RR App L T R U RR App
2023-09-21 7:00AM 15 42 4 0 64 3 49 0 0 0 52
7:15AM 25 61 5 0 97 5 52 0 0 1 58
7:30AM 34 66 2 0 103 4 49 2 0 2 57
7:45AM 25 51 5 0 83 2 63 4 0 1 70
Total —99 220 16 0 12 347 14 213 6 0 4 237
% Approach 28.5% 63.4% 4.6% 0% 3.5% - 5.9% 89.9% 25% 0% 1.7% -
% Total 7.9% 17.6% 1.3% 0% 1.0%  27.8% 11%  17.1% 0.5% 0% 0.3% 19.0%
PHF 0.728 0.833 0.800 - 0.500 0.842 0.700 0.845 0.375 - 0.500 0.846
Lights 88 194 16 0 11 309| . 14 191 4 0 4 213
% Lights 889%  882% 100% 0% 91.7%  89.0% 100%  89.7% 66.7% 0%  100% 89.9%
Articulated Trucks 2 13 0 0 0 15 0 6 0 0 0 6
% Articulated Trucks 2.0% 5.9% 0% 0% 0% 4.3% 0% 2.8% 0% 0% 0% 2.5%
Buses and Single-Unit Trucks 9 13 0 0 1 23 0 16 2 0 0 18
% Buses and Single-Unit Trucks 9.1% 5.9% 0% 0% 8.3% 6.6% 0% 7.5% 33.3% 0% 0% 7.6%

"L: Left, R: Right, RR: Right on red, T: Thru, U: U-Turn

4 0of 9



'ﬂ L M GEWALT HAMILTON

AM Peak (7 AM - 8 AM) - Overall Peak Hour ; .
All Classes (Lights, Articulated Trucks, Buses and Single-Unit Trucks) Prov1 ded bs (S}e§va?t gall'nﬁt;rn E&ioaa!esNIr?c

All Movements
ID: 1118438, Location: 42.854414, -85.545848 625 Forest Edge Drive, Vernon Hills, IL, 60061, US

[N] Patterson

Total: 638
In: 192 Out: 446

n
o

N~
oo

e

e 10
I
m ~
4':-.’; 213 Q
_C s
s Yo EQS
© 14 n O
O .. = O
< 2 99 S
o o O L
El’—l\ ok
3 ”
]
£ 220 8
28

< ~ o~
n m 0
m
Out: 167 In: 473
Total: 640

[S] Patterson

6 of 9




4 - 60th/Patterson - RTOR x4 - ReUpload - TMC
Thu Sep 21, 2023
PM Peak (4:45 PM - 5:45 PM)

All Classes (Lights, Articulated Trucks, Buses an

All Movements

ID: 1118438, Location: 42.854414, -85.545848

d Single-Unit Trucks)

GHA

GEWALT HAMILTON

ASSOCIATES, INC.

Provided by: Gewalt Hamilton Associates Inc.
625 Forest Edge Drive, Vernon Hills, IL, 60061, US

Leg Patterson Patterson
Direction Northbound Southbound
Time L T R U RR App L T R U RR App [Int
2023-09-21 4:45PM 9 29 21 0 7 66 6 64 18 0 8 96 294
5:00PM 13 25 15 0 13 66 2 63 12 0 8 85 323
5:15PM 12 26 4 0 10 52 3 70 28 0 16 117 319
5:30PM 9 42 14 0 13 78 3 61 0 0 9 83 293
Total 43 122 54 0 43 262 14 258 68 0 41 381 1229
% Approach| 16.4% 46.6% 20.6% 0% 16.4% - 3.7% 67.7% 178% 0% 10.8% - -
% Total 3.5% 9.9% 44% 0% 3.5% 21.3% 1.1% 21.0% 55% 0% 3.3% 31.0% -
PHF 0.827 0.726 0.643 - 0.827 0.840 0.583 0.921 0.607 - 0.641 0.814 0.951
Lights 39 121 46 0 43 249 12 252 65 0 40 369 1174
% Lights| 90.7% 99.2% 852% 0%  100% 95.0%| 85.7% 97.7% 95.6% 0% 97.6% 96.9% 95.5%
Axticulated Trucks 2 0 5 0 0 7 0 2 1 0 0 3 28
% Articulated Trucks 4.7% 0% 93% 0% 0% 2.7% 0% 0.8% 1.5% 0% 0% 0.8% 2.3%
Buses and Single-Unit Trucks 2 1 3 0 0 6 2 4 2 0 1 9 27
% Buses and Single-Unit Trucks 4.7% 0.8% 5.6% 0% 0% 2.3%| 14.3% 1.6% 2.9% 0% 2.4% 2.4% 2.2%

"L: Left, R: Right, RR: Right on red, T: Thru, U: U-Turn

8 of 9



Appendix 2

Existing LOS Output Reports




HCM 6th TWSC

2: Data Drive/Existing Steelcase Driveway & 60th Street

2023 Existing Conditions

a.m. Peak Hour

Intersection i
Int Delay, s/veh 1.1
Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR |
Lane Configurations 5 5 g f 4 f
Traffic Vol, veh/h R RS e e
Future Vol, veh/h 17 338 24 18 251 24 5 0 5 6 0 10
Conficting Peds, #hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized P - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length 250 - - 20 - - - - 0 - - 0
Vehin Median Storage,# - 0 - - 0 - - 0 R P
Grade, % ' - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
PeakHourFacor 89 89 89 84 8 84 63 63 63 60 60 60
HeavyVethes % 4 4 4 3 3 3 10 10 10 19 19 19
Mymt Flow ST W R T g 0T
Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1 Minor2
Conflcting FlowAl 328 0 0 407 0 0 624 802 204 584 601 164
i Stage 1 - - - - - - 432 432 - 356 356 -
Stage 2 - - - - - 192 370 - 228 445 -
Crifical Hdwy =~ 448 - - 416 - - 77 67 71 7.88 688 7.28
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - 67 57 - 688 588 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 L e e B e ] 6.88 588 -
Follow-up Hdwy 224 - - 223 - - 36 41 34 369 419 349 -
Pot Cap- Maneuver 1214 - - 114 - - 354 301 778 361 286 801
Stage 1 - - - - - - 551 561 - 590 587 -
| Stage? Sole T ATTRTTELOL 788 B8 < 708 6@ -
Platoon blocked, % - s - - ] )
MovCap-1 Maneuver 1214 - - 1141 - - 338 291 778 348 276 801
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - - 338 291 - 348 276 -
| Stage O AR Rk R e B0 I
[‘ Stage2 - - - - - - 739 588 - 690 523 -
Approach EB W8 NB .88 A
HCM Control Delay, s 0.4 05 128 1.8
HCMLOG B B
Minor Lane/Major Mymt M&me @ Eﬂﬁ wm. WBT WﬂRSBLMSALnZ
Capacty (vehh) 338 778 1214 * - 1141 - - 348 801
HCM Lane VIC Ratio 0.023 001 0016 - - 0.019 - - 0.029 0021
HCM Confrol Defay(s) ~ 169 97 & - - 82 - - 157 96
HCM Lane LOS ~ C A A - - A - - C A
HCM 95th %tle Q(veh) 04 0 0 - - 01 - - 01 O
Steelcase 60th Street TIS Synchro 11 Report
Fishbeck 10/17/2023



HCM 6th TWSC 2023 Existing Conditions
4: Arlo Plastics Driveway/Roskam Baking Driveway & 60th Street a.m. Peak Hour

Lane Conflgura ns M

h
TrefficVol,veth 10 336 6 20 20 17 ST
Future Vol, veh/h 10 33 6 21 290 17 6 8 0 ¥ B -
Eml?cipggeﬁ . R M. . Sea Geaie 0 0 s e Bt i & z;
Sign Control ~ Free. Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop  Stop Stop
RT Channelized @~ - - None - - None - - None -

- None

Storagelength 250 - - %0 - - 0 - 7 0 - -
Vel Wedencoga® - 0 = = egoe mTERTE AT O e T T

Grade % _# 0 =il - 0 - _% .,,_Or,,__—.,;,,aq_,,fv-,,g,,, - e
PeakHourFactor 82 82 82 o o1 91 60 60 60 60 6 60 gy, o
Heavy Vehicles, % - 10 10 10 9 9 9 (&7 5 56 16 B 1646 e
WimtFlow 12 410 7 23 319 18 3 2 S| s, - e B ki

Mmur']ll < w *,;“1 o

\ilg! V4

Conficting Flow Al 338 0 0 417 0 . 0 644 822 209 605

816 169

B2 N A U e S s S G R Ty T PR 8 ) =
Stage2 - - - - - - 206 384 - 20 44 -
Critical Hdwy 43 - - 428 - - 862 762 802 782 682 722 i
Critical Hd\nyAl - = - - - - 762 6.62 - 682 582 - - - I —
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 B e T - - 762 6.62 - 682 582 - Ty
Follow-upHdwy 23 - - 229 - - 406 456 386 366 416 346
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1162 - - 1090 - - 267 223 654 354 285 803 i
T S TR 445 460 - 581 582 -
|  Stage2 SR e - - 643 492 R A N e
Platoon blocked, % - - - - B Lt e
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1162 - - 1090 - - 241 216 654 338 276 803 i s y
Mov Cap-2 Maneuwver - - - - - - 24 216 -.338 216 - - .
Iqi Stage 1 = = oilp R - SoAd 485 = 57B¢ 60 1 R e e

~ Stage2 - - - - - - 581 48 - 692 5% -

E‘ap""cmv"‘—emm 2 507 1162 - 33 803

HCMLane VICRatio 0. 014 0.023 001 - -0021 - -00%0077
HCM Control Delay (s) 77720._1 128 B84 = = 84 STTTef 99

HoMLaRales 0 B Rl
HCM 95th %fle Qven) 0 04 0 - - 01 - - 01 02 - A i
Steelcase 60th Street TIS Synchro 11 Report

Fishbeck 10/17/2023



Queuing and Blocking Report

2023 Existing Conditions
a.m. Peak Hour

Intersection: 1: E Paris Avenue & 60th Street

Movement EB EB NB NB SB SB SB |
Directions Served L T L R LT R
Maximum Queue (f) 254 264 43 186 101 108 68
Average Queue (ft) 121 53 8 85 35 46 31

95th Queve(®t) 215 169 . @ 4 58

Link Distance (ft) 1500 367 617

Upstream Blk Time (%) : ARE, '

Queuing Penalty (veh)

Storage BayDist (f) 250 175 % 50
Storage Blk Time (%) 30 0 10 1
QueungPenalty (veh) 4 0 0 i )
Intersection: 2: Data Drive/Existing Steelcase Driveway & 60th Street

Movement EB  WB

Directions Served L L

Maximum Queue (f) u 5

Average Queue (ft) 2 4

O5th Queve (f) 13 18

Link Distance (ft)

Upstream Blk Time (%)

Queuing Penalty (veh) -

Storage Bay Dist (f) 250 250

Storage Blk Time (%) - T _

Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 3: Alliance Beverage Driveway & 60th Street

Movement WB NB l
Directions Served L R

Maximum Queue (f) 38 3%

Average Queue (ft) 6 3

95th Queue (f) %1

Link Distance (ft)

Upstream Blk Time (%)

Queuing Penalty (veh) - B

Storage Bay Dist (f) %0 75

Storage Blk Time (%) }
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Steelcase 60th Street TIS SimTraffic Report
Fishbeck 10/17/2023



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary 2023 Existing Conditions

1: E Paris Avenue & 60th Street p.m. Peak Hour
Ay v ANt 2 ML A

Movement ; EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL S8BT SBR
Lane Configurations 5 M L N S % 4 if
Mraffic Volume (veh/h) 47 . 220 21 17 290 36 40 139 24 72 36 30
Future Volume (veh/h) 171 220 21 17 290 36 40 139 24 72 306 310
Initial Q (Qb), veh 0 0 0 0 0 05 B 0 0 0 0 0
Ped-Bike Adj(A_ pr) 1.00 1.00  1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00  1.00 1.00
Parking Bus, Adj 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 400 100 100 100 1.00
Work Zone On Approach ) No 7 No ] No 7 No

Adj Sat Flow, veh/h/in 1885 1885 1885 1856 1856 1856 1870 1870 1870 1870 1870 1870
Ad; Flow Rate, veh/h 190 244 14 19 36 23 55 190 21 89 378 219
Peak Hour Factor 090 090 090 08 089 089 073 073 073 081 081 081
Percent Heavy Veh, % R D Sl (i 3 3 3 2 2 2 2 2 2
Cap, vehh 458 1567 89 4156 977 69 264 631 70 442 713 604
Artive On Green 008 046 046 029 029 029 038 038 038 038 038 038
Sat Flow, veh/h 1795 3444 197 1113 3341 235 777 1655 183 1171 1870 1585
Grp Volumeg(v), veh/h 190 126 13 19 17t 1758 55 0 21 89 878 279
Grp Sat Flow(s)veh/h/in 1795 1791 1850 1113 1763 1813 777 0 1837 1171 1870 1585
Q Serve(g_s), s 57 33 33 10 61 62 47 00 64 46 125 106
Cycle Q Clear(g_c), s LR 3838 1.0 T 00 64 110 125 106
Prop In Lane 100  0M1 100 043 1.00 010 100 100
Lane Grp Cap(c), veh/h 458 815 842 415 516 530 264 0 701 442 713 604
VICRatio(X) 041 015 016 005 033 03 021 000 030 020 058 046
Avail Cap(c_a), vehlh ~ 458 815 - 842 415 56 530 264 0 701 442 713 604
HCM Platoon Ratio 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 1.00
Upstream Filter(l) ] 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 000 1.00 100 100 100
Uniform Delay (d), siveh 167 128 128 204 222 222 259 00 173 212 192 188
Incr Delay (d2), s/veh 0.6 o O TN W W o0s - T 2. 25
Initial Q Delay(d3), siveh 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

%l BackOfQ(B0%)vehdn 24 12 12 03 25 26 [T

Unsig. Movement Delay, siveh

LnGrp Delay(d)siveh  17.3 132 132 206 239 i T T T R
LnGrp LOS B B B C C C C A B C C C
PpproachVolvehh 48 368 T R e
Approach Delay, siveh 15.0 23.7 ) 20.3 7 21.7
ApproachLOS, iRl Al ; C ; sl e S ARG
F*Duratlogf((§+Y+Rc) 5T f J?of ena: o Be RS ,"376 -

Change Period (Y+Rc), s *6.6 65 *66 *6.6 65 o

Max Green Sefting (Gmax),s ~ *36 S0l S8 o308 305 g
Max Q Clear Time (g_ c+l1) 5.3 14.5 1.7 8.2 193

breen Ext Time (p : TR e o e TR

,CM 6th Ctrl Delay S P e SR i AR

HCM 6th LOS C

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.

¥ HCM 6th computafional engine requires equal clearance times for the phases crossing the barrier.

Steelcase 60th Street TIS Synchro 11 Report
Fishbeck 10/17/2023



HCM 6th TWSC 2023 Existing Conditions
3: Alliance Beverage Driveway & 60th Street p.m. Peak Hour

Lane Conflguratlons Ly " M N F -

MrafficVol,vehh 344 0 0 325 9 33 P ey P R e S |

Future Vol, veh/h 344 0 0 325 9 33 - -

Eﬁrﬁcttng_&qg_s,ﬁlhr TR R e R N R e D R e

Sign Control - Free Free Free Free Stop Stop -

RT Channelized - None - None - None it 7 L

Storage Length - - 250 - 0 75 B

Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - Bl D D e gl fensy

Grade, % - - - 0 0 - - - -

Peak Hour Factor 81 8 Wie w7 om T o R b

Heavy Vehicles,% 3 3 5 5 2 2 - -

MvmtFlow - 425 0 0 401 10 36 e S ‘

Conﬂlctmg FlowAII 0 0 425 0 626 283 - S

| Stage1 TN s TR e S e N s i Rk
Stage 2 - - - - 201 - o -

Critical Hdwy e e e ) e T e T e B T R e Tt

Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - = - - 584 - ) - -

Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - 584 - = 3 ]

Follow-up Hdwy - - 225 - 352 332

E)I()_ap_—ﬂam;wg_fﬁ; - 1110 - 416 792 3 I

~ Stage! - - - - 6 - R -

. Stage? e - TR B e ST

Platoon blocked, % - - - - -

Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - =10 - #6 792 e 3 A A

Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 506 - S -
e TR e e s L S e e
Stage 2 - - - - 83 -

HCM Control Defay, s~ 0

HOM LOS B

G 505 792 e
HCM LaneVIC Ratio 0.019 0.045 - - - .

HCM Control Delay (s) 123 98 N ANE e - & 1
HCM Lane LOS = B A - - A -

HCM95th%tleQiveh) 04 01 - - 0 - 3> |
Steelcase 60th Street TIS Synchro 11 Report

Fishbeck 10/17/2023




HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
5: Patterson Avenue & 60th Street

2023 Existing Conditions
p.m. Peak Hour

Aoy w2 ML
Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL  SBT SBR
Lane Configurations N A L % 4 f % T
Traffic Volume (veh/h) 60 2287 56 33 167 3 43 122 97 14 258 109
Future Volume (veh/h) 60 297 56 33 167 3 43 122 97 14 258 109
Initial Q (Qb), veh 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Ped-Bike Adj(A_pbT) 1.00 100  1.00 1.00  1.00 1.00  1.00 1.00
Parking Bus, Adj 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 1.00
Work Zone On Approach No No B No No
Adj Sat Flow, veh/h/n 1826 1826 1826 1826 1826 1826 1826 1826 1826 1856 1856 1856
Adj Flow Rate, veh/h - 80 396 66 40 201 4 51 145 64 17 319 84
Peak Hour Factor 075 075 075 083 083 083 084 084 084 081 081 081
Percent Heavy Veh, % 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5. % 3 3 3
Cap, veh/h 530 1248 206 389 1457 29 329 765 648 519 593 156
Arrive On Green 042 042 042 042 042 042 O 42 042 042 042 042 042
Sat Flow, veh/h 1149 2979 493 908 3479 69 959 1826 1547 1163 1416 373
Grp Volume(v), veh/h 80 229 23 40 100 105 51 145 - 64 17 0 403
Grp Sat Flow(s),veh/h/in 1149 1735 1737 908 1735 1813 959 1826 1547 1163 0 1788
Q Serve(g_s), s 37 4 7.2 2.5 2.8 2.9 34 4.0 2.0 0.7 00 135
Cycle Q Clear(g_c 6.6 . i 2.8 29 169 40 2.0 48 00 135
Prop In Lane - 1.00 028  1.00 0.04  1.00 1.00  1.00 0.21
LLane Grp Cap(c), veh/h ' 50 726 727 389 726 759 329 765 648 519 0 749
VIC Ratio(X) 015 032 032 010 014 014 O 15 019 010 0.03 000 054
Avail Cap(c_a), veh/h 550 726 721 389 726 759 329 765 648 519 0 749
HCM Platoon Ratio 100 100 100 100 - 100  1.00 100 100 100 100 100 1.0
Upstream Filter(l) 100 100 100 100 100  1.00 100 100 100 100 000 1.00
Uniform Delay (d), s/veh 164 156 156 188 143 143 238 147 141 162 00 174
Incr Delay (d2), siveh s AL &R 85 04 B4 1.0 06 03 01 00 2.8
Initial Q Delay(d3), siveh 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
%ile BackOfQ(50%), vehlin 09 26 286 05 1.0 141 0.8 1.5 0.6 0.2 0.0 5.2
Unsig. Movement Delay, y, slveh S - o I .
LnGrp Delay(d),s/veh 7.0 167 168 194 147 147 248 152 144 163 00 202
LnGrp LOS B B B B B B C B B B A C
Approach Vol, veh/h 542 3 45 260 420
Approach Delay, s/veh 16.8 15 5 16.9 20 1
Approach LOS R LaomeR eyl B c
w*’m — 7?.2% —— ,343,, — i e ,8,,,,, — =
Phs Duration (G+Y+Rc),s 40.0 40.0 400 400 |
Change Period (Y+Rc), s 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5
Max Green Setting (Gmax), s 335 - 835 336 33.5
Max Q Clear Time (g_c+!1), s 18.9 9.2 15,5 11.7
Green Ext Time (p_c), s 09 26 2.0 1.4
Intersection Summary ; ASRECLS TR S 2 = 2 L =
HCM 6th Ctrl Delay 175 '
HCM 6th LOS B
Steelcase 60th Street TIS Synchro 11 Report
Fishbeck 10/17/2023



Queuing and Blocking Report 2023 Existing Conditions
p.m. Peak Hour

Intersection: 4: Arlo Plastics Driveway/Roskam Baking Driveway & 60th Street

Movement EB  WB NB NB SB SB |
Directions Served L L L TR L TR

Maximum Queue (f) 4176 84 M 85T R0

Average Queue (ft) 0 1 s 18 14 12

05th Queue (f) G P | T I Tt

Link Distance (ft) 378 257 257

Upstream Blk Time (%) : g :
Queuling Penalty {veh) =

Storage Bay Dist (ft) 250 0 75

Storage Blk Time (%)

Queuing Penalty (veh) 3

Intersection: 5: Patterson Avenue & 60th Street

Movement EB EB EB WB WB WB NB NB NB S8 SB
Directions Served 7 L T R L T R L T R L TR
Maximum Queue (ft RS 76 99 6 8 14 5 42 254
Average Queue (ft) 31 52 60 20 42 10 28 48 25 8 123
95th Queue () S e R T e i SEnk CHRRC WG W)
Link Distance (ft) 1040 1040 734 734 406 487
Upstream Blk Time (%)

Queuing Penalty (veh) ; _

Storage Bay Dist (ft) 250 250 : 190 15 200 -
Storage Blk Time (%) 0 7 2
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 % 0

Zone Summary
Zone wide Queuing Penalty: 158

Steelcase 60th Street TIS SimTraffic Report
Fishbeck 10/17/2023



EEITEN

-1019B} B 3J9M SSN( “g4nd 3oNJis pue SJo1Y3A JO [043U0D 1507} ON ON SIA 0 1y3ijAeq Aa 1010 SIBUIS 070Z/v1/1T | 608827020T
“33e1n0 Jamod SuLINP Uol103sI3UL o o o paysiiun 4 15U -
D371j28UIS UIU3M PBPIIOD 32143 SM PUE BIY3A 85 N N N 0] yeq a jsuy 0Z0Z/0E/0T | €T88¢T0C0T
“Spowl ysef} Ui suielado sem [BuslS "3[oIy3aA RESOE]
A 3
gs onuis pue 3y3i| Surysely paJ papJedalsip 3[1YaA gM °N ON ON ) aeq d slsuvY 0202/cT/8 | €8TSETOCOT
EFRENRENES
“1LTML Ul Papi][0d S3pdIyaA gM OML ON ON ON o] s1jAeg BM adimsapis 0z0TZ/vT/T | ¥595910T0C
3B Buluing sem uondalig m.Emm
8 Al
1eU1 331YSA gS onJis pue Yaj uing o} pardwanie 3PIYsA gN °N oN N 0 walkea d adimsapis 6T02/¥/TT | C0T0STE10C
“3p21yaA gN onJ3s pue 3yB1| pas paplesaisip 3[diyaA g3 ON ON ON 0] yeiAeq IBM a|duy 6102/S2/9 | T9STYI610T
1 IML 243 Ul Apealie 3[diyaa
A A
£ onias pue TLTML 03Ul 3peq 03 padwslie SPIYaA 83 ON ON ON o] ysiAeq a 3Y10 610¢/9T/S | S8760T610C
“apoll gsey Ui suielado sem [eUSIS R o o pa1ysli o 3 185
“1y81| paJ Suiysely 1e apIyeA paddoss 4o} dois 03 pajied N N N © yed : pu3 185y 6T0¢/v2/1 | STITECTOL
BNUBAY U0S.811ed PUe 19941S Y109 4O UCI1I9sIaju]
“35UElsIp paIyBIT GonoaJiq -ddo
A
1B3|D PaJNsse INOYLM 3] Uin} 03 pardwalje 3oiysA aN ON ON N ) Jieq d adimsspis 2e0e/Lz/0T | OTLzETze0T
3oue}sip
o] 31Ae A 218
Jea[p pAINSSE 3NOUYIIM 13| LIy 03 pa1dwialie 3PIYaA §3 ON ON N 9] ysijaed a jsuy T0T/vT/8 | T8T9ST1T0T
ERNEST)
0 o] 3ijAe A 9j8u
1e8[D PAINSSE JNOYIIM 13| L3 03 pa3dWaie SIY9A 83 N N ON ] 1ysijheq a [suy 0Z0Z/0€/9 | 66590T020C
*10398) B SeMm [040d]y “died3 paddols Joj dois 03 pajied ON ON SSA o) ysijheq Mg pug lesy 6102/¥/1T | ¥600526T0C .
risypR2ioz0U o o} o SijAe A 3j8u
JpN.AS pUE JYS1] Pa1 U0 43| Uin} 03 pajduualie SIYRA EN N N N .| ¥ ystiAeqg d = 6T0T/¥T/L | 9TTS9T6T0T
SoUEsIp o o] 0 sn A 9i8u
JeBjo Painsse INOYIIM 142} ulnj 0} peldianie 3PIY3A g3 N N N g snd d 18UV 6T0C/0E/S | SBT6CT610C
‘3]d1yan paddois 104 dois 03 pajied ON ON ON o] wSjAeq mous pu3 Jesy 6T0C/TT/T | TTECT6I0T
ELNEHN) o R o pa1ysil 5 win] 3o
JeaJ3 paJnsse NOYIM 1S uinj 01 paidulalie 3Piyaa 43 N N N ) Nied M uQ-pesH 810Z/5¢/6 | SS6v1C8T0C
Y31 mo|j8A uo souelsip
o SijAe A 9|8u
JE3[D PaINSSE INOUIIM 13| LN} 03 paLduISTE BIYaA 83 ON ON N q ysiphed a |suy 8T0T/L1/6 | LE6STTBIOC
‘3[21YaA §S donJis pue s pad popJesaJsip 3pIysA g3 ON ON OoN 0 wSiAeq Ag 9[8uy 8T0T/S/1 670¥7810C
anusAY Slied 7 Pue 13341S Y109 JO UO[1D3s1a1u]
g sdnaq 1o SUoIJpUO) -
Aanfl 3 dA
asne) 10 pad [euiiuy [0YodIY niu st peoy 9UAL Yseld aieq #0Ql

720 ‘T€ J3quwiada( - 8TOT ‘T Aenuer eleq yseld




UoIadig owes

“90UB)SIp JeS|o paJnsse Jnoylm saue| afueys o1 perdwanly | ON OoN ON 0 umeq Aig odimMSapIS 7202/ST/0T | 89Y5TTTI0T
SR
*uojs|||0d 133Q ON SaA ON 0 P vum.n_u n 1M jewiuy 220T/vT/6 | 68L561TC0T
g s8ni( 40 SUONRIPUO)
Aunf S adA] yseu aje
asnen 10 pad jewliuy (0400 niuy sl peoy L ysesd 1ed #dl

7207 ‘1€ Joqwiada( - §10T ‘T Adenuer eleq ysesd




Unit Number ] Unlt Known | State Driver License Number Date of Birth {Age) License Type Endorsements Sex Totat Oceupants Haiardous Action
02 Yes M iEHHHEHEHERH R} (56) ® Operator @ Cycle F 01 None
O Chauffeur O Farm
O Moped O Recreation
Unit Type Driver Information Driver s Owner [Injury Paosition Restraint
MV THHHHRHHHAHREHHHR Yes A Front - Left Helmet Worn
SHHHHHHHHHHRREHHERRHHHERRE
MIDDLEVILLE, Mi 49333  (#i#) #HH-HEbE
Driver Conditton at Time of Crash 2nd Driver Dls_!racted By Ejected | Trapped |Alrbag Deployed
Ist n Not Distracted Yes Not Deployed
Appeared Normal
Hospital Ambulance
OTHER LIFE EMS INC
‘Alcoho! Suspected | Contributing Factor | Alcohol Test Type Alcohol Test Results Interlack Device
No No OBreath OBicod O Urne O Pending Test Resuits: No
O Field O PBT O Refused ® Not Offered
Drug Suspected Contributing Factor | Drug Test Type Drug Test Results Citation lssued
No No O Blood O Urine O Pending Test Results: © Hazardous
O Fleld O Refused ® Not Offered O Other
Vehicle Registration State | Vehicle Year Make Modet Color
LQ423 Ml | Deseription 2010 HONDA VT1300 RED
VIN Vehicle Type Speclal Veh!cl.es Private Traller Type Vehicle Defect
JH2SC6702AK001964 | Motorcycle Not Applicable
(s} In Vehicle System Level in Vehicle L, System Level Ei d at Time of Crash
No No Automation No Automation
Insurance Company Insurance Policy # Towed By Towed To
SHHEHHEHHEHHHHEHHHR AR SHEHHHHHHHSHERHARHEHRR | MERLS
Location of First iImpact | Extent of Damage (Power Unit and/or Tiallers} | Vehicle Direction | Vehicle Use Action Prior
Greatest Damage 01 | 01 Disabling Damage Private Going Straight Ahead
Sequence of First 3 Second Third Fourth
Events ® 17 - Motor Veh in Transport
{® Indicates MOST harmful event)
Passenger Information Date of Birth {Age) Sex | Position Restraint
Injury Elected |Trapped |Albag Deployed
Hospital Ambulance
Passenger Information Date of Birth (Age) Sex | Position Restraint
injury Efected |Trapped | Alrbag Deployed
Hospitat Ambulance
Carrier Information uspoT MC MPSC
Driver's COL Type Endorsements CDL Exempt
oH OP OT O Farm
ON 08 OX O Other
GVWR/IGCWR Vehicle Configuration Gargo Body Type Medicat Card Hazardous Material iD# Class #
010,000 s, or Less  © 10,001 - 26,000 Ibs, O Greater than 26,000 ibs. O Placard O Cargo Spiil
[%] Owner Information Owner Information
o
ul
E
(o]
V73] Witness Information Witness information
SHHHHHHHEHHHHHHEHHHH AR THHEHHHHHHHEHHRAHERR R .
SHHEHHHEHRIR AR IRHEHHHHHHEHHEHHHHEHHHHHHH
HHHHHHHHHHHHEH R, O (GHH) T FHHHHHHHEHHE R R, 1 TR () THEHH
investigated Reporied Date (Time) 1st Investigator Name (Badge) 2nd Investigator Name (Badge) Photos
atscene  Yes| 07/24/2019 (12:42)] SARAH SCHUDEL (2807) No

Narrative
Unit 2 was West bound on 60th with a green light. Qnit 1 was turning North

bound onto East Paris from 60th. Unit 1 stated that he was turning left onto East
Paris from 60th since he didn't see any vehicles approaching. Witnesses advised
Unit 1 turned in front of Unit 2, causing the collision. Unit 2 was transported by
EMS for neck and arm injuries.




O Placard O Cargo Spill

Unit Number | Unit Known | State Driver License Number Date of Birth (Age) License Type Endorsements Sex Total Occupants | Hazardous Action
O Operator O Cycle
O Chauffeur O Farm
O Moped O Recreation
Unit Type Driver Information Driver is Cwner jInjury Pasition Restraint
Driver (%g;\di(ion at Time of Crash 2nd Driver Distracted By Ejected | Trapped }Airbag Deployed
i
Hospltal Ambulance
Alcohol Suspected | Contributing Factor | Alcohol Test Type Alcohol Test Results Intertack Device
OBreath O Blood O Urine O Pending Test Results:
O Field O PBT O Refused O Not Offered
Dnug Suspected Contributing Factor | Drug Test Type Drug Test Results Citation Issued
O Blood O Urine O Pending Test Results: O Hazardous
O Field O Refused O Not Offered O Other
Vehicle Registration State | Vehicle Year Make Modet Color
Description
VIN Vehicle Type Speclal Vehicles Private Traller Type Vehicle Defect
Y in Vehicle System Level in Vehidle Automation System Level Engaged at Time of Crash
nsurance Company insurance Palicy # Towed By Towed To
Location of First Impact | Extent of Damage (Power Unit andfor Trailers) | Vehicle Direction |Vehicle Use Action Prior
Greatest Damage
Sequence of * First Second Third Fourth
vents
(® indicates MOST harmful event)
Passenger information Date of Birth (Age) Sex {Position Restraint
Injury Ejected |Trapped |Airbag Deployed
Hospital ’Ambu ance
t Passenger Information Date of Birth {Age) 8ex | Position Restraint
Injury Ejected |Trapped |Alrbag Deployed
Hospital Ambufance
Carrier Information uspoT MC MPSC
Diiver's COL Type Endorsements CDL Exempt
OH aP OT O Farm
ON 0S8 0X © Other
GVWR/GCWR Vehicle Configuration Carga Body Type Medical Card Hazardous Materjal D# Class #
© 10,000 ibs. orLess  © 10,001 - 26,000 Ibs. O Greater than 26,000 lbs.

1731 Owner Information

Owmier Information

[14

z

=

(o]

[G] Witness Information Witness Information
] s R

W

g HHHHEHHHEHEHHEHAHRARRERAH ARG, $HE AR () TR

Investigated Reported Date {Time) st investigator Name (Badge) 2nd Investigator Name (Badge) Photos
at Scene

Narrative

Diagram




Unit Number [ Unit Knoyn | State Driver License Number Date of Birth {(Age) License Type Endorsements Sex Race | Total Occupants | Hazardous Action
02 Yes M HHHHEHEHHEHHE HH R (51) O Operator O Gycle M W | 01 None
® Chauffeur Q Farm
© Moped O Recreation
Unit Type Driver Information Driver is Owner {Injury Position Restralnt
MV HIHHHHHHHAE R No C Front - Left Shoulder and Lap Belt
HitHHHEHEHEH HHERAH BRI
WHITE CLOUD, Ml 49349  (###) ##it-Hititit
Oriver andiﬂon at Time of Crash 2nd Driver Distracted Byd Ejected [Trapped |Alrbag Deployed
Appeared Normal Not Distracte Not Equipped
Hospitat Ambulance
NON
Alcohol Suspected | Contributing Factor | Alcohol Test Type Alcohol Test Resulls Interfock Device
| No No O Breath O Blood O Urine O Pending Test Results: No
O Field O PBY O Refused @ Not Offered
Drug Suspected Contributing Factor | Drug Test Type Drurg Test Results Citation Issued
No No O Blood O Urine O Pending Test Results: O Hazardous
O Field O Refused O Not Offered O Other
ehicle Registration State  }Vehicle Year Make Model Caolor
57081 MI | Description 1995 KENWORTH SEM RED
VIN Vehicle Type Special Vehicles Private Trailer Type Vehicte Defect
1NKDLB0X2SJ638196 | Truck/Bus Construction Equipment Utility
In Vehicle System Levet in Vehicle Automation System Level Engaged at Time of Crash
No No Automation No Automation
nsuranice Company Insurance Policy # Towed By Towed To
I SRR | (HEHEHHERHH R | BUDS
ocation of First Impact | Extent of Damage (Power Unit and/or Trailers) | Vehicle Direction Vehicle Use Action Prior
Greatest Damage 01 | 01 Functional Damage Commercial (Business) Going Straight Ahead
Sequence of First X Second . Third Fourth
Events ® 17 - Motor Veh in Transport 04 - Ran Off Roadway-Right 06 - Overturn
® indicates MOST harmful event)
Passenger Information Date of Birth {Age) Sex |Race | Position Restraint
Injury Ejected | Trapped |Alrbag Deployed
Hospital Ambulance
Passenger Information Date of Birth (Age) Sex | Race | Position Restraint
injury Ejected | Trapped | Aitbag Deployed
Hospital Ambutance
Cander Inform.ation usboT mc MPSC
VINTAGE TRUCKING 000003117005
12902 MASON DR ST
ype Endorsements CDL Exempt
GRANT, Ml 49327 Group A on op 61 | oFam
ON 0S8 OX O Other
GVWR/GCWR Vehicle Configuration Cargo Body Type Medical Card Hazardous Material D# Class #
010,000 bs. orLess  © 10,001 -26,000 1bs. @ Greater than 26,000 Ibs. Tractor / Semi-Trailer Yes O Placard O Cargo Spill
Owner Information QOvmer Information
Witness Information Witness information
#################‘####
FHEHHHEHHEHHSEHHEH RN, $ R () R
investigated Reported Date (Time) 1st Investigator Name (Badge) 2nd Investigator Name (Badge) Photos
atScene  Yes| 06/23/2021 (12:48)] AARON DIPADOVA (2720) Yes
Narrative Diaaram
UNIT 2 WAS EAST ON 60TH WEST OF PATTERSON AVE. UNIT 1 WAS
SOUTH EXITING DRIVE FROM 4631 60TH. PER UNIT 2 AND WITNESS
BEHIND UNIT 2 OBSERVED UNIT 1 EXIT PVT DRIVE AT HIGH RATE OF

SPEED CROSSING 80TH AND BEING STRUCK BY UNIT 2. BOTH VEHICLES
WENT EAST AND RAN OFF ROADWAY RIGHT/SOUTH. STRIKING FIRE
HYDRANT. TRAILER OVERTURNED WITH ASHPHALT. DEQ#26787. UNIT 1
WAS TRANSPORTED TO METRO BY LIFE. UNIT 2 COMPLAINT NO
MEDICAL ATTENSION REQUESTED.




HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary
1. E Paris Avenue & 60th Street

2025 Background Conditions

a.m. Peak Hour

A ey v ANt MY
Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL S8BT SBR
Lane Configurations ¥ Y A % S % 4 if
Traffic Volume (veh/h) e e T U RE
Future Volume (veh/h) 37 307 46 30 197 49 14 M 32 5 116 119
Initial Q (Qb), veh By i D 0 e B S D P R
Ped-Bike Adj(A_pbT) 1.00 100 1.00 100 1.00 1,00 1.00 1,00
Parking Bus, Adj 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 1.00
Work Zone On Approach 7 No No No No
Adj Sat Flow, veh/h/ln 1856 1856 1856 1811 1811 1811 1826 1826 1826 1885 1885 1885
Adj Flow Rate, veh/h 348 337 43 34 224 4 17 254 23 72 149 103
Peak Hour Factor 091 091 091 08 08 08 083 08 08 078 078 078
Percent Heavy Veh, % 3 3 3 6 6 6 5 5 5 1 1 1
Cap, vehh F3 i1 . 1% S 882 1587 421 BRb R 356 672 56
Arive On Green 041 048 048 029 029 029 036 036 036 036 036 036
Sat Flow, veh/h 1767 3148 308 971 2913 524 1101 1650 149 1111 1885 1598
Grp Volume(v), veh/h 348 187 193 34 131 134 {7 0 277 72 149 103
Grp Sat Flow(s),veh/h/in 1767 1763 1784 911 1721 A7T17 1101 0 1799 1111 - 1885 1598
Q Serve(g_s), s 84 50 50 21 47 48 09 00 94 42 44 35
Cycle QClear(g_c),s 8.4 5.0 5.0 2.1 4.7 4.8 53 0.0 94 136 44 3.5
Prop In Lane 1.00 022 1.00 0.31 1.00 008  1.00 1.00
Lane Grp Cap(c), veh/h 533 846 856 374 503 502 421 0 641 35 672 569
VIC Ratio(X) 065 022 022 009 026 027 004 000 043 020 022 018
Avail Cap(c_a), veh/h 533 846 856 374 503 502 421 0 641 356 672 569
HCMPlatoonRato 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100  1.00
Upstream Filter(l) 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 000 100 100 100 1.00
Uniform Delay (d), siveh 187 124 124 207 217 217 199 00 196 248 180 177
Incr Delay (d2), siveh BT iE . 8. 4y 43 g w0 Py 43 cwgheen
Initial Q Delay(d3),s/veh 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00
%ile BackOfQ(50%)vehdin 42 17 18 05 18 19 02 00 38 11 18 13
Unsig. Movement Delay, sieh S - S o
LnGrp Delay(d),slveh gis B {2 212 2§ 20 200 00 217 260 188 184
LnGrp LOS C B B C C C C A C C B B
Approach Val, veh/h 728 299 204 s :
Appﬁ)ggh_@_elay, slveh 16.9 22.8 21.6 20.3
Approach LOS B c [ B
Timer - Assigned Phs 2 4 5 6 8 ,
Phs Duration (G+Y+Rc), s 45.0 350 150 300 350
Change Period (Y+Rc), s *6.6 65 *66 *66 6.5 .
Max Green Setting (Gmax), s * 38 _B5 84 "N BB
Max Q Clear Time (g_c+1), s 7.0 156 104 68 114
Green Ext Time (p_c), s 18 W0 00T T T 13 3
Intersection Summary I
HCM 6th Ctrl Delay e s :
HCM 6th LOS ' B
Notes

User approved pedestrian interval to be less than phase max green.

¥ HCM 6th computational engine requires equal clearance times for the phases crossing the barrier.

Steelcase 60th Street TIS
Fishbeck

Synchro 11 Report
10/17/2023



HCM 6th TWSC 2025 Background Conditions
3: Alliance Beverage Driveway & 60th Street a.m. Peak Hour

Traffic Vol,venh 363 0 37 305
FutureVoI vehih 73& 0 37 305

Lane Conﬂgurations_ ‘H) N M % P
BT
0 3

L A e e s | KRR S L R e R e T A s e e
Slgn Control ~ Free Free Free Free Stop Stop B
Channelized - None - None - None S s B T R S g
St‘ora_ggﬂh_ - - 250 - 0 75 . . i y—— g
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 SR s i o e R o G R el o ik )
Grade, % - - o 0 - - - - 7
Peak Hour Factor j@i 5. R e e A N AT SR i)

HeavyVehicles,% 7 7 6 6 2 2
L e SRR S e . e . P R S s i 1 i ]

Conficing FlowAllL 0 0 42 0 680 211

| BEe® o R E R - 422 i v th g e ; ais
Stag_gg_wf i - - = 258 - - o -

Critical Hdwy - - 422 - 684 694 ; 3y R 5 B e b s o i

Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 584 - ) B o

Criical Hdwy Stg2 - - - - 584 - T ‘

Folowup Hdwy - - 226 - 352 332 ) -

Pot Cap-1 Maneuver el 'k NAbb - 385 79 2 R b A
Stage 1 L - - - 629 - - B

‘( 3@992 2 £YiTS - 761 el - i L i

Platoon blocked,% - - - ERE - —

Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 1106 - 370 794 4 |

Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 416 - e o -

BT TN YR PORRE Ty ()R S e F P B i |

~ Stage2 - - - - 782 -

HCM Control Delay, s N
HCM LOS A

HCM Lane VIC Ratio

M Control Delay (s) 8.4 3
HCM Lane LOS A A - - A -
HCM 95th %tlle Q(veh) - 0 - - 0. - i A ' |
Steelcase 60th Street TIS Synchro 11 Report

Fishbeck 10/17/2023



HCM 6th Signalized Intersection Summary

5: Patterson Avenue & 60th Street

2025 Background Conditions

a.m. Peak Hour

A oy ¢ A b o2 ML/
Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations ¥ LI Ll 4 if % P
Traffic Volume (vehih) 4 21 2@ 23 10 5 31 8 7 10 6
Future Volume (veh/h) 104 231 29 15 223 10 56 351 85 7130 62
Initial Q (Qb), veh e 0 - 8 0 B e 0, v 0 0 0 0
Ped-Bike Adj(A_pbT) 1.00 100 100 100 1.00 - 1.00  1.00 1.00
Parking Bus, Ad 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 1.0
Work Zone On Approach No ~ No ) No ) - No
Adj Sat Flow, veh/h/in 1737 1737 1737 1752 1752 1752 1856 1856 1856 1762 1752 1752
Adj Flow Rate, veh/h 124 215 21 18 262 7 72 450 36 10 191 48
Peak Hour Factor 084 084 08 08 08 08 078 078 078 068 068 0.8
Percent HeavyVeh % 11 11 1 10 10 10 3 3 3 10 10 10
Cap, veh/h 470 1302 99 457 1387 37 456 777 - 658 288 566 142
Arrive On Green 042 042 042 042 042 042 042 042 042 042 042 042
Sat Flow, veh/h 1031 3109 236 1015 3312 88 1132 18s6 1572 862 1351 340
Grp Volume(v), veh/h 124 145 151 18 131 138 72 450 36 10 0 239
Grp Sat Flow(s)veh/hiin 1031 1650 1695 1015 1664 1736 1132 1856 1572 852 0 1691
Q Serve(g_s), s 6.9 45 45 09 40 40 37 149 1.1 0.7 0.0 7.7
Cycle Q Clear(g_c), s 10.9 4.5 4.5 5.5 40 40 113 149 T4 ThB . e, W
Prop In Lane 1.00 0.14  1.00 005 1.00 1.00  1.00 0.20
Lane Grp Cap(c), veh/h 470 691 710 457 697 727 456 777 658 268 0 708
VIC Ratio(X) 026 021 021 004 019 019 016 058 005 003 000 034
Avail Cap(c_a), veh/h 470 691 710 457 697 721 456 777 658 288 0 708
HCM Platoon Ratio 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 1.00
Upstream Filter(l) 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 000 1.00
Uniform Delay (d), s/veh 181 148 148 166 147 147 196 178 138 238 00 157
[ncr Delay (d2), siveh 14 0.7 0.7 0.2 0.6 0.6 0.7 A 0.2 0.0 1.3
Initial Q Delay(d3),s/veh 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 00 00 0.0 0.0 00 00 00
%ile BackOfQ(50%),veh/in ¥ 15 16 08 8¢ 08 b 04 e W 9
Unsig. Movement Delay, siveh o S - -
LnGrp Delay(d),siveh 195 155 . 155 17 163 158 203 20 W40 A 0.0 170
LnGrp LOS B B B B B B C C B C A B
Ppproach Vol, veh/h T DU TG .. ML . 5L
Approach De_lqy, slveh 16.7 15.4 204 17.3 -
Approach LOS B B oo C B
Timer - Assigned Phs 2 4 ; 6 8 , ==
Phs Duration (G+Y+Rg), s 40.0 400 40.0 40.0
Change Period (Y+Re),s 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5
Max Green Setting (Gmax), s TR 335 335 '
Max Q Clear Time (g_c+/1), s 169 12.9 17.6 75
Green Ext Time (p_c), s 25 1.9 T 13
Intersection Summary ooEk R : :
HCM6th Cir Delay i £
HCM 6th LOS B
Steelcase 60th Street TIS Synchro 11 Report
Fishbeck 10/17/2023



Queuing and Blocking Report

2025 Background Conditions

a.m. Peak Hour

Intersection: 4: Arlo Plastics Driveway/Roskam Baking Driveway & 60th Street

Movement : EB WB NB NB SB SB

Directions Served L L L R L TR

Maximum Queue (ft) IR e REE Ao

Average Queue (ft) 2 6 ) 10 6 29

95th Queue (ft) R e e e

Link Distance (ft) - 378 257 257

Upstream Blk Time (%)

Queuing Penalty (veh)

StorageBayDist(ff) 250 280 75 :

Storage Blk Time (%) B 0

Queuing Penalty (ven) 0 =
Intersection: 5: Patterson Avenue & 60th Street

Movement _ ; FB__EB EB WB WB WB NB NB NB SB SB
Directions Served L T TR L T TR L T R L 1R
Maximum Queue (ft) 167 126 47 56 126 e 86 20 58 41 176
Average Queue (f) 70 & 68 10 50 20 20 M3 22 5 6
95th Queue (ft) 128 105 119 35 98 55 63 189 47 24 131
Link Distance (ft) 1040 1040 734 734 406 487
Upstream Blk Time (%) 3

Queuing Penalty (veh) - ) -
Storage Bay Dist (f) 250 Fl T R

Storage Blk Time (%) ) 7 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 10 0
Zone Summary

Zone wide Queuing Penalty: 34 7

Steelcase 60th Street TIS SimTraffic Report
Fishbeck 10/17/2023



HCM 6th TWSC

2025 Background Conditions

2: Data Drive/Existing Steelcase Driveway & 60th Street

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1.1
Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations 5 Y 4 f g r
MrafficVol,venh 7 320 2 0 347 1 TR R TR
Future Vol, veh/h 7 320 2 0 347 1 4 0 26 12 0 6
ConflicingPeds,#r 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop  Stop
RT Channelized - -Nme - -Nome - - Nomée - - None
Storage Length 250 - 250 - = 5 = 0 = - 0
Vehin Median Storage,# - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % -0 - - 0 - - o - - 0 -
PeakHourFactor 83 83 83 82 82 8 60 60 60 75 75 75
HeawVehides,% 2 2 2 2 2 2 0 0 0 17 11 1
Mymt Flow PR Nl W AT
Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow Al 424 0 0 388 0 0 615 827 194 633 828 212
T E— A S EE s B R
Stage 2 .- ... .12 44 - 209 404 -
Critical Hdwy 414 - - 414 - - 75 65 69 784 684 7.24
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - 65 55 - 684 584 =
Criical Hdwy Stg2 =~ - - - - - - 65 55 - 684 584 -
Follow-up Hdwy 2.22 - - 222 - - 35 4 33 367 4147 347
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1132 - - 1167 - - 379 309 821 335 278 749
~ Stage1 ] - - - - - - 601 603 - 540 549 -
| Stage2 FE b hirmlm u® e B BN . R Bbl -
Platoon blocked, % - - - - S
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1132 - - 1167 - - 3713 307 821 316 276 749
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - - 3713 307 - 36 276 -
[ Staget - - = = - . B9y B9 - 53 540 -
— ~ Stage 2 - - - - 768 590 - 688 557 -
|
Approach _ EB w8 NB _SB
HCMControl Delay,s 02 0 103 e,
HCMLOS - :

sracmhm; e

p.m. Peak Hour

3 373 821 1132 £ - =
HCM Lane VIC Ratio 0 018 07053 0770702 . = - - - 0. 051 Q0711 7
HCM Control Delay (§) g 1@ 96, 8.2 e _ 0 - . 99—
HCM Lane LOS B A “A_ - - A - - Q A
I-ICM 95(h %ttle_g(vgh) 61 SR e - 0 - - 02 0
Steelcase 60th Street TIS Synchro 11 Report

Fishbeck



HCM 6th TWSC 2025 Background Conditions
4: Arlo Plastics Driveway/Roskam Baking Driveway & 60th Street p.m. Peak Hour

Lane Configuraions % A . T I, B

TficVolvenh 3 %7 2 6 319 7 & 1 28 % 0 45
FutreVo,venh 3 3 2 6 319 7 5 1 28 15 0 15

Conflictng Peds, %t 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 <
Sign Control Free Free Free ‘Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop L e T
RT Channelized =~ - - Nome - - None - - None - - Nome Wy
Storagelengh 250 - - 250 - - 0 - 1} 0 - - L
VT g L i, il Ao i i SRl dhei: e b i i ol et
Grade, % T D T T T '
PeaktourFactr 79 79 79 77 77 77 60 60 60 8 8 8 2
Heavy Vehicles, % m?l, 3 3 7 7 7 3 3 3 18 18 18 o aee
MvmtFlow 4 4% 3 8 414 9 8 2 AN e e i ¥

Gonfcing FIowAIIi 43 0 0 493 o 0 13 39 247 680 936 212

R NSRS RO SRTEAE R - 500 500 - 435 436 -

,ﬁgﬁ&m,, . L I 1S 203 439 - 254 501 - S
Criical Hdwy 416 - - 424 - - 756 656 696 7.86 6.86 7.26 o i e
Critical Hdwy Stg1 - - - - - - 65 586 @ - 6.86 5.86 - M,

Critical Hdwy Stg2 - - - i St 656 556 - 686 58 @ - e
Follow-up Hdwy 223 - - 227 - - 353 403 333 368 418 348
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1126 - - 1032 - - 312 261 750 303 237 746 S
Staget - - - - - - 59 58 - 59 &0 -
| Stage2 - - - Eoch e FE6HE =0 RESTTRW G TP o TR e
Platoon blocked, % . . == n T
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1126 - - 1032 © .- 302 258 780 2680 234 746 el
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - - 302 258 - 280 234 - g 5 ' i L

| Staget AR e e B § RN
“Stage2 - - - - - - 13 569 - 68 501 -

HOM LOS ' B B

ANO! Malor Mvmi | | {

02 704 1126

T e b AW

HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0028 0069 0003 - - 0008 - - 0061 0.023 -

CM Control Delay (s) 173 105 82 - - 85 - - 187 98 N R
N .
HCM5th %fleQuver) 01 02 0 - - 0 - - 02 0 R R I
Steelcase 60th Street TIS Synchro 11 Report

Fishbeck 10/17/2023



Queuing and Blocking Report 2025 Background Conditions
p.m. Peak Hour

Intersection: 1: E Paris Avenue & 60th Street

Movement EB EB EB W8 WB WB NB N8 SB SB SB |
DirectionsSeved L T 1R L T 1R L TR L T R
Maximum Queue (ff %5 8¢ 77 50 13 138 95 160 135 83 150
Average Queue (ft 62 29 16 11 66 65 3 62 47 129 86
g5th Queue (ff) e T 4 MU AW R A% Ton 28556
Link Distance (ff) 1500 1500 - 1709 1709 %7 617
Upstream Blk Time (%) :

Queuing Penalty (veh) ]

Storage Bay Dist (ff) R B ERS T | el
Storage Blk Time (%) B - 0 32 13
Queuing Penalty (veh) 2 0 128 51

Intersection: 2: Data Drive/Existing Steelcase Driveway & 60th Street

Movement EB NB NB SB 8B

Directions Served L7 R __[* R

Maximum Queue (ft) 2 3 36 59 43

Average Queue (ft) 2 2 18 12 7

5th Queue (f) S G ks ol

Link Distance (ft) 234 234 281 281

Upstream Blk Time (%)

Queuing Penalty (veh) - B
Storage Bay Dist (ff) 250

Storage Blk Time (%) ) )
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 3: Alliance Beverage Driveway & 60th Street

Movement NB NB
Directions Served L R
Maximum Queue (ft) 3 4L
Average Queue (ft) 10 23
B5th Queue (ff) B84
Link Distance (ft) 518

Upstream Bk Time (%)

Queuing Penalty (veh)

Starage Bay Dist () 75
Storage Blk Time (%) - 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0
Steelcase 60th Street TIS SimTraffic Report

Fishbeck 1017/2023



Appendix 5

e T N O T e e K B s T O R R R |
Trip Generation Calculations




Land Use: 140
Manufacturing

Description

A manufacturing facility is an area where the primary activity is the conversion of raw materials
or parts into finished products. Size and type of activity may vary substantially from.one facility
to another. In addition to the actual production of goods, a manufacturing facility typically has an
office and may provide space for warehouse, research, and associated functions. General light
industrial (Land Use 110) and industrial park (Land Use 130) are related uses.

Additional Data

The technical appendices provide supporting information on time-of-day distributions for this
land use. The appendices can be accessed through either the ITETripGen web app or the trip

...................................................................................

..................................

The sites were surveyed in the 1980s, the 1990s, the 2000s, and the 2010s in Alberta (CAN),
California, Minnesota, Missouri, New Jersey, New York, Oregon, Pennsylvania, South Dakota,
Texas, Vermont, Washington, and West Virginia.

Source Numbers

177,179, 184, 241, 357, 384, 418, 443, 583, 598, 611, 728, 747, 875, 879, 940, 969, 1067, 1068,
1082

66  Trip Generation Manual 11th Edition « Volume 3 itc—r



Manufacturing
(140)

Vehicle Trip Ends vs:
On a:

Setting/Location:
Number of Studies:

Avg. 1000 Sq. Ft. GFA:
Directional Distribution:

Vehicle Trip Generation per 1000 Sq. Ft.

Average Rate

Range of Rates

1000 Sq. Ft. GFA

Weekday,

Peak Hour of Adjacent Street Traffic,
One Hour Between 7 and 9 a.m.
General Urban/Suburban

48

138
76% entering, 24% exiting

GFA

Standard Deviation

0.68 0.01-11.93 1.03
Data Plot and Equation
1.000‘
X
800
% i
G 600,
2
iE
e X
M o o SEAR RS e e ol
400 406 l
X X
200 §
xX X
X X 3 X
x R s
X X oy "X
A
0 . 650
0 200 400 600 800 1,000
X =1000 Sq. Ft. GFA
X Study Site Fitted Curve Average Rate
Fitted Curve Equation: T = 0.61(X) + 9.54 R?= 0.62

Trip Gen Manual, 11th Edition

e |nstitute of Transportation Engineers




Manufacturing
(140)

Vehicle Trip Ends vs: 1000 Sq. Ft. GFA
On a: Weekday

Setting/Location: General Urban/Suburban
Number of Studies: 53

Avg. 1000 Sq. Ft. GFA: 208
Directional Distribution: 50% entering, 50% exiting
Vehicle Trip Generation per 1000 Sq. Ft. GFA o
Average Rate Range of Rates Standard Deviation
4.75 0.83 - 49.50 3.20

Data Plot and Equation

8,000
X
X

6,000
12}
©
c
L
L
=
4,000

X X
X
X
1,000 N 1,500 2,000
X =1000 Sq. Ft. GFA
X Study Site —— Fitted Curve Average Rate
Fitted Curve Equation: T = 3.77(X) + 201.98 R?=0.68

Trip Gen Manual, 11th Edition e |nstitute of Transportation Engineers



Manufacturing
(140)

Vehicle Trip Ends vs:
On a:

Setting/Location:
Number of Studies:

Avg. 1000 Sq. Ft. GFA:
Directional Distribution:

Vehicle Trip Generation per 1000 Sq. Ft.

Average Rate

Range of Rates

1000 Sq. Ft. GFA

Weekday,

Peak Hour of Adjacent Street Traffic,
One Hour Between 4 and 6 p.m.
General Urban/Suburban

55

142
31% entering, 69% exiting

GFA

Standard Deviation

0.74 0.07 - 11.37 0.93
Data Plot and Equation
1,500
(2]
S 1,000
|
2
=
0
i__.
X
500
287
_____ x_——___x.——____
% 259 y
* e X
0 200 400 600 800 1,000
X =1000 Sq. Ft. GFA
X Study Site Fitted Curve Average Rate
Fitted Curve Equation: T = 0.87(X) - 17.50 R?*= 0.64

Trip Gen Manual, 11th Edition

e Institute of Transportation Engineers




120

20

RIGHT TURNS IM PEAK HOUR (WPH)

N
—_—
o

40 [
RADIUS ONLY REQUIRED

[sﬁ o ca

ani—

60 |-

60th Street and Existing Steelcase Driveway
(Used by Manufacturing Traffic)

SEE NOTE AT RIGHT

| 1 |

[ (. |

2-LANE HIGHWAYS#*

FULL-WIDTH

TURN LANE

108 200 360

400

500 600

TOTAL PEAK HOUR APPROACH VOLUME (VPH)

700

T

.=
=35

| FULL-WIDTH Tugh

LANE

o

£ o o
o o o=

RIGHT TURMNS IN PEAK HOUR {(¥PH)
™

RADIUS ONLY REQUIRED =]

TAPER

NOTE

1 [ L

4-LANE HIGHWAYS%

For agplication on high speed highwoys,

1 i |

200 40 600

600

10¢0 1200

TOTAL PEAK HOUR APPROACH VOLUME (VPH)
456

1400

a.m. Peak Hour
p.m. Peak Hour

NOTE: For posted
speeds at or under 45
mph, peak hour right
turns greater than 40
vph, and total peak
hour approach less than
300 vph, adjust right
turn volumes.

Adjust peak hour
Right turns = Peak hour
Right turns — 20

*If a center left-turn
lane exists (ie 3 or 5
lane roadway), subtract
the number of left turns
in approach volume
form the total approach
volume to get an
adjusted total approach
volume.

Sample Problem: The Design Speed is 55 mph. The Peak Hour Approach Volume is 300
vph. The Number of Right Turns in the Peak Hous is 100 vph. Determine if a right turn
lane is recommended.

Solution: Figure indicates that the intersection of 300 vph and 100 vph is located above

the upper trend line; thus, a right-turn lane may be recommended.



‘Appendix 7
[ R O e T e R T A e e T R S R e G e e R R P |
Future LOS Output Reports




HCM 6th TWSC 2025 Future Conditions

2: Data Drive/Existing Steelcase Driveway & 60th Street a.m. Peak Hour
Intersection |
Int Delay, siveh 7.8
Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR ]
Lane Configurations ~ %§  #f N M4 $ £ & F
TrafficVol,vehh - 269 370 25 19 271 210 5 0 5 70 0 80
Future Vol, veh/h 269 370 25 19 2711 210 5 0 5 70 0 80
th‘ﬂi"ctmg L e e e I R N T e
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop ‘Stop  Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized g - None - - None - None = - - None
Storage Length 250 ) - 250 - 250 : - 0 - = 0
Vehin Median Storage,# - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - 2
Grade, % -0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
PeakHourFacor 89 689 89 84 84 84 63 63 63 9 92 9
Heavy Vehicles, % 4 4 4 3 3 3 10 10 10 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 2 M6 B 33 B0 B 0 8 76 0 87
Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow Al 573 0 0 444 0 0 1242 1653 222 1181 1417 162
| Stage1 - - - - - - 1034 1034 - 369 369 - E
Stage2 - - - - - - 208 619 - 812 1048 -

CrtoalHowy 448 - - 486 - - 77 67 71 754 6B 64
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - 87 57 - 654 554 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 s e ETNE o Te BF BT - B8 BREE 6
Follow-up Hdwy 224 - - 223 - - 36 41 34 352 402 33
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 982 - - 1105 - - 123 90 758 145 136 854

_ Stage 1 - - - - - - 234 291 - 63 619 -
| Stage2 S e e e RS g 830 08— &
Platoon blocked, % - - - -

Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 982 - - 1106 - - 83 61 758 108 92 854

Mov Cap-2 Manewer - - - - - - 83 6 - 108 92 -
| Stagef - = - = - - 162 201 - 431 606 -

. Stage2 - - - - - - 661 449 - 282 210 -

Mﬂ“m’“ , o B s s B ol e e Bl e T
HCM Control Q@!ﬁ!{- AR SR R 314 482

HCMLOS = 5 —

EEpacntyivehlh);; S 758’ 982 'ff;“ BN e 108 e R AR

HCM Lane V/CRatio 0096 0.01 0308 - - 002 - - 0705 0.102 o i
HCM Control Delay(s) 529 98 103 - - 83 - - 943 97 ks S TN |
HCM Lane LOS F A B - - A - - F A

HCM 5th %tile Q(veh) 03 0 13 - - o1 - - &7 03

Steelcase 60th Street TIS Synchro 11 Report
Fishbeck 11/21/2023



HCM 6th TWSC 2025 Future Conditions
4: Arlo Plastics Driveway/Roskam Baking Driveway & 60th Street am. Peak Hour

Lane Conflguranons A1 ‘HL_,, . ih . I . T - Fesr
fraficVol,vehi 10 420 6 22 511 18 2 1 6 8 0 39 Z YR
Future Vol, veh/h 10 420 6 22 511 18 2 1 6 8 o 3»
ConfictingPeds,#r 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S S T
Sign Control ~ Free Free Ergeh Free Free Free Stop  Stop  Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized =~ - - None - "< None = " <Mone - A Mepe - oo0o
Storage Length 2% - - % - - 0 - 7 0 - - o B
TER TR i Ss Ne i ARt e g U SR Dk s RS Skt D SSRGS
Grade, % 7 - o - - 0 - - g .= = 0 -
PeakHourFactor =~ 82 82 @2 of ©of 9 60 6 60 6 6 60
Heavy Vehicles,% 10 10 10 9 9 9 5 5 5 16 16 16 -
MvmtFlow 12 512 7 24 562 20 o T T T el il

» Q Mo T
Confllctmg Flow All 582 0 0 519 0 0 89 1170 260 901 1163 291

[ Staget - - = = - - 540 540 - 620 620 ERE A AR - s
Stage2 - - - - - - 39 630 - 281 543 - i B
Critical Hdwy 43 - - 428 - - 862 762 802 782 682 7.22
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - - 762 662 - 68 58 -
Critical Hwy Stg2 =~~~ - g EhE - = 182 662 - 682 582 B ERSE
Follow-up Hdwy 23 - - 229 - - 408 456 386 366 416 346
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver ~ 935 - - 9% - - 174 127 599 212 174 665
Stage 1 - - - - - - 378 404 - 40 445 - s Y
. Stage?2 T e e BN NN FRe ¥
Platoon blocked, % - - oo, BRI N Fo -
ov Cap-1 Maneuver 935 Eooosvele & - 153 122 599 201 168 665
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - - 188 122 - 201 168 - e -
| Staget SRR TR - - - 3713 389 - 405 434 - RSt T aged
Stage2 - - - - - - 466 3% - 642 48 -
CM Control Delay,s 0.2 S it W e e %
FICM LOS - E E C B

153 384 935

HCM Lane VIC Ralio 0022 003 0013 - - 0024 i_ﬁ__.___ooaa o0
HCM Control Delay(s) 294 147 89 - - 87 - - 242 "1 . %)
HCMLanelOS b B A = = A - - _C__B_ F—
HCM 9th %tile Q(veh) T e T DR e TR ¥ T BT
Steelcase 60th Street TIS Synchro 11 Report

Fishbeck . 11/21/2023



HCM 6th TWSC

6: 60th Street & Proposed Steelcase Driveway

2025 Future Conditions
a.m. Peak Hour

Int Delay, siveh

=BT "i,r

viovement

Lane Configurations % 44 4% bl E
TrafficVol,vehh 18 427 490 25 6 10 e = g
Future Vol, veh/h 18 427 490 25 6 10 B -
Conflicting Peds, #lhr B R e e N

Sign Control - Free Free Free Free Stop Stop - - o
RT Channelized - None - None - None G

Storage Length 250 - . - 0 5 . _—
Vehin Median Storage,# - 0 0 - 0 - e T S IR
Grade, % - 0 0 - 0 - N .
PeakHourFactor ~ 89 89 84 84 60 60 5 3 ¢
Heavy Vehicles,% 4 4 3 3 19 19 - e
Mvmt Flow 20 480 583 30 10 17

VejorlMinor

Conflicting Flow All 613 0 - 0 878 37

| Stage1 G R NS & e A
Stage2 - - - - 280 - - -

Critical Hdwy 4.18 - - - 718 728

Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - 618 - -

Critical Hdwy Stg 2 AT - 6.18 - =

Follow-up Hdwy 224 - - - 369 349 o S -

ot Cap-1 Maneuver 949 == s AT e =

Stage 1 - - - - 467 - B

| Stage2 TR, M N 990 T

Platoon blocked, % - - - B - o

Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 949 - - - 252 641 i ot ATV R e

Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 358 - e S

| Stage1 - - - - 457 - =
Stage 2 - - - - 694 - - -

Control Delay, s

HCM LOS

Bty

R

HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.021 - - - 0.054

HCM Control Delay (s) 89 - - - 127 x|
HCM Lane LOS A - - - B B .
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) A0 N SR - 02 o
Steelcase 60th Street TIS Synchro 11 Report
Fishbeck 11/21/2023




Queuing and Blocking Report

2025 Future Conditions

a.m. Peak Hour

Intersection: 4: Arlo Plastics Driveway/Roskam Baking Driveway & 60th Street

Movement EB WB NB NB SB SB

Directions Served L L L R L TR

Maximum Queue (ft) 31 52 42 64 35 73

Average Queue (ft) 2 7 2 12 3 29

95th Queue (ft) 14 30 18 45 20 63

Link Distance (ft) 378 257 257

Upstream Blk Time (%)

Queuing Penalty (veh)

StorageBayDist(f) 250 250 75

Storage Blk Time (%) 0 0

Queuing Penalty (veh) - B =il i :
Intersection: 5: Patterson Avenue & 60th Street

Movement EB _EBEB WB WB WB ,_ _NB__NB B18 SB SH
Directions Served L T TR L T T L T T L TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 166 117 137 3% 116 123 263 288 0 3 212
Average Queue (ft) 80 55 74 7 48 38 103 125 1 7 81
95th Queve (f) 144 102 120 25 85 - 96 Ry @y 29 26 156
Link Distance (ff) 1040 1040 734 734 406 379 487
Upstream Blk Time (%) X sE ]

Queuing Penalty (veh) e = S 0 -
Storage BayDist(fty 250 250 e o
Storage Blk Time (%) £ 6 7 B 1
Queuing Penalty (veh) 2 30 20 0
Intersection: 6: 60th Street & Proposed Steelcase Driveway

Movement _EB WB B

Directions Served L R LR

Maximum Queue (ft) S | R | el

Average Queue (ft) 7 6 0 17

O5th Queue (f) LI R 2!

Link Distance (ft) 263 731

Upstream Blk Time (%) -

Queuing Penalty (veh) , i

Storage Bay Dist (ft) 250

Storage Blk Time (%) )

Queuing Penalty (veh) :

Zone Summary

Zone wide Queuing Penalty: 101

Steelcase 60th Street TIS SimTraffic Report
Fishbeck 11/21/2023



HCM 6th TWSC 2025 Future Conditions

2: Data Drive/Existing Steelcase Driveway & 60th Street p.m. Peak Hour
Intersection |
Int Delay, s/veh 55.9
Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR I
Lane Configurations % #Bp % M 4 49 f .
Traffic Viol, veh/h 166 327 - 2 0 353 103 4 03 180 e
Future Vol, veh/h 156 327 2 0 353 103 4 0 26 239 0 337
k:onmctmg Pl 0 8 BB 9T Cg 0 % B w8
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length 250 - - 250 - 20 - = 0 E - 0
Venhin Median Storage,# - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - Ry
Grade, % 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 8 8 8. 82 82 82 80 60 60 W B @ B
Heavy Vehicles,% 2 2 2 2 2 2 0 0 0 2 2 2
MvmtFlow 188 394 2 0 430 126 7 0 43 260 0 366
Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor1 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 556 0 0 39 0 0 986 1327 198 1003 1202 215
[ e e L e e e
Stage 2 - - - - - - 215 556 - 573 772 -
Crifical Hdwy 414 - - 414 - - 75 65 69 754 654 694
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - 7 - - 65 55 - 654 554 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 e - - 65 55 - 654 554 -
Follow-up Hdwy 222 - - 222 - - 35 4 33 352 402 332
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1011 - - 1159 - - 205 157 ,816 ~196 183 790
~ Stage ! - .- .- - 363 413 - 574 58 - )
R st Db e Sl EORR TR ST L A | ML et
Platoon blocked, % - - - -

[VIovCap-1Maneuver 011 - - 1159 - - 94 128 816 ~159 149 790
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - - 94 128 - ~159 149

R S e T s e R o
Stage2 - - - - - - 45 516 - 34 331 - B
Approach R e v OB . WSRO e
HCM Control Delay,s 3 0 ] Ws . 158.3
HCMLOS — B ~F

T S

86 - - - - - 1634 0464

HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.071 0.053 0.

T R
1

HCMControl Delay (s) 462 97 94 - - 0 -  $3626 134
HCMlanelOS ~ E A A - - A - - F B
HCM 95th %file Q(ven) =~ 02 02 07 - % 0 5 = W8 25
Notes

~ Volume exceeds capaclty §: Delay exceeds 300s _+ Computation NotDefined _*: Al majorvolume inplatoon

Steelcase 60th Street TIS Synchro 11 Report
Fishbeck 11/21/2023



HCM 6th TWSC , 2025 Future Conditions
4: Arlo Plastics Driveway/Roskam Baking Driveway & 60th Street p.m. Peak Hour

Lane Conflgurationsm MM "M BN B
Malchalveifi. = 3 86 "2 B W 7 5 EE % T ST
FutureVol,vehh 3 626 2 6 42 7 5 1 28 145 0 15
EonﬂictLgPeds #hr 0 e SRR e R S VR O e (43 R T
Sign Control ~ Free Eree Free 7@3@ Free Free Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop - -
RTChannelized - - None - - None - - None - -Nome
St%@_Length 250 = = 250 B 7;7777:7"77 0 = 75 - g, _Ga- 5 W
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 : 0 B2 KTl TR | S B s
Grade, % 0 - 0 - 0o - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 19, e 08 l, 7_7,,,JZ 60 60 60 8 88 88 il 8
Heavy Vehicles, % 3 3 3 7 ,_7“,,,77,,, 3 3 3 18 18 18 DSy
Mvmt Flow 4 792 % 8 548 e 8 A RS SE R |

Conficting FlowAll 557 0 0 795 0 0 1092 1375 398 974 1372 279

| [ Stage1 J B T A S Lo 7!%7802 R 569 569 - Rt Sudcas e
~ Stage2 - - - - - - 290 573 - 405 803 -
@ritical Hdwy 4.16 - - 424 - - 756 656 696 7.86 6.86 7.26 SR Apaat |
Critical Hdwy Stg1 - - - - - - 656 556 - 6.86 586 e
Erltlca Hdwy Stg 2 e - - - 656 556 - 686 5.6 - i 4
Follow-up Hdwy 228 - - 227 - - 353 403 333 368 418 348
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1003 - -9 - - 168 143 599 184 126 672 {
- Stage 1 T R - 342 392 - 436 466 -
[ Stage 2 P e - - - - 691 499 - 552 358 - Py A
Platoon blocked, % - - - T Jn.. S S -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1003 - = 791 - - 162 141 599 166 124 672 e
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - - 162 141 - 166 124 R
[ h{ael_ % - 5 = - - 341 390 - 434 461 - s
~ Stage 2 - - - - - - 667 494 - 505 3p7 -

[., e A il

HOMLOS pC— B C

e

Capacty (vehh) 162 5% 1003 - - 781 -

ol e e &
HCMLane VICRatio - 0.051 0.09 0.004 - - 0.01 - - 0.103 0.025 -
HCMControl Delay (s) 264 123 86 - - 96 - - 292 105
HCMLanetoS D B A - - A - - D B
LT N V) S PR R R | O B e
Steelcase 60th Street TIS Synchro 11 Report

Fishbeck 11/21/2023



HCM 6th TWSC 2025 Future Conditions
6: 60th Street & Proposed Steelcase Driveway p.m. Peak Hour

Movement 3L
Lane Configurations +4 b o
Traffic Viol, vehlh 7 58 450 B o R A et AT St St e AL B
Future Vol, veh/h 7 585 450 1 6 T
ConfiictingPeds,#r 0 0 0 0 0 0 i 5 L s P ol
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop S
RT Channelized - None - None - Nome i b b
Storage Length 250 - = & 0 = B
Veh in Median Storage,# - 0 0 - 0 - i G N il s A
Grade, % - - 0 0 = 0 - - -
PeakHour Factor 83 83 82 82 75 75 TR e e
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 17 17 - .
MvmtFlow 8 705 54 1 16 8 N T 5
MajoriMinor  Majorl _ Major2 __ Mino2
Conflicting Flow All 550 0 - 0 919 275
St &= - 550 s i e e Y e A
Stage2 - - - - 369 - -
Critical Hdwy 4.14 - - - 114 724 e g™
Critical Hdwy Stg1 - - - - 614 - B
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 e S At e - TR = s
Follow-up Hdwy 222 - - - 3.67 347 -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 1016 - - - 244 679 £
Stage 1 - - - - 502 -
| Stage2 AR et AR A Ty A
Platoon blocked, % - - - ) - B
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 1016 - - - 242 679 5 A
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - 361 -
| Stagef iy - - - 498 -

- Stage2 - - - - 627 -

CM Control Delay,s 0.1 e
HCM LOS B

[T it - -zt
MinorLane/Major Mymt ___ EBL EBT WBT WBRSBLM 00 |
apacity (vehh) i e SN vl el e e e AR 5 0 9
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.008 - - - 0056 B
HCM Control Delay (s) 86 - - - 139 : ; e hien s B
HCMLane LOS A - - - B N S
HCM 95th %tile Qveh) 0 - - - 02 ) N
Steelcase 60th Street TIS Synchro 11 Report

Fishbeck 1112172023



Queuing and Blocking Report 2025 Future Conditions
p.m. Peak Hour

Intersection: 4: Arlo Plastics Driveway/Roskam Baking Driveway & 60th Street

[ R A . T e, . DR . N e s e
Directions Served L L L TR L TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 14 19 g6 B Hi 59
Average Queue (ft) 1 1 5 19 14 16
95th Queue (ft) 8 i 2l 47 45 50
Link Distance (ft) 378 257 257
Upstream Blk Time (%)

Queuing Penalty (veh) ) 7

Storage Bay Dist (ft) 250 250 75

Storage Blk Time (%) 0

Queuing Penalty (veh) , 0

Intersection: 5: Patterson Avenue & 60th Street

Movement EB EB EB WB WB W8 NB N8 NB. 8B 8B |
Directions Served L T TR L T TR L T R L TR
Maximum Queue (ft W46 2 B R W
Average Queue (ft) 54 72 % 2 40 17 51 50 29 8 146
85th Queue (ft) 8 AT BT WSS BN
Link Distance (ft) - 1040 1040 734 734 406 487
Upstream Blk Time (%)

Queuing Penalty (veh) - 7

Storage Bay Dist (ft) 260 250 190 115 200

Storage Blk Time (%) , . 0 4
Queuing Penalty (veh) 1 73

Intersection: 6: 60th Street & Proposed Steelcase Driveway

Movement EB SB : 1
Directions Served L LR

Maximum Queue (ft 25 56

Average Queue (ft) 2 15

05th Queue (ff) LB

Link Distance (ft) 731

Upstream Blk Time (%)

Queuing Penalty (veh)

Storage Bay Dist (f) 250

Storage Blk Time (%) ) )
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Zone Summary

Steelcase 60th Street TIS SimTraffic Report
Fishbeck 1112112023



Posiseny ey ity
ESNT VP E4

I

‘ON 133HS

829l2e

‘ON 1937084

FONWHING

Sl ;

133UISHI09

3 TTTR e e e e e e s

'131NIQ HL 09

00z oot o HL¥ON

002 = .1 WS

NV1d 3LIs ‘a'n'dl

NVEIND
3SVO13ALS MIN 3NN AL3dO¥d ur\d—\

U

FONWVHINT
133UIS HI09

3N
ALy3doyd Gr\d~l

SV 9'S
810-00£-98-81—1¥

———— e e

i L ey — Sy ——p———

DTZ0NZ O4NI 10T

Toior e RAR
TLTL-C8E008-T
wrali

2@
bmy

3 el i e g

DIASSIN )

=1

i
|
£ anod I 213 oNIaing
"aml[?m;uewtz'.smxg_a:w e e sy __L} : } x";ﬁm
rtilensilonlnyad | Il 2SNOHA¥VND P EEN=V
39 0} ppuziur st Adod preH g I - 3SYO1IAUS MIN ‘,//
e -—— ! = ==
susay : —| | I A\ 1
wsy  Jaubsag , I | ! \ \ l H
|
. | Lo | o I M
/ | 145000001 | | : | H
1 I |
| e T i
I L l | ! - | !
— wl]
| | j
I | \ I \ [ 020-000-98- 319 1
Sl sl LR | |1 3084 vt 3TaISS0d ||
hommRLLY \._ 777 and-1 @INOZ 's3uaY 661 . ——— | |4
) / +20-00y-9¢-81~1# | L-—v——h—h” ‘ |
0 ; / ! [ D
O\p(\ﬁliﬂfo\* =Hl ‘ —_ )} g “““““ I3
W »0 2 f\ X M-‘ | | _______________________ 4 NG T e l |
B . H
SHolsiA3yY >‘ / y I, ________ || i |
/ LLV“L ‘‘ —_—— |
: % i I e . ] 2 |l —————— N AT
Liscooer - S o ’ - | ‘wsocosy || | ‘
I i \‘ '\ | // L - : | “14S 8v€'548 WLOL x o ' \: R i b 8
and-1 @NOZ v Z1'y V!l s i | H I l g
0 220-00v-95-81— 1% 1 | ’ H | l% | : D p———1 t f
. . | = |
= SOV So'2e 1 IS 855'lzg | g2 | | wsoow | l
7 2 120-00y-95—81—1¥ % £z ! g y l
3 (5] yaiod and—1 GINOZ LIS S9Z'806 I A LI i ' 610-000- 08115 g'a | L———alh
e o 3NNIAV JOOWAvoME G958 | & l | 145 000099 2 PN |l |
= - ~ | ONIGINE ISNOHIUVM 03SOdONd > =5
o 0 7 1| H | ! | > R 113
Q. = m u, \ : |§ | I: | |
F g ; i I I %U | i I
© Z (7)) II g 7 2 ol E :I l|:\
32 |3 o i - -2y oNIOlnE | | = N | — 0] S i
= a 0 ' = s 1 ’ } l H | ! i : N [ ALY3dO¥d and
§ =0 f ! 7 : ’:7: r\ i l i & { p 11y 3A0ND SATIVE
S |9 = *145 06L'¢SE 2 |oNIaTiNg | Y P | VIr e | Ao 3NV Shive
=3 = s - ! I : | 1SV3 FONWVAINT
o e e ! [ | | ARG NN
Q =t o f Q350do¥d
3 = 90
e ) L
%) ~+r 3A0¥D SATIVE
o o
= 5 0 w0 o NN A~ EFEF| (EEEEET || --———— %
UIINTPAR U TSRO0 =
7 N N N N Y S N I/ YT o — - >
> NV 2
a0 ANX\N\N\N YN T /N S gmEamd | SN s\ N T0d IR 7]
= AMVONNOS ‘a'N'd . >
| vauv onnnvd g <
A | |3unind aawzsaa ! ]
O 1! l / | c
2 | D b m
E N\ SN TN e 1 il
< l i
0| - ’ el
= ) nlusucnnml X
e LT, g I
s tee LIS 000982 ¥ ONITTING al |1 =
TSR dRnd INVTd ISIM JQOOMININ
zl_ — ! L3
PR A
SIS i gl - |
g 3 by f
SOV 66'88 | e/ [
1¥0-00Z-95-81-1¥ i Y l
and-1 GINOZ “LiS 000999 ' == :
35 ¥OOWAVOE sagg | I
STOMYd ISYOTHAUS ¥04 3AUA ONY 1O B MIN 2 |r___‘~J J l
260001 TOUYd HOJ SINO B KN 1 iy \
(
S31ON lNEWGNEWVGndW |I L__A__,} l
14100 LXALNOD H
HINON i
H
X¥'SS L0L'198'} ) LZT06C'T $00'090'% 09'c68't 9CR'ZI9'C 22 96Y ‘an'd wial |
____________ H
X508 0005’} 000’05z o00'sLe 000'00 000'05S 5529 920-00r—85—ai—1¥ = By e
iyt XSS 000'SSH 000081 000'ork 00000} 000'¢9 60T ST0-00r—9E-81—1¥ O
X9'09 000288 [ 000'Z2Z [ 000's9 4 961 $20-00¥-9C-R1—-1¥ g
X1er 000's” o 000'6L 0 000'04 90y ZTLO-00¥-9C-Q1— ¥ :
X0'lS 625°506') o $25'096 o S00'sL8 S0'Le 120-00F-95-81-1¥ g
S — xeee 000'58L 000'00% [] 000'56¢ ) SIS 020-00¢-9¢ 81— 1% z I
m XT'6L oy9'0ss’L o0o'oLe [ ore'ses o £1Z8 610-008—5€-81-1¥ g '
X1cT 005'9% o 00005 0 005’9 'S 810-00C-8C-81—1¥ w
XL £oc'Lze'L 0 £og'198 0 000'999 6685 LY0-00Z-8C-81—1¥ o ‘
- j X89S 21'900'C 000'06% KT 000'9Z L £282Z1 £50-001-95-81—1¥ Yy :
B0 1ZL'e6L LTS 116'957 o £96'c9 69T 7S0—-001-9€-R1—1¥ rﬁ
5 X0 085S 0 059 0 o 190 160-001-9C-81—1¥ l
U x00 0 0 [J 0 o 20'} TT0—001-8E-BI—1¥ I
= m 39V3UOV_3Sn ANV i
0 i
z H

=0
wp

1# 3ONWVEINT

N\ 7

Svons 1339IS ON 2% SIN 8¥N0 03S0408d

0000V M3SN WY LOYES WL ¥ZOZVLD ILVA 10°LNOAYT DMO'LYId 0Z0IZZ-1CONANAVONLOL:



	Agenda
	Minutes
	Case 14-24 FofF
	Case 16-24 FofF SLU
	Case 16-24 FofF Site Plan
	Case 17-24 FofF Arch Amendments
	Case 17-24 FofF for Fine Amendments
	Case 15-24 Rec
	Case 15-24 Site Plan
	Image_20240604_0001
	Image_20240604_0002
	Image_20240604_0003
	Image_20240604_0004
	Image_20240604_0005
	Image_20240604_0006
	Image_20240604_0007
	Image_20240604_0008
	Image_20240604_0009
	Image_20240604_0010
	Image_20240604_0011
	Image_20240604_0012
	Image_20240604_0013

	Case 18-24 Staff Report
	Case 18-24 Site Plan

